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A Message from the President

Dear Hometown Auto Retailers Shareholders:

2002 was a time of building at Hometown Auto Retailers. By building 1 don’t just mean the completion of our
beautiful, state-of-the-art, Lincoln-Mercury facility in Framingham, Massachusetts pictured below.

More than that, Hometown was busy building better internal systems during 2002, systems to help us be a better
company for the present and into the future. This started with our selection of a new CFO in the fall of
2001: Charles Schwartz. Chuck has proven to be an effective leader in Hometown’s finance depart-
ment, and through his efforts, we have instituted tighter controls and generated better information flow
from our dealerships to corporate headquarters.

Near the end 0f 2002, we engineered a new process by which we can better merchandize and price our
used cars and trucks, particularly those that reach more than 70 days in stock. This new system has
already helped us better manage our inventory of $8,000,0000 in used cars and trucks and particularly,
has helped us keep inventory very young. Younger, faster-moving used car and truck inventories
typically provide much greater margins than margins on the same vehicles that have lingered in inventory.

And of course there is our beautiful new facility, one that promises nothing except the best possible
purchase and service experience for our customers in the busy Framingham and Wellesley markets.
There are many wonderful features of our new facility, including a state-of-the-art service drive that
will allow us to write up as many as six customer vehicles at once out of the weather. In addition, the
new facility features a comfortable and well-appointed customer lounge with a children’s play area.

Corey Shaker, President

Hometown is proud of the fact that we built this facility without incurring any additional debt in the form of a
mortgage or equity line. So the only debt on our balance sheet is the existing mortgages on company-owned property
and the floor planning balance to Ford Motor Credit, our floor plan lender.

Hometown Auto Retailers’ new facility in Framingham, Massachusetts includes a state-
of-the-art, six vehicle write-up area and a well-appointed customer lounge with a
children’s play area.

I must pause here and thank the employees of Baystate Lincoln Mercury who have endured the massive undertaking
of construction and the resulting working conditions for the past 14 months in Framingham. Working without a
display lot and sometimes ankle deep in mud wasn’t easy to say the least. On behalf of all the senior management at
Hometown Auto Retailers, I would like to thank you for your patience and perseverance. I'm sure both qualities will
be greatly rewarded as a result of this beautiful new facility.

Finally, we are pleased to provide our shareholders an operational profit, outside the one-time write off of our
goodwill, and we remain cautiously optimistic about 2003 and committed to our shareholders.

Yours truly,

Dy

Corey Shaker,
President and CEC
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT INFORMATION

Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are "forward-looking statements” (within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995) regarding the plans and objectives
of management for future operations. Such statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors that may cause actual results, performance or achievements of Hometown Auto
Retailers, Inc. (“Hometown”) to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements
included herein are based on curremt expectations that involve numerous risks and uncertainties.
Hometown's plans and objectives are based, in part, on assumptions involving the continued expansion of
business. Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things,
Juture economic, competitive and market conditions and future business decisions, all of which are
difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond the control of Hometown.
Although Hometown believes that its assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are
reasonable, any of the assumptions could prove inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that
the forward-looking statements included in this Report will prove to be accurate. In light of the
significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements, the inclusion of such information
should not be regarded as a representation by Hometown or any other person that the objectives and
plans of Hometown will be ackieved. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the factors
set forth herein under the headings “Business,” “Certain Factors That May Affect Future Growth” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Hometown was founded by merger, on June 27, 1997, between Dealer-Co., Inc., a New York
Corporation, organized on March 10, 1997 and Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc., a Delaware corporation,
organized on June 6, 1997. Until the closing of its initial public offering on July 31, 1998, Hometown
conducted no operations under its own name and all revenues were generated by its predecessor
companies. On July 31, 1998, Hometown acquired three dealerships, and the predecessor companies,
which operate six dealerships, a collision repair center and a factory authorized freestanding service
center. In 1999, Hometown also acquired freestanding Lincoln Mercury and Toyota dealerships and
added both a Mazda and a Jeep dealership to existing locations. In 2000, Hometown acquired a high-end
used car operation, which was added to its Massachusetts location. In 2001, Hometown sold its
Morristown, NJ dealership, Lincoln Mercury franchise back to Lincoln Mercury. In 2002, the high-end
used car operation was significantly scaled down.

Genersal

Hometown sells new and used cars and light trucks, provides maintenance and repair services,
sells replacement parts and provides related financing, insurance and service contracts through 10
franchised dealerships located in New Jersey, New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts and Vermont.
Hometown’s dealerships offer 10 American and Asian automotive brands, including Chevrolet, Chrysler,
Dodge, Ford, Jeep, Lincoln, Mercury, Oldsmobile, Mazda, and Toyota. Hometown also is active in two
"niche” areas of the automotive market, the sale of Lincoln town cars and limousines to livery car and
livery fleet operators and the maintenance and light repair of cars and trucks at a Ford and Lincoln
Mercury factory authorized free-standing service center.

Hometown’s "Lincoln Mercury Autocare" center located in Connecticut was the pilot facility for
Ford's authorized free-standing neighborhood service center concept for the maintenance and light repair
of cars and trucks. Free-standing neighborhood service centers are an innovative attempt by the
automobile retail industry to recapture repair and maintenance business which has been lost in recent
decades to chain and independent service businesses. These service centers are designed to enhance
customer convenience by operating during extended hours, servicing vehicles without prior appointment
and offering quick turnaround.

Operating Strategy

Hometown will seek to consolidate operations and increase the profitability of its existing
dealerships by using a strategy that combines its "best in class" operating practices with the advantages of
its established customer base, local presence and name recognition. Each of Hometown’s dealerships will
use a core operating strategy specifically designed to produce a high "shop absorption rate," a high rate of
service retention and a high ratio of retail used to new car sales, all in order to maximize profitability and
provide insulation from the cyclical nature of new car sales. “Shop absorption rate” is the percentage of a
dealerships fixed expenses that are covered or absorbed by the gross profit of the parts and service
departments.

Hometown believes that the following factors, coupled with its established organizational
structure, will help it achieve its operating strategy:

s Strong Regional Focus. Hometown’s ten franchised dealerships are located in New Jersey,

New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts and Vermont. Hometown believes that proximity of
its dealerships to one another will contribute to ease of management, more effective control of
dealership operations, increased sales from coordinated marketing of new cars, used cars and
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livery vehicles and cost savings from coordinated auction purchasing, car transport and other
activities.

e Established Customer Base. Hometown believes that its existing dealerships have good local
reputations and have strong local name recognition. Through "owner-loyalty” and similar
programs, Hometown believes it has established a customer base that looks to its existing
"hometown" dealership as its first choice in buying replacement vehicles. See “Dealership
Operations — Parts and Service” for a description of “owner-loyalty program”.

o Experienced Management. Hometown's management is comprised of second and third
generation members of dealer families who have been leaders in the automotive retailing
industry. The executive officers and key managers of Hometown have over 200 years of
combined experience in the automotive retailing industry and are members of families who
have owned dealerships since 1947. They are recognized leaders in the automotive retailing
industry and have served at various times in leadership positions in state and national industry
organizations. Hometown has also received numerous awards based on high customer
satisfaction index ("CSI") ratings and other performance measures regularly compiled and
monitored by the automobile Manufacturers. See "Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers i
of the Registrant” for additional information as to the numerous Manufacturer awards and
citations earned by Hometown's senior management and dealerships in recent years.

e Focus on Higher Margin Operations

e Parts and Service. Hometown's dealerships emphasize sales of parts and service, which
typically have a higher profit margin than vehicle sales. As part of their emphasis
Hometown operates "Lincoln Mercury Autocare” a freestanding neighborhood service
center for the maintenance and light repair of cars and trucks which operates during
extended hours, provides comfortable customer waiting areas and quickly services
vehicles without prior appointment. It is also, through its Westwood subsidiary, a
major seller of Lincoln Town Cars and limousines to livery car and livery fleet
operators. These sales tend to generate significant maintenance and repair business
since the primary concern of livery operators is keeping their cars in use and on the
road for a maximum number of hours per day.

e Used Car Sales. The sale of used vehicles is emphasized at each of Hometown’s
dealerships. Typically, used vehicle sales generate higher gross margins than new
vehicle sales. Hometown seeks to attract customers and enhance buyer satisfaction by
offering multiple financing options and extended warranties on used vehicles.

o Ability To Source High Quality Used Vehicles. An important component in selling used
vehicles and maintaining high margins on such sales is the ability to obtain high quality used
vehicles at reasonable prices. Hometown obtains its used vehicles through trade-ins and
off-lease programs as well as regular auction buying. Key executives at each dealership have
developed the skills necessary for making effective purchases at regularly scheduled auctions.
Hometown believes that auction buying activities will be enhanced by its ability to use
common buyers to fill the needs of several dealerships, handle its own transportation of
vehicles from the auction to the dealership and obtain discounted prices.

¢ Brand Diversity. Hometown's dealerships offer 10 American and Asian automotive brands
including Chevrolet, Chrysler, Dodge, Ford, Jeep, Lincoln, Mercury, Oldsmobile, Mazda, and
Toyota. Hometown believes that brand diversity helps to insulate it from changes in consumer
preferences, short supplies of particular automotive models and negative publicity concerning
a particular Manufacturer or vehicle model.
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e Quality Personnel. Hometown employs professional management practices in all aspscts of its
operations, including information technology, advanced employee sales training, profit-based
compensation and cash management. Each dealership is managed as & profit center by a
trained and experienced general manager who has primary responsibility for decisions relating
to inventory, pricing and personnel. Hometown compensates its general managers and
department managers pursuant to various formulas based upon dealership or department
profitability, rather than on sales volume. Senior management uses computer-based
management information systems to monitor each dealership's sales, profitability and
inventory on a daily basis and to identify areas requiring improvement and provide additional
training where necessary. Hometown believes that the application of its professional
management practices provides it with an ability to achieve levels of profitability superior to
industry averages.

Dealership Operations

Hometown’s established operating practices and procedures, including the management and
pricing of inventories of new and used vehicles, are regularly reviewed and updated by the Chief
Executive Officer and members of Hometown’s operating management. Each of Hometown’s dealerships
use a management structure that promotes and rewards the achievement of benchmarks set by senior
management. Each local general manager of a Hometown dealership is ultimately responsible for the
operation, personnel and financial performance of that dealership. Each general manager is complemented
with a management team generally consisting of a new vehicle sales manager, a used vehicle sales
manager, service and parts managers and finance and insurance (“F&I”) managers. The general manager
and the other members of each dealership management team, as long-time members of their local
communities, are typically best able to judge how to conduct day-to-day operations based on the team's
experience in and familiarity with its local market. Certain members of Hometown’s senior management
also serve as general managers of particular dealerships.

Each dealership engages in a number of inter-related businesses: new vehicle sales; used vehicle
sales; service and parts operations; and F&I.

New Vehicle Sales. Hometown's dealerships represent 10 American and Asian brands of lower,
mid and higher priced sport and family cars and light trucks, including sport utility vehicles. Hometown
believes that offering numerous new vehicle brands appeals to a variety of customers, minimizes
dependence on any one Manufacturer and reduces its exposure to supply problems and product cycles.




The following table sets forth for 2002 and 2001, certain information relating to the brands of
new vehicles sold at retail by Hometown:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001
Number Percentage Number Percemtage

2,985 46.4% 2,857 45.9%
1,296 202% 1,517 24.3%
672 105% 671 10.8%
517 8.0% 337 5.4%
318 49% 289 4.6%
277 43% 146 2.3%
165 26% 156 2.5%
124 1.9% 142 2.3%
41 0.6% 36 0.6%
37 0.6% 79 1.3%
Total 6,432 100.0% 6,230 100.0%

Hometown’s new vehicle unit sales include lease transactions. New vehicle leases generally have
short terms, which tend to bring the consumer back to the market sooner than if the purchase were debt
financed. In addition, leases provide a steady source of late-model, off-lease vehicles for used vehicle
inventory. Leased vehicles generally remain under factory warranty for the term of the lease, which
allows the dealerships to provide repair service to the lessee throughout the lease term.

Hometown seeks to provide customer-oriented service designed to meet the needs of its
customers and establish lasting relationships that will result in repeat and referral business. This is
accomplished by: (i) engaging in extensive follow-up after a sale in order to develop long-term
relationships with its customers; (ii) training its sales staff to be able to meet customer needs; (iii)
employing more efficient, non-confrontational selling systems; and (iv) using computer technology that
decreases the time necessary to purchase a vehicle. Hometown believes that its ability to share "best
practices” among its dealerships gives it an advantage over smailer dealerships.

Hometown acquires substantially all of its new vehicle inventory from Manufacturers of the
vehicle brands it seils. The Manufacturers allocate a limited inventory among their franchised dealers
based primarily on sales volume and input from dealers. Hometown finances its inventory purchases
through revolving credit arrangements known in the industry as "floor plan® financing.

Used Vehicle Sales. Hometown sells used vehicles at each of its franchised dealerships. Sales of
used vehicles have become an increasingly significant source of profit for dealerships. Consumer demand
for used vehicles has increased as prices of new vehicles have risen and as more high quality used
vehicles have become available. Furthermore, used vehicles typically generate higher gross margins than
new vehicles because of their limited comparability and the somewhat subjective nature of their
valuation. Hometown intends to emphasize used vehicle sales by maintaining a high quality inventory,
providing competitive prices and arranging extended service contracts for its used vehicles and continuing
to promote used vehicle sales. Hometown will also certify that its used cars meet specified testing and
quality standards.




The following table shows actual vehicle sales by Hometown from 1998 through 2002.

Number of Used and New Vehicles Sold

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Used Vehicles — Retail .......ccvvvreriinerennieniennan, 4,128 4,874 4,549 4,790 3,995
Used Vehicles — Wholesale..........couverierencnnenes 2,857 3,105 3,208 3,319 3,794
New Vehicles .....ocveurenienninnnirncreeereenenn, 6,432 6.230 6.731 6,892 5,150
Total Sales ..., 13,417 14,209 14,488 15,001 12,939

Sales of used vehicles are dependent on the ability of the dealerships to obtain a supply of high
quality used vehicles and effectively manage that inventory. New vehicle operations provide a supply of
such vehicles through trade-ins and off-lease vehicles. Hometown supplements its used vehicle inventory
with used vehicles purchased at auctions where Manufacturers re-market lease return, rental buy back and
Manufacturer demonstration cars. To maintain a broad selection of high quality used vehicles and to meet
local preferences, Hometown acquires used vehicles from trade-ins and a variety of sources throughout
the Northeast, including direct purchases and Manufacturers' and independent auctions.

Hometown follows an inventory management strategy pursuant to which used vehicles are
offered at progressively lower gross profit margins the longer they stay in inventory and if not sold at
retail by the end of approximately 12 weeks are sold to another dealer or sold at auction. Unsold, excess
or unsuitable vehicles received as irade-ins are sold at auctions or sold directly to other dealers and
wholesalers. Trade-ins may be transferred among Hometown dealerships to provide balanced inventories
of used vehicles at each location.

Hometown has taken steps to build customer confidence in its used vehicle inventory, including
participation in the Manufacturers' certification processes to make used vehicles eligible for new vehicle
benefits such as new vehicle finance rates and extended Manufacturer warranties.

Hometown Dbelieves that franchised dealership strengths in offering used vehicles include:
(i) access on new vehicle purchase to trade-ins which are typically lower mileage and higher quality
relative to trade-ins on used car purchases, (ii) access to late-model, low mileage off-lease vehicles, rental
returns and Manufacturer demos, and (iii) the availability of Manufacturer certification and extended
Manufacturer warranties for higher quality used vehicles. Hometown believes that a well-managed used
vehicle operation at each location affords it an opportunity to: (i) generate additional customer traffic
from a wide variety of prospective buyers, (ii) increase new and used vehicle sales by aggressively
pursuing customer trade-ins, (iii) generate incremental revenues from customers financially unable or
unwilling to purchase a new vehicle, and (iv) increase ancillary product sales, particularly F&I, to
improve overall profitability. Hometown also maintains a “virtual” used car lot through its website
“htauto.com”. Customers can see digital images of most of Hometown’s pre-owned inventory, updated
weekly, at all their locations. In addition, sales people and managers can search other Hometown
locations to fulfill customer needs for used cars or trucks not at the specific location that a customer may
be in. This potentially eliminates many customers from leaving one Hometown location without seeing
what they need.

Parts and Service. Hometown regards service and repair activities as an integral part of its
overall approach to customer service, providing an opportunity to foster ongoing relationships with its
customers and deepen customer loyalty. Hometown provides parts and service at each of its franchised
dealerships for the vehicle brands sold by these dealerships. Maintenance and repair services are provided
at 10 locations, one factory authorized neighborhood service center and one collision repair center
(included in one of the 10 dealerships), using approximately 100 service bays. Hometown provides both
warranty and non-warranty service work.




Hometown implemented an "owner loyalty program” to encourage customers to return to the
dealership for all maintenance and light repair work. The program provides customers with information as
to recommended intervals of service and details all charges for a wide range of maintenance activities and
expected replacements at such intervals. Customers who maintain their vehicles in accordance with the
owner loyalty program recommendations receive various items of maintenance, such as oil changes,
loaner vehicles, certain scheduled maintenance, wiper blades, spark plugs and towing without charge and
also receive specified rebates against new or used vehicle purchases for money spent in Hometown's
service departments. The owner loyalty program is designed to combat the quantity of repair and
maintenance work to be performed at service stations and other independent repair shops, chains of
specialized repair, maintenance and part replacement shops, such as muffler shops, brake shops, and tire
shops. Manufacturers' policies that require warranty work to be performed at franchised dealerships
support Hometown's strategy of retaining maintenance and light repair work.

The parts and service business is less cyclical than new vehicle sales and provides an important
recurring revenue stream {o Hometown's dealerships. Hometown uses systems that track its customers'
maintenance records and notify owners of vehicles purchased at the dealerships when their vehicles are
due for periodic services. Hometown believes that this practice encourages preventive maintenance rather
than post-breakdown repairs.

Each dealership selis factory-approved parts for vehicle brands and models sold by that
dealership. These parts are either used in repairs made by the dealership or sold at retail to its customers
or at wholesale to independent repair shops. Each dealership employs its own parts manager and
independently controls its parts inventory and sales. Hometown dealerships which sell the same new
vehicle brands will have access to each other's computerized inventories. Further, certain Manufacturers
offer discounts on volume purchases of certain parts and components.

Finance, Insurance and Other Revenue. Hometown dealerships arrange financing for their
customers' vehicle purchases, sell vehicle service contracts and arrange selected types of credit insurance
in connection with the financing of vehicle sales. The dealerships place heavy emphasis on F&[ and offer
advanced F&I training to their F&I managers. During 2002, Hometown arranged financing for
approximately 59% of new and used vehicles sold at retail to its customers. Typically, the dealerships
forward proposed financing contracts to finance companies owned and operated by the Manufacturers or
to selected commercial banks or other financing parties. The dealerships receive a finance fee from the
lender for arranging the financing and may be assessed a charge-back against a portion of the finance fee
if the contract is terminated prior to its scheduled maturity for any reason, including early repayment or
default. However, under existing agreements no charge-backs are generaily permitted after 90, or in some
cases 120 days. Hometown pays for this in the form of a reduction of the finance fee.

At the time of a new vehicle sale, Hometown offers extended service contracts to supplement the
Manufacturer's warranty. Additionally, Hometown sells primary service contracts for used vehicles, as
well as service contracts of third party vendors.

Hometown also offers three types of insurance to customers: (i) credit life insurance pays off the
remaining balance of the vehicle loan upon the death of the insured, (i) disability insurance makes the
monthly loan payments on behalf of the insured during a period of disability and (iii) gap insurance
ensures that the loan is paid in full if the vehicle becomes totally inoperable due to an accident.
Hometown’s dealerships typically receive one-half of the premiums as a commission for selling these
products. Insurance revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 were less than 2% of total Finance,
Insurance and Other Revenues. '




Company Guaraniees

Hometown guarantees or partially guarantees loans advanced by financial institutions to certain
customers. It is Hometown’s policy to provide reserves for potential future default losses based on
available historical information.

One of Hometown’s dealerships, prior to fiscal 2000, had entered into various arrangements

whereby Hometown guaranteed or partially guaranteed loans advanced by financial institutions to certain
customers as follows:

i) Porifolio of 13 customer’s limousine vehicle loans granted by Ford Motor Credit Co. As
of December 31, 2002, Hometown fully and partially guaranteed limousine vehicle loans
aggregating approximately $103,000.

(ii) Portfolio of 4 vehicle loans, granted by a financial institution, to various customers of the
dealership with below average credit. As of December 31, 2002, Hometown fully

guaranteed vehicle loans associated with these customers aggregating approximately
$33,000.

The guarantees in (i) and (ii) above are related to loans whereby Hometown is required to pay the
remaining loan balance upon default by the customer. As of December 31, 2002, Hometown has reserved
$70,000 against a total maximum payout of $136,000 for these loans. The reserve amount represents
loans that are currently delinquent. Hometown would expect to realize proceeds from the sale of these
vehicles upon repossession of such vehicle. The amount of proceeds, if any, is undetermined due to not
knowing the condition of the vehicles.

The same dealership during fiscal 2000 and 2001 partially guaranteed 52 loans totaling
approximately $600,000 advanced by Ford Motor Credit Co. to a certain limousine customer. As of
December 31, 2002, Hometown has reserved $0 against a total maximum payout of $600,000 for these
loans. Hometown has not reserved for these loans due to the expected fair value of the vehicles
approximating or exceeding the unamortized portion of the loan balance.

There are also 17 loans whose liens were not properly perfected totaling approximately $126,000
as of December 31, 2002. Hometown will be required to pay the remaining loan balance should the
customer’s default on their payments. Hometown is working to perfect these liens and has taken steps to
prevent this from occurring in the future. Hometown has reserved $8,000 for these loans. The reserve
amount represents loans that are currently delinquent. Hometown would expect to realize proceeds from
the sale of these vehicles upon repossession of such vehicle. The amount, if any, is undetermined due to
not knowing the condition of the vehicle.

Hometown will continue to provide a reserve for potential future default losses associated with
the guarantees based on available historical information. The reserve continues to decrease as the loans
are paid off and due to no new loan guarantees being provided by Hometown to customers with below
average credit.

In connection with the acquisition in 1999 of real estate used by Baystate Lincoln Mercury,
Hometown guaranteed the mortgage debt of Rellum Realty Company. The 1999 guaranty was given in
substitution for a February 1998 guaranty of that debt by the Muller Group, a subsidiary of Hometown. In
the event of default by Rellum Realty Company, Hometown is required to make the mortgage payments,
but does not take ownership of the property. As of December 31, 2002 the mortgage debt balance is $4.9
million. Hometown makes annual lease payments of $756,000 to the landlord. The annual mortgage
payments made by the landlord total approximately $774,000. The mortgage matures March 2013. The
lease was recorded as a capital lease. The capital lease obligation is $4.4 million at December 31, 2002.
See Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Company Warrenties

Hometown'’s new vehicle sales and certain used vehicle sales have manufacturer warranties that
specify coverage and period. In these instances, Hometown is reimbursed by the manufacturer for the
cost of parts and service on the vehicle covered by these warranties, as specified by the manufacturer.
Hometown also provides a limited warranty on used vehicles sold at retail. The warranty period is as
agreed upon by the customer and may be subject to a minimum period as mandated by the state. The
typical warranty pericd ranges up to three months. Hometown also sells parts and service. Manufacturer
parts are covered by limited warranties, as specified by the manufacturer. Service also has a limited
warranty; whereby the part and certain labor costs are covered under the limited manufacturer warranty.

Hometown records a reserve referred to as “policy” for used vehicle warranties and the labor
portion of service warranties based on available historical information. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
Hometown has a reserve of $172,000 and $226,000, respectively. The reserve is based on the last three
months of used vehicle units sold and the average cost of repairs over the last twelve months. While
Hometown believes its estimated liability for product warranties is adequate and that the judgment
applied is appropriate, the estimated liability for product warranties could differ materiaily from future
actual warranty costs.

Other revenues generated by sales of extended service plans, finance, insurance and other do not
have any Hometown warranties attached to the sale, except for certain sales in Connecticut dealerships
discussed in “Finance, Insurance and Service Contract Income Recognition™ above.

Seasonality
See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
Franchise Agreements

Each Hometown dealership operates pursuant to a franchise agreement between the applicable
Manufacturer and the dealership. The typical automotive franchise agreement specifies the locations at
which the dealer has the right and the obligation to sell motor vehicles and related parts and products and
to perform certain approved services in order to serve a specified market area. The designation of such
areas and the allocation of new vehicles among dealerships are subject to the discretion of the
manufacturer which generally does not guarantee exclusivity within a specified territory. However, most
states have laws protecting dealership territories. In addition, a franchise agreement may impose
requirements on the dealer concerning such matters as showrooms, facilities and equipment for servicing
vehicles, maintenance of inventories of vehicles and parts, maintenance of minimum net working capital
and training of personnel. Compliance with each of these requirements is closely monitored by the
Manufacturer. In addition, Manufacturers require each dealership to submit a financial statement of
operations on a monthly and annual basis. The franchise agreement also grants the dealer the
non-exclusive right to use and display the Manufacturer's trademarks, service marks and design in the
form and manner approved by the Manufacturer.

Each franchise agreement sets forth the name of the person approved by the Manufacturer to
exercise full managerial authority over the dealership's operations and the names and ownership
percentages of the approved owners of the dealership and contains provisions requiring the
Manufacturer's prior approval of changes in management or transfers of ownership of the dealership. A
number of Manufacturers prohibit the acquisition of a substantial ownership interest in the franchised
dealer or transactions that may affect management control of the franchised dealer, in each case without
the approval of the Manufacturer.
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Most franchise agreements expire within one to five years. Hometown expects to renew any
expiring agreements in the ordinary course of business. The typical franchise agreement provides for
early termination or non-renewal by the Manufacturer under certain circumstances such as change of
management or ownership without Manufacturer approval, insolvency or bankrupicy of the dealership,
death or incapacity of the dealer manager, conviction of a dealer manager or owner of certain crimes,
misrepresentation of certain information by the dealership or dealer manager or owner to the
Manufacturer, failure to adequately operate the dealership, failure to maintain any license, permit or
authorization required for the conduct of business or material breach of other provisions of the franchise
agreement. The dealership is typically entitled to terminate the franchise agreement for any cause.

Various federal and state laws established to protect dealerships from the generally unequal
bargaining power between the parties also govern the automobile franchise relationship. The state statutes
generally provide that it is a violation for a manufacturer to terminate, or to fail to renew, a franchise
without good cause. Most statutes also provide that the manufacturer is prohibited from unreasonably
withholding approval for a proposed change in ownership of the dealership. Generally, in order to
withhold approval, the manufacturer must have material reasons relating to the character, financial ability
or business experience of the proposed transferee. Moreover, certain states including Connecticut, New
Jersey, Massachusetts and Vermont have laws which grant to pre-existing dealers a right to contest, in
court or before an administrative agency, if a manufacturer establishes a new dealership, or authorizes the
relocation of an existing dealership, to a location within a defined market area of a pre-existing dealership
holding a franchise to sell the same brand. Accordingly, the relationship between the Manufacturer and
the dealer, particularly as it relates to a manufacturer's rights to terminate, or to fail to renew, the
franchise, is the subject of a substantial body of case law based upon specific facts in each instance. The
above discussion of state court and administrative holdings and various state laws is based on
management's beliefs and may not be an accurate description of the state court and administrative
holdings and various state laws.

On March 13, 2003, Hometown was notified by Toyota Motor Sales, U.S.A., Inc. that Hometown
must correct certain operational deficiencies or make substantial progress toward rectifying such
deficiencies during the next six months. Toyota has expressed concerns that the financial resources of the
Toyota dealerships are being used to finance the cash flow deficits of affiliated companies and that
because of this the Toyota dealerships do not meet their net working capital requirements by
approximately $1.0 miilion. Toyota has also requested that Hometown provide a written action plan and
consolidated financial forecast. Toyota has also expressed concemns about the impact of Ford Motor
Credit’s financing terms upon the Toyota dealerships and the existing litigation, including the Vergopia’s
as discussed in Item. 3, Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Litigation and in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Hometown is developing plans to correct the operational deficiencies
that would bring Hometown into compliance. These plans include various alternatives such as; obtaining
an outside line of credit, private equity financing, sale of real property, sale of a dealership, and advances
on warranty income from Hometown’s Extended Service Plan vendor. In addition, Hometown will be in
monthly contact with Toyota to review the efforts of Hometown to resolve the deficiencies alleged by
Toyota. The two Toyota dealerships at December 31, 2002 had combined revenues of $100.6 million and
pre-tax income before allocation of corporate costs of $2.5 million. Hometown believes that it will be
able to alleviate the concerns expressed by Toyota; however, Toyota has reserved the right to terminate
the Toyota Dealership Agreements if sufficient progress is not made to correct the alleged deficiencies.
Should Hometown be notified by Toyota that they intend to terminate the Toyota Dealership Agreements,
Hometown believes it would have a reasonable amount of time to cure the default.

Competition

The automotive retailing industry is extremely competitive and consumers generally have a
number of choices in deciding where to purchase or service a new or used vehicle. Hometown competes
for new vehicle sales with other franchised dealers in each of its marketing areas. Hometown does not
have any cost advantage in purchasing new vehicles from the Manufacturers and typically relies on sales

11




expertise, reputation and customer goodwill, the quality of its service and location of its dealerships to sell
new vehicies. In recent years, automobile dealers have also faced increased competition in the sale or
lease of new vehicles from independent leasing companies, on-line purchasing services and warehouse
clubs. Hometown believes that the principal competitive factors in new vehicle sales are the marketing
campaigns conducted by Manufacturers, the ability of dealerships to offer a wide selection of the most
popular vehicles, the location of dealerships and the quality of customer service. Other competitive
factors include customer preference for particular brands of automobiles, pricing (including Manufacturer
rebates and other special offers) and warranties. Hometown believes that its dealerships are competitive in
all of these areas.

In used vehicles, Hometown competes with other franchised dealers, independent used car
dealers, automobile rental agencies and private parties for supply and resale of used vehicles. Hometown
believes that the principal competitive factors in used vehicle sales are the quality and condition of its
used cars, price and the quality of customer service.

Hometown competes against other franchised dealers to perform warranty repairs and against
other automobile dealers, franchised and independent service center chains and independent garages for
non-warranty repair and routine maintenance business. Hometown competes with other automobile
dealers, service stores and automotive parts retailers in its parts operations. Hometown believes that the
principal competitive factors in parts and service sales are price, the use of factory approved replacement
parts, a dealership's expertise with a Manufacturer's brands and models, the quality of customer service
and convenience for the customer.

In addition to competition for the sale of vehicles, Hometown competes with publicly and
privately owned dealership groups for the acquisition of other dealerships. It currently faces only limited
competition in this region from other purchasers of dealerships. Publicly owned dealerships with
significantly greater capital resources have acquired a limited number of dealerships in Hometown's
current and targeted market areas including Group 1 Automotive, Inc. and United Auto Group, Inc. which
have purchased dealerships in the Greater New England area. Hometown expects increased future
competition for dealerships in its markets.

Governmental Regulations

A number of regulations affect Hometown's business of marketing, selling, financing and
servicing automobiles. Hometown is also subject to laws and regulations relating to business corporations
generally.

Under New Jersey, New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts and Vermont law, Hometown must
obtain a license in order to establish, operate or relocate a dealership or piovide certain automotive repair
services. These laws also regulate Hometown's conduct of business, including its advertising and sales
practices. Other states may have similar requirements.

Hometown's financing activities are subject to federal truth-in-lending, consumer leasing and
equal credit opportunity regulations, as well as state and local motor vehicle finance laws, installment
finance laws, insurance laws, usury laws and other instaliment sales laws. Some states regulate finance
fees that may be paid as a result of vehicle sales. Penalties for violation of any of these laws or regulations
may include revocation of certain licenses, assessment of criminal and civil fines and penalties and, in
certain instances, may create a private cause of action for individuals. Hometown believes that its
dealerships substantially comply with all laws and regulations affecting their businesses and do not have
any material liabilities under such laws and regulations, and that compliance with all such laws and
regulations does not and wili not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on
Hometown's capital expenditures, earnings, or competitive position.
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Environmental Matters

Hometown is subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental laws and
regulations, including those governing discharges to the air and water, storage of petroleum substances
and chemicals, handling and disposal of wastes, and remediation of contamination arising from spills and
releases. As with automobile dealerships generally, and service and parts and collision repair center
operations in particular, Hometown's business involves the generation, use, handling and disposal of
hazardous or toxic substances or wastes. Operations involving the management of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are subject to requirements of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and
comparable state statutes. Pursuant to these laws, federal and state environmental agencies have
established approved methods for storage, treatment, and disposal of regulated wastes with which
Hometown must comply.

Hometown's business also involves the use of aboveground and underground storage tanks.
Under applicable laws and regulations, Hometown is responsible for the proper use, maintenance and
abandonment of regulated storage tanks owned or operated by it and for remediation of subsurface soils
and groundwater impacted by releases from such existing or abandoned aboveground or underground
storage tanks. In addition to these regulated tanks, Hometown owns and operates other underground and
aboveground devices or containers (e.g. automotive lifts and service pits) that may not be classified as
regulated tanks, but which are capable of releasing stored materials into the environment, thereby

potentially obligating Hometown to remeditate any contamination of soils or groundwater resulting from
such releases.

Hometown is also subject to laws and regulations governing remediation of contamination at
facilities it operates or to which it sends hazardous or toxic substances or wastes for treatment, recycling
or disposal. The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA"),
also known as the "Superfund" law, imposes liability, without regard to fault or the legality of the original
conduct, on certain classes of persons that are considered to have contributed to the release of a
"hazardous substance” into the environment. These persons include the owner or operator of the disposal
site or sites where the release occurred and companies that disposed or arranged for the disposal of the
hazardous substances released at such sites. Under CERCLA, these "responsible parties” may be subject
to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the hazardous substances that have been released
into the environment, for damages to natural resources and for the costs of certain health studies, and it is
not uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third parties to file claims for personal injury and
property damage allegedly caused by the release of hazardous substances.

Further, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act, and
comparable state statutes prohibit discharges of pollutants into regulated waters without authorized
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and similar state permits, require containment
of potential discharges of oil or hazardous substances, and require preparation of spill contingency plans.
Hometown expects to implement programs that address wastewater discharge requirements as well as
containment of potential discharges and spill contingency planning.

Environmental laws and regulations have become very complex, making it very difficult for
businesses that routinely handle hazardous and non-hazardous wastes to achieve and maintain full
compliance with all applicable environmental laws. Like virtually any network of automobile dealerships
and vehicle service facilities, Hometown, from time to time, can be expected to experience incidents and
encounter conditions that will not be in compliance with environmental laws and regulations. However,
none of Hometown's dealerships have been subject to any material environmental liabilities in the past
and Hometown does not anticipate that any material environmental liabilities will be incurred in the
future. Although Hometown is in the process of establishing an environmental management program that
is intended to reduce the risk of noncompliance with environmental laws and regulations, environmental
laws and regulations and their interpretation and enforcement are changed frequently and Hometown
believes that the trend towards broader and stricter environmental legislation and regulations is likely to
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continue. Hence, there can be no assurance that compliance with environmental laws or regulations or the
future discovery of unknown environmental conditions will not require additional expenditures by
Hometown or that such expenditures would not be material.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, Hometown employed 417 people, of whom approximately 64 were
employed in managerial positions, 96 were employed in non-managerial sales positions, 200 were
employed in non-managerial parts and service positions and 57 were employed in administrative support
positions. .

Hometown believes that its relationships with its employees are favorable. None of the employees
is represented by a labor union. Because of its dependence on the Manufacturers, Hometown may,
however, be affected by labor strikes, work slowdowns and walkouts at the manufacturing facilities of
their Manufacturers or of suppliers to, or shippers for, their Manufacturers. ,

CERTAIN FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT GROWTH AND PROFITS

The following factors may affect the growth or profits of Hometown and should be considered by any
prospective purchaser of Hometown's securities:

A Decrease In Consumer Demand For Our New Vehicle Lines Or The Fallure Of Its Manufacturer
Could Adversely Affect The Results Of Our Operations.

Our business is significantly dependent upon the sale of new vehicles from Ford Motors, Toyota
Motors and Daimler Chrysler. For the year ended December 31, 2002, Toyota Motor, Ford Motor and
Daimler Chrysler accounted for 46.4%, 30.6% and 9.4% of our new vehicle sales, respectively. New
vehicle sales generate the majority of our gross revenue and lead to sales of higher-margin products and
services such as, used vehicle sales, finance and insurance products and repair and maintenance services.
In addition, the success of each of our franchises is also dependent to a great extent on the success of the
respective manufacturer, including its financial condition, marketing, vehicle demand, production
capabilities and management. If one or more of these manufacturers were to suffer from labor strikes,
negative publicity, inciuding safety recalls of a particular vehicle model, or a decrease in consumer
demand for its products, our results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

The Failure To Meet Manufacturers’ Customer Satisfaction Reguirements Could Limit Our
Ability To Acquire Additional Dealerships And Participate In Manufacturers’ Incentive Programs.

Many manufacturers attempt to measure customers' satisfaction with automobile dealerships
through a CSI, or customer satisfaction index, rating system. These manufacturers may use a dealership's
CSI scores as a factor in evaluating applications for additional dealership acquisitions and participation by
a dealership in incentive programs. Additionally, from time to time, the components of the various
manufacturer CSI scores have been modified and there is no assurance that such components will not be
further modified or replaced by different systems in the future, which will make it more difficult for our
key dealerships to meet such standards. If our dealerships fail to meet or exceed their manufacturers' CSI
standards, those manufacturers may prohibit us from acquiring additional dealerships and or participating
in incentive programs which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Manufacturers’ Control over Dealerships

The dealerships operated by Hometown sell cars and light trucks pursuant to franchise or
dealership agreements with Ford Motor, GM, Toyota Motor, Chrysler and Mazda. Through the terms and
conditions of these agreements, such Manufacturers exert considerable influence over the operations of

14




Hometown’s dealerships. Each of these agreements includes provisions for the termination or
non-renewal of the manufacturer-dealer relationship for a variety of causes including any unapproved
change of ownership or management and other material breaches of the franchise agreement.

On March 13, 2003, Hometown was notified by Toyota Motor Sales, U.S.A., Inc. that Hometown
must correct certain operational deficiencies or make substantial progress toward rectifying such
deficiencies during the next six months. Toyota has expressed concerns that the financial resources of the
Toyota dealerships are being used to finance the cash flow deficits of affiliated companies and that
because of this the Toyota dealerships do not meet their net working capital requirements by
approximately $1.0 million. Toyota has also requested that Hometown provide a written action plan and
consolidated financial forecast. Toyota has also expressed concerns about the impact of Ford Motor
Credit’s financing terms upon the Toyota dealerships and the existing litigation, including the Vergopia’s
as discussed in Item. 3, Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Litigation and in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Hometown is developing plans to correct the operational deficiencies
that would bring Hometown into compliance. These plans include various alternatives such as; obtaining
an outside line of credit, private equity financing, sale of real property, sale of a dealership, and advances
on warranty income from Hometown’s Extended Service Plan vendor. In addition, Hometown will be in
monthly contact with Toyota to review the efforts of Hometown to resolve the deficiencies alleged by
Toyota. The two Toyota dealerships at December 31, 2002 had combined revenues of $100.6 million and
pre-tax income before allocation of corporate costs of $2.5 million. Hometown believes that it will be
able to alleviate the concerns expressed by Toyota; however, Toyota has reserved the right to terminate
the Toyota Dealership Agreements if sufficient progress is not made to correct the alleged deficiencies.
Should Hometown be notified by Toyota that they intend to terminate the Toyota Dealership Agreements,
Hometown believes it would have a reasonable amount of time to cure the default.

To its knowledge, Hometown has, to date, complied with its other dealership agreements. There
can be no assurance, however, that Hometown will not from time to time fail to comply with particular
provisions of some or all of these agreements. Although such agreements generally afford Hometown a
reasonable opportunity to cure violations, if a Manufacturer were to terminate or decline to renew one or
more of Hometown’s significant agreements, such action could have a material adverse effect on
Hometown and its business.

If Automobile Manufacturers Discontinue Incentive Programs, Cur Sales Volume or Profit Margin
Could Be Materiaily and Adversely Affected.

We depend on manufacturers for certain sales incentives, warranties and other programs that are
intended to promote and support new vehicle sales. Manufacturers often make many changes to their
incentive programs during each year. Some key incentive programs include:

e customer rebates on new vehicles;

e dealer incentives on new vehicles;

e special financing or leasing terms;

e warranties on new and used vehicles; and

e sponsorship of used vehicle sales by authorized new vehicle dealers.
A reduction or discontinuation of our key manufacturers' incentive programs may materially and
adversely affect our revenues or profitability.

We May Not Be Able To Retain Key Existing Employees Or Attract And Retsin Qualified
Employees.

Our success depends to a large extent upon the abilities and continued efforts of its senior
executive officers and key managers including Corey Shaker, William C. Muller Jr., Joseph Shaker,
Steven Shaker and Charles Schwartz and on our ability to attract and retain qualified employees to
operate our dealerships. If any of these persons becomes unavailable to continue in such capacity, or if
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Hometown were unable to attract and retain other qualified employees, its business or prospects could be
adversely affected.

Continued Losses May Threaten The Viability Of Our Business.

Hometown had a net loss of $22.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to a
net loss of $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The 2002 net loss was due to recording
the write-off of the carrying value of goodwill of $23.7 million in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 142. Without the write-off of goodwill, Hometown showed an improvement of $2.9 million in
2002 when compared to the 2001 pericd. Although the write-off was a non-cash transaction, if Hometown
continues to sustain significant losses in the future, our business could be materially and adversely
affected and the value of our common stock will likely decline or become worthless.

Qur Limited Cash And Working Capital Could Have An Adverse Affect On Our Busimess.

At December 31, 2002, our total cash and cash equivalents was approximately $3.6 million and
our working capital was approximately $4.1 million. If we sustain net losses in 2003 or subsequent years,
then we may have insufficient working capital to maintain our current level of operations or provide for
unexpected contingencies. In such event, we will need to seek additional capital from public or private
equity or debt funding sources and we may not be able to raise needed cash on terms acceptable to us or
at all. Financings may be on terms that are dilutive or potentially dilutive to our stocknolders. If sources
of financing are required, but are insufficient or unavailable, we will be required to modify our growth
and operating plans to the extent of available funding, which could have an adverse affect on our
business. :

The Cyclicel Nature of Automobile Sales May Adversely Affect Our Profitability.

Sales of motor vehicles, particularly new vehicles, historically have been subject to substantial
cyclical variation characterized by oversupply and weak demand. We believe that the industry is affected
by many factors, including general economic conditions, consumer confidence, the level of personal
discretionary spending, interest rates and credit availability. There can be no assurance that the industry
will not experience sustained periods of decline in vehicle sales, particularly new vehicle sales, in the
future. Any such decline could have a material adverse affect on our business.

Governmental Restrictions On Imported Products Could Impair Our Ability To Sell Foreign
Vehicles Profitably.

A portion of our new vehicle business involves the sale of vehicles, parts or vehicles composed of
parts that are manufactured outside the United States. As a result, our operations will be subject to
customary risks of importing merchandise, including fluctuations in the value of currencies, import duties,
exchange controls, trade restrictions, work stoppages and general political and economic conditions in
foreign countries. The United States or the countries from which our products are imported may, from
time to time, impose new quotas, duties, tariffs or other restrictions, or adjust presently prevailing quotas,
duties or tariffs, which could affect our operations and our ability to purchase imported vehicles and/or
parts.

The Concentration of Voting Power Could Prevent Our Class A Common Stockholders From
Having Any Voice In Qur Corporate Affairs.

The holders of our Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes for each share held, while
holders of our Class A common stock, are entitled to one vote per share held. Consequently, the holders
of the Class B common stock, who also own approximately 64% of our outstanding common stock of all
classes, will control approximately 93% of the aggregate number of votes eligible to be cast by
stockholders for the election of directors and certain other stockholder actions, and will be in a position to
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control our policies and operations. In addition, the holders of the Class B common stock have entered
into a stockholders’ agreement obligating them, for a five-year period which expires July 2003, to vote for
two designees of each of the three founding dealership groups, as directors on Hometown’s Board of
Directors. Those designees are now, Salvatore A. Vergopia, Joseph Shaker, William C. Muller Jr., Corey
Shaker, Edward A. Vergopia and H. Dennis Lauzon. Qur executive officers and directors control
approximately 56% of the aggregate number of votes eligible to be cast by stockholders for the election of
directors and certain other stockholder actions, and will be in a position to control our policies and
operations. Accordingly, absent a significant increase in the number of shares of Class A common stock
outstanding or conversion of Class B common stock into Class A common stock, the holders of shares of
Class B common stock will be entitled, for the foreseeable future, to elect all members of the Board of
Directors and control all matters subject to stockholder approval.

Regulations Affecting Low Price Securities Could Impair The Liguidity Of Our Class A Common
Stock.

The Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted regulations which generally define "penny
stock" to be an equity security that has a market price, as defined, of less than $5.00 per share or an
exercise price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions, including an exception of an
equity security that is quoted on The Nasdaq Stock Market. Equity securities trading on the NASD "OTC
Bulletin Board" are subject to rules that impose additional sales practice requirements on broker-dealers
who sell our securities. For transactions covered by these rules, the broker-dealer must make a special
suitability determination for the purchaser of such securities and have received the purchaser's written
consent to the transactions prior to the purchase. Additionally, unless exempt, the rules require the
delivery, prior to the transaction, of a disclosure schedule prepared by the Securities and Exchange
Commission relating to the penny stock market. The broker-dealer also must disclose the commissions
payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered underwriter, current quotations for the securities and,
if the broker-dealer is the sole market-maker, the broker-dealer must disclose this fact and the broker-
dealer’s presumed control over the market. Finally among other requirements, monthly statements must
be sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held in the account and information on the
limited market in penny stocks. Since February 2001 our Class A common stock has been trading on the
NASD OTC Bulletin Board, as a penny stock, and therefore is subject to these additional rules. As such,
these penny stock rules may restrict the ability of stockholders to sell our Class A common stock.
Consequently, the liquidity of our Class A common stock could be impaired, not only in the number of
securities which could be bought and sold, but also through delays in the timing of transactions, reduction
in security analysts and new media coverage of Hometown, and lower prices for our securities than might
otherwise be obtained.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Set forth in the table below is certain information relating to the properties that Hometown uses in
its business.

Oecupant/Trade Location Use Lease/Own

Name '

Shaker's 831 Straits Turnpike New and used car sales; Lease expires in 2013; $240,000
Lincoln Watertown, CT service; F& [ per year with CPI increases in 2004
Mercury - 06795 and 2009.

Lincoln 1189 New Haven Rd. Service Owned by dealership.

Mercury Naugatuck, CT
Autccare 06770

Family Ford 1200 Wolcott Street New and used car sales; Lease expires in 2013; $240,000

Waterbury, CT service; F & [ per year with CPI increases in 2004
06705 and 2009.
Shaker's Jeep 1311 South Main St. New and used car sales; Lease expires in 2013; $72,000 per
Eagle Waterbury, CT service; F & [ year with CPI increases in 2004
06706 and 2009.

Westwood 55 Kinderkamack New and used car sales; Lease expires in 2013; $360,000
Lincoln Rd. Emerson, NJ service; F & I; livery per year with CPI increases in 2004

Mercury 07630 sales and 2009.
Muller Toyota Route 31 and Van New and used car sales; Lease expires in 2013; $360,000
Sickles Rd. Clinton, service;F &1 per year with CPI increases in 2004
NJ 08809 and 2009. Hometown guarantees

morigage debt associated with this
lease. The lease is treated as a
capital lease.

Muller Route 173 and New and used car sales; Lease expires in 2013; $396,000
Chevrolet, Voorhees Rd. service; F & I per year with CPI increases in 2004
Oldsmobile Stewartsville, NJ and 2009. Hometown guarantees

08865 mortgage debt associated with this

lease. The lease is treated as a
capital lease.

Wellesley 965 Worcester Road New and User car sales; Lease expires 12/22/08 at $216,000
Mazda Wellesley, MA service; F&I per year, one five year renewal
02181 option at the same rent; and option
to purchase at the end of term or
end of extension term at the then
fair market value.

Bay State 371 Worcester Road New and used car sales; Owned facility. Mortgage balance
Lincoln Framingham, MA service; F & [ of $5,117,000 at 12/31/02. Matures
Mercury 01701 5/1/2014. Annual payments of

$748,000.
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Brattleboro

Chrysler
Plymouth

Dodge Sales;

Morristown
Auto Sales,
Inc.

Hometown
Auto
Retailers,
Inc.

Autos of
Newburgh,
Inc. d/b/a
Toyota of
Newburgh

Autos of
Newburgh,
Inc. d/b/a
Toyota of
Newburgh

Autos of
Newburgh,
Inc. d/b/a
Toyota of
Newburgh

Leases

Route 5, Putney Rd.
N. Brattleboro, VT
05304

115 Spring St.
Morristown, NJ
07960

774 Straits Tumpike
Watertown, CT.
06795

2934 Rte 9 W
New Windsor, NY
12553

334 Route 9W
New Windsor, NY
12553

336 Route 9W
New Windsor, NY
12553

New and used car sales;
service; F & |

New and used car sales;

service; F & 1

Administrative and
Corporate offices

New and used car sales;
service; F & I

New and used car sales;
F&I

Service and
administrative

Lease expires 7/31/03 at $240,000
per year,; one five-year renewal
option, exercised 1/28/03, at the
same rent plus CPI adjustment, and
option to purchase at fair market
value of not less than $1.5 million.

Dealership sold in January, 2001.
Lease expires 6/30/05 at $180,000
per year. Lease was assigned to a
third party in May, 2001. Assignee
stopped paying rent in June 2002.
See Item 3. - Legal Proceedings.

Lease expires 11/30/04 at $60,000
per year; first five-year renewal
option at $70,000 per year and
second five-year renewal option at
$80,000 per year.

Owned facility. Mortgage balance
of $3,141,000 at 12/31/02. Matures
5/1/2014. Annual payments of
$462,000.

Lease expires 10/14/06 at $73,800
per year, increasing by a CPI
adjustment in the final two years;
one five-year renewal option at the
previous year rent plus CPI
adjustment for each year of the
extension.

Lease expires 12/31/03 at $36,636
per year; one five-year renewal
option at the previous year rent
plus CPI adjustment for each year
of the extension.

Hometown has leased from various affiliates the premises occupied by certain of its dealerships.
Each of the governing leases became effective as of the closing of the initial public offering, has a term
expiring in 2013, is on a triple net basis and provides for a consumer price index ("CPI") increase to the
base rent for the five-year periods commencing January 1, 2004 and 2009. Hometown believes that each
lease was at their fair market value at inception.

Shaker Group. Hometown leases, for an initial annual base rental of $240,000, the premises occupied
by its Lincoln Mercury dealership in Watertown, Connecticut, and for an initial base rental of
$240,000 and $72,000 respectively, the premises occupied by the Family Ford and Shaker Jeep/Eagle
dealerships in Waterbury, CT from Shaker Enterprises, a Connecticut general partnership whose seven
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partners include Joseph Shaker, Corey Shaker, Steven Shaker and Janet Shaker. Corey Shaker is the
CEQ, Director and a principal stockholder of Hometown. Steven Shaker is the Regiomal Vice
President - North Division and a principal stockholder of Hometown. Joseph Shaker is the Regional
Vice President-East Division, Director and a principal stockholder of Hometown. Janet Shaker is a
principal stockholder of Hometown.

Muller Group. Hometown leases, for an initial annual base rental of $360,000 and $396,000 respectively
the premises occupied by its Toyota (“Toyota”) dealership in Clinton, New Jersey and its
Chevrolet/Oldsmobile (“Chevy™) dealership in Stewartsville, New Jersey from Rellum Realty Company,
a New Jersey general partnership, one of whose two partners is William C. Muller Jr. Mr. Muller is
Regional Vice President-South Division, director and a principal stockholder of Hometown. The Toyota
and Chevy leases are treated as capital leases. In connection with the acguisition in 1999 of real estate
used by Baystate Lincoln Mercury, Hometown guaranteed the mortgage debt of Rellum Realty Company.
The 1999 guaranty was given in substitution for a February 1998 guaranty of that debt by the Muller
Group, a subsidiary of Hometown. As of December 31, 2002 the mortgage debt balance is $4.9 miliion.
Hometown makes annual lease payments of $756,000 to the landlord. The annual mortgage payments
made by the landlord total approximately $774,000. The mortgage matures March 2013.

Westwood. Hometown leases, for an initial annual base rental of $360,000 the premises occupied by its
Lincoln Mercury dealership in Emerson, New Jersey from Salvatore A. Vergopia and his wife.
Mr. Vergopia is a director and a principal stockholder of Hometown.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In May 2001, Hometown’s wholly-owned subsidiary Morristown Auto Sales, Inc.
(“Morristown”) assigned tc Crestmont MM, L.P. (the “Assignee”) the lease for the premises, where it was
operating its Lincoln Mércury dealership in Morristown, New Jersey. On or about July 12, 2002,
Morristown received nctice from the landlord that the Assignee had not paid the required monthly rent,
maintained the premises in accordance with the lease, nor provided the required insurance for the
premises. In September 2002, Hometown received notice of a complaint filed by the landlord against
Hometown, Morristown and certain former officers seeking payment of rent and other obligations through
June 2005. In October 2002, Morristown filed a complaint against the Assignee to recover any potential
damages from the Assignee as provided under the lease assignment. The Assignee has made a claim
against Hometown for breach of the assignment agreement and misrepresentation of the use of the subject
property. The Assignee has also brought a claim against Morristown’s president, Hometown’s Chief
Executive Officer, for misrepresentation. Total anticipated costs for the remainder of the lease term,
through June 20085, is $540,000 for rent plus certain other costs. Hometown believes it has meritorious
defenses to the claim and counterclaim and intends to vigorously defend this action. Hometown does not
believe that the eventual cutcome of the case will have a material adverse effect on Hometown’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In July 2002, Hometown received notice of a complaint filed by the Trust Company of New
Jersey (“Trust Company”) for payment under certain guaranty agreemenis allegedly made by
Hometown’s wholly-owned subsidiary Westwood Lincoln Mercury Sales, Inc. (“Westwood”) in favor of
Trust Company in connection with a sale of vehicles in 1998. Trust Company is seeking approximately
$390,000 plus other costs. Hometown does not believe that Westwood has any obligations under the
guaranty agreements due to certain actions taken by Trust Company in relation to the underlying debt, the
debtor and other guarantors. Hometown believes it has meritorious defenses and intends to vigorously
defend this action. Hometown does not believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material
adverse effect on Hometown’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

On or about February 7, 2001, Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia, directors and
formerly executive officers of Hometown, and Janet Vergopia, the wife of Salvatore A. Vergopia (the
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“Vergopias™) filed a complaint in the Superior Court of New Jersey in Bergen County, against
Hometown, its officers and directors, certain holders of its Class B common stock, and certain other
unnamed persons, alleging breach of two employment agreements, wrongful termination of employment,
breach of a stockholders’ agreement and certain other wrongful conduct, including age discrimination and
breach of fiduciary duty. The Vergopias are seeking back pay, front pay, compensatory, consequential
and punitive damages, in an unspecified amount as well as, reinstatement, injunctive and other legal and
equitable relief. Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia have also commenced a second action
for defamation against Hometown and its Chief Executive Officer, which has been consolidated with the
action initially filed.

We have retained litigation counsel to represent us in this action. A motion has been granted such
that only a single shareholder remains as an individual shareholder defendant. Also, Hometown has filed
counterclaims to recover damages associated with the Vergopia’s breaches of certain agreements, as well
as breaches of their fiduciary duties. Discovery is proceeding in this action.

We believe that the Vergopias commenced this action in response to our dismissal of both
Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia from their officerships and employment positions with
us. We believe we have meritorious defenses and are vigorously defending this action. Hometown does
not believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material adverse effect on Hometown’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Universal Underwriters Group (“Universal”), Hometowns insurance provider, commenced a
lawsuit against The Chubb Group of Insurance Companies (“Chubb”), Hometown’s Director and Officer
Liability Insurance provider, Hometown, certain officers, directors and shareholders of Hometown and
the Vergopias seeking a declaration of its coverage obligations with respect to the suit brought by the
Vergopias discussed above. The suit has been consolidated with the suit brought by the Vergopia’s for
discovery and case management purposes. Universal originally acknowledged its obligation to defend and
indemnify Hometown against the Vergopia’s claims and engaged separate counsel to represent
Hometown and its directors. Universal is now seeking to limit its obligations under the comprehensive
insurance policy as well as require Chubb, to share in defense and indemnity obligations. Hometown
originally commenced an action seeking affirmative declaration of its rights under its policy with
Universal, but allowed this action to be stayed pending a resolution of the action brought by Universal.
Hometown has brought counterclaims against Universal and a cross-claim for declaratory judgment
against Chubb. Hometown maintains that the insurers are obligated to defend and indemnify on all claims
brought by the Vergopias. Discovery is ongoing on this matter. Hometown believes it has meritorious
claims and is vigorously defending this action and prosecuting its counterclaims and cross-claims.
Hometown does not believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material adverse effect on
Hometown’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSICON OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None
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ITEM S. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) Market Information

Hometown's Class A Common Stock had been traded on The NASDAQ National Market under
the symbols "HCAR" since July 31, 1998. On February 12, 2001, Hometown’s stock was delisted by
NASDAQ for failing to meet minimum share price and market capitalization requirements. The stock

PART I

now trades over the counter as a Bulletin Board stock under the symbol "HCAR.OB"

The following table sets forth the high and low bid prices as quoted by The NASDAQ Naticnal
Market through February 11, 2001 and the NASD OTC Bulletin Board for periods thereafter. Such
quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or commission and may not

necessarily represent actual transactions.

Price Range of Common Stock
Year Ended 2001
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter
Year Ended 20062
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

{1} Holders

{c) Dividends

dividends in the foreseeable future.

(@) Equity Compensation Plan Information

There are no new compensation plans in 2002.

Bid Prices

$1.00
$1.25
$1.15

$1.00

$0.95
$0.74
$0.52

$0.90

22

Low

$0.38
$0.35
$0.60

$0.51

$0.52
$0.40
$0.18

$0.18

As of March 3, 2003, the number of record holders of the Class A Common Stock of Hometown
was 51 . Hometown believes it has more than 800 beneficial holders.

The holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by
Hoemetown’s Board of Directors. Hometown has not paid and does not expect to declare or pay any




The following selected financial data as of December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 have

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Hometown.

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues $269,739  $275,760 $279,382 $285,315 $121,435
Gross profit 38,667 39,815 37,881 38,054 17,287
Amortization of goodwill - 704 661 600 212
Loss from operations of e-Commerce
subsidiary - - - 515 -
Selling, general and adminisirative expenses 33,978 35,114 37,946 31,499 17,267
Income (loss) from operations 4,689 3,997 (726) 5,440 (192)
Interest expense (3,379)  (4,225)  (5,069)  (4,116)  (1,514)
Net income (loss) before cumulative effect of
accounting change 776 (2,136) (3,800) 641 (1,094)
Cumulative effect of accounting change (23,708) - - - -
Net income (loss) $(22,932) $(2,136) $(3,800) § 641 $(1,094)
Earnings {loss) per share, basic :
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 0.10 § (32) $ (63) $ .11 § (3D
Cumulative effect of accounting change (3.30) - - - -
Eamings (loss) per share, basic $§ (3200 $ (32) § (63 §$ A1 % (3D
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $§ 0.10 $§ (32) § (63) $ .11 § (31)
Cumulative effect of accounting change (3.30) - - - -
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted $ (3200 $§ (32) $ (63) § A1 § (31
Weighted average shares,
Basic 7,175,102 6,592,436 5,995,996 5,875,342 3,513,333
Diluted 7,175,102 6,592,436 5,995,996 6,003,851 3,513,333
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Bailance Sheet Data:
Working capital $ 4,085 $ 4,029 $ 1,663 § 3,870 $ 4,649
Inventories 39,169 31,887 40,170 51,187 30,418
Total assets 63,816 81,842 91,572 102,562 71,977
Total debt 52,745 46,234 54,133 65,910 37,265
Stockholders’ equity $ 4550 $ 27452 § 28,643 $ 29,851 § 28,210
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIES OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

Effective January 1, 2002, Hometown adopted FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”. At that time, the Company ceased recording goodwill amortization. SFAS 142
requires the completion of a transitional impairment test in the year of adoption, with any impairment
identified upon initial implementation treated as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for additional disclosure.

Under SFAS 142, goodwill impairment is deemed to exist if the net book value of a reporting unit
exceeds its estimated fair value. According to the criteria under SFAS 142, it has been determined that the
Company is a single reporting unit.

During 2002, Hometown completed its goodwill impairment testing in connection with the
adoption of SFAS 142, which resulted in Hometown recording a one-time, non-cash charge of
approximately $23.7 million to recognize an impairment of the carrying value of goodwill. This charge is
non-operational in nature and is reflected as a cumulative effect of an accounting change in the
accompanying statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2002. Hometown has recorded
the $23.7 miilion charge in 2002. Approximately $9.6 million of this charge is tax deductible, resulting in
a deferred tax benefit of approximately $3.8 million against which a full valuation allowance was
recorded. See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The effect of the charge on the restated first quarter financial statements and second quarter
financial statements is as follows:

Three Months Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended Ended
March 31, 2002 June 30, 2002 June 30, 2002
(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands)
(restated) (restated)
Reported net income $ 235 $ 309 $ 544
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting
change (23,708) - (23,708)
Adjusted net income (loss) $(23,473) $ 309 $(23,164)

Earnings (loss) per share, Basic

Reported net income $ 003
Cumulative effect of accounting

change (3.30)
Adjusted net income (loss) » $(327)

Earnings (loss) per share, Diluted
Reported net income § 003
Cumulative effect of accounting

change (3.30)
Adjusted net income (loss) $ 327
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Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001

Revenue

Total revenue decreased $6.1 million, or 2.2% to $269.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2002 from $275.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Adjusting for the sale of the
Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership ($0.2 million) in January 2001 tc Lincoln Mercury, the decrease
is $5.9 million. This decrease was primarily due to decreased sales of used vehicles sold at retail ($13.2
million) primarily due to a decrease of 745 units, partially offset by increased new vehicle sales ($6.0
million) primarily due to an increase of 206 units, and increased sales of used vehicles sold at wholesale
(51.8 million). New vehicle sales were helped by the continuation of consumer financing deals, such as
zero percent financing, which in turn contributed to the decrease in used vehicle sales.

Revenue from the sale of new vehicles increased $5.9 million, or 3.7% to $164.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from $158.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Adjusting for
the sale of the Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership ($0.1 million) in January 2001 to Lincoln
Mercury, the increase is $6.0 million. The increase is primarily due to increases at Hometown’s Toyota
(33.1 million}, Chevy ($4.5 million) and Mazda ($2.7 million) dealerships partially offset by decreases at
Hometown’s Lincoln Mercury dealerships ($4.6 million). The Toyota increase was primarily due to an
additional 128 units sold in 2002 compared to 2001 of which 110 units were attributable to fleet sales
($1.3 million). The remaining increase of $1.8 million was attributable to both an increase of 18 units
(80.4 million) and a 2.2% increase in the average selling price ($1.4 million). The increase in the Chevy
dealership was due to the sale of 189 additional units sold in 2002 ($4.7 million) compared to 2001,
partially offset by a 1.3% decrease in average selling price in 2002 ($0.2 million). The increase in the
Mazda dealership was due to the sale of 131 additional units sold in 2002 ($3.0 million) compared to
2001, partially offset by a decrease of 5.4% in average selling price in 2002 ($0.3 million) compared to
2001. The decreases at the Lincoln Mercury dealerships were primarily due to a decrease of 237 units
sold in 2002 compared to 2001. This was net of an increase of 99 livery units ($3.7 million). Excluding
livery units, the Lincoln Mercury dealerships had decreased revenue of $8.3 million, primarily due to a
decrease of 336 units. This represents a 24.9% decrease in units from the 2001 period.

Revenue from the sale of used vehicles decreased $11.4 million, or 13.6% to $72.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from $83.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The effect
from the sale of the Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership in January 2001 to Lincoln Mercury was
minimal. This decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease of 990 units of which 745 were units sold
at retail. Most Hometown dealerships experienced decreases in this area. A Lincoln Mercury / Mazda
dealership accounted for $4.5 million of this decrease. This was primarily due to the dealership reducing
emphasis on its high-end used car line during the second quarter of 2002, as Hometown experienced a
significant drop off in demand for its high-end used car line and increased weakness on financing for
these vehicles as the economy has weakened. Although Hometown still sells high-end used cars, it is not
expected to be a significant portion of revenues from sales of used cars at retail. The Toyota dealerships
accounted for a $2.6 million decrease due to a decrease of 267 units ($3.7 million) sold at retail partially
offset by a slight increase in average selling price ($0.1 million) and in units sold at wholesale ($1.0
million). The Ford dealership had a decrease of $1.8 million, primarily due to a decrease of 144 units
(82.0 million) sold at retail partially offset by a slight increase in average selling price ($0.1 million) and
in units sold at wholesale ($0.1 million). The Chevy dealership had a decrease of $0.9 million, comprised
of a decrease of 137 units ($1.4 million) sold at retail, partially offset by a 14.1% increase in average
selling price ($0.8 million). In addition, Chevy had a decrease in units sold at wholesale (§0.3 million).
The Jeep dealerships had a decrease of $1.5 million, due to a decrease of 35 units ($0.5 million) sold at
retail partially and a decrease in average selling price ($0.5 million) and in units sold at wholesale (80.5
million).

Parts and service sales revenue decreased $1.1 million, or 4.3% to $24.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 from $25.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Hometown’s
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Toyota dealerships increased $0.5 million, while all other dealerships decreased $1.6 million from the
prior year. One of these dealerships had undergone construction of a new showroom, which Hometown
believes negatively impacted the amount of traffic in the service department. This dealership accounts for
$0.7 million of the decrease. Another dealership accounted for a decrease of $0.5 million. The effect from
the sale of the Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership in January 2001 to Lincoln Mercury was minimal.

Other dealership revenues increased $0.7 million, or 9.2% to $8.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 from $7.6 million for the vear ended December 31, 2001. This increase was
attributable to other revenues generated from new car sales such as finance, insurance and extended
service contract income partially offset by decreases in other dealership revenues for used vehicles. The
effect from the sale of the Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership in January 2001 to Lincoln Mercury
was minimal.

Gross Proffit

Total gross profit decreased $1.1 million, or 2.8%, to $38.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2002 from $39.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease was primarily
attributable to a decrease in gross profit on used vehicles of $1.0 million, a decrease in parts and service
gross profit of $0.6 million and a decrease in new vehicle gross profit of $0.1 million partially offset by
an increase in other dealership gross profit of $0.7 million discussed above. The effect on all components
of gross profit from the sale of the Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership in January 2001 to Lincoln
Mercury was minimal. Gross profit percentage for Hometown was 14.3% in 2002 compared to 14.4% in
the 20C! period. Adjusting both periods for Toyota fleet sales, discussed in new vehicles below and the
sale of Morristown Lincoln Mercury, gross profit percentage was 14.7% in the 2002 and 2001 periods.
The discussions that follow adjust for the sale of the Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership.

Gross profit on the sale of new vehicles decreased $0.1 million, or 1.0%, to $10.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from $10.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Gross profit
percentage for 2002 was 6.3% compared to 6.6% for 2001. Adjusting for Toyota fleet sales in both
periods, gross profit percentage was 6.6% and 6.9% in the 2002 and 2001 periods, respectively. The
Lincoln Mercury dealerships had a $0.3 million decrease in gross profit caused by a decrease of 237 units
partially offset by a 6.6% increase in gross profit per unit. This decrease is net of an increase of 99 livery
units, which accounted for an increase of $0.2 million in gross profit at the Lincoln Mercury dealerships.
Offsetting this is increased volume (189 units) and a 6.6% increase in gross profit per unit at the Chevy
dealership generated an additional $0.3 million gross profit in 2002 compared to 2001. The remaining
dealerships combined for a net decrease in gross profit of $0.1 million generated from a 7.6% decrease in
gross profit per unit ($0.5 million) partially offset by an increase of 254 units ($0.4 million).

Gross profit on the sale of used vehicles decreased $1.0 million, or 13.0%, to $6.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from $7.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease
was primarily attributable tc a decrease of 990 units of which 745 were sold at retail. Gross profit
percentage was 9.2% for both periods. As discussed in revenues above, most Hometown dealerships
experienced decreases in this area. A Lincoln Mercury / Mazda dealership accounted for $0.8 million of
this decrease. This was primarily due to the dealership reducing emphasis on its high-end used car line
during the second quarter of 2002, as Hometown experienced a significant drop off in demand for its
high-end used car line and increased weakness on financing for these vehicles as the economy has
weakened. Although Hometown still sells high-end used cars, it is not expected to be a significant portion
of revenues from sales of used cars at retail. The Toyota and Ford dealerships accounted for a decrease of
$0.4 million primarily due to a decrease of revenues discussed above. The Chevy dealership was down
slightly due to a decrease of 389 units ($0.3 million), 137 unit decrease at retail and 252 unit decrease at
wholesale, that was offset by an increase in gross profit per unit ($0.3 million). The Jeep dealerships
generated an additional gross profit of $0.1 million due tc increased gross profit per unit partially offset
by a decrease in units.
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Parts and service gross profit decreased $0.6 million or 4.3%, to $13.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 from $13.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease was
primarily attributable to decreased revenues discussed above, Related gross profit margin was 54.7% and
54.8% for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Amortization of Goodwill

According to SFAS 142, the Company ceased recording goodwill amortization on January 1,
2002. Goodwill amortization was $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. See Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Seliing, general and administrative expenses decreased $1.1 million, or 3.1%, to $34.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002 from $35.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
decrease is primarily due to higher reserves of $0.8 million in the 2001 period compared to 2002. Other
decreases in costs in 2002 compared to 2001 are advertising and promotion costs of $0.2 million, salaries
and related taxes of $0.2 million, and data processing costs of $0.1 million. These decreases were partially
offset by an increase in employee benefits of $0.1 million and increased insurance costs of $0.1 million.

Interest Income

Interest income decreased to $43,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $90,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease is primarily the result of higher interest rates in 2001
compared to 2002. Partially offsetting this was the investing of excess cash in interest bearing accounts
effective with the implementation of the floor plan agreement with Ford Motor Credit Corp. (“FMCC”) in
March 2001. Hometown’s previous credit agreement provided that Hometown apply excess cash against
the outstanding floor plan liability.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $0.8 million, or 19.0%, to $3.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2002 from $4.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease is primarily attributable
to a decrease in floor plan interest expense, which decreased due to a reduction in interest rates from the
year ended December 31, 2001.

Other Income

Included in other income for the year ended December 31, 2002 is $40,000 received .from
insurance claims. Inciuded in other income for the year ended December 31, 2001 is a $254,000 gain on
sale of the Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership to Lincoln Mercury in January 2001.

Other Expense

Included in other expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 is an asset impairment charge of
$150,000 related to a property held for sale. The impairment charge was recorded to write-down the asset
to fair value. See Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Valuation Adjustment for CarDay, Inc.

On October 18, 2001, CarDay, Inc. ceased operations. Hometown owned 7,380,000 shares of
CarDay, Inc. As a result of CarDay, Inc. ceasing operations, Hometown now considers the investment to
be permanently and totally impaired, and it is not anticipated that any shareholders will receive any
distributions from the dissolution of CarDay, Inc. The entire investment in CarDay, Inc. of $3,258,000
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less an associated deferred tax liability of $1,175,000 was charged against income in the quarter ended
September 30, 2001. The charge has the effect of reducing net income for the year ended December 31,
2001 by $2,083,000 and reducing Earnings per Share, fully diluted for the year by $0.32. Excluding the
charge, net loss for 2001 was $(53,000) or less than $(0.01) per share fully diluted. The charge did not
affect cash, cash flow from operations, or liguidity and capital resources.

Provision (Benefit) for income tax

The effective income tax rate was 38% for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 32% for the
year ended December 31, 2001. The primary difference in the effective tax rates for the two periods is
primarily non-deductible goodwili amortization in the 2001 period. According to SFAS 142, Hometown
ceased recording gocdwill amortization on January 1, 2002, and in 2002, recognized the impairment of
the carrying value of its goodwill. Hometown has a deferred tax asset of $0.9 million, net of a valuation
allowance, related to its net operating losses. The net operating losses begin to expire in 2017. Hometown
believes this deferred tax asset will be realized within the next three years based on current projections.

Income (Loss) Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change increased $2.9 million to income of
$0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from a loss of $(2.1) million for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The increase is primarily due to the valuation adjustment for Carday, Inc. in the 2001
period. See other changes described above.

Cumulative Efffect of Accounting Change

In accordance with SFAS 142, Hometown completed its goodwill impairment testing during
2002, which resulted in Hometown recording a one-time, non-cash charge of approximately $23.7 million
to write-off the carrying value of goodwill. This charge is non-operational in nature and is reflected as a
cumulative effect of an accounting change in the accompanying statement of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2002. Approximately $9.6 million of this charge is tax deductible, resulting in a
deferred tax benefit of approximately $3.8 million against which a full valuation allowance was recorded.
See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Net Income (Loss)

Net loss increased $20.8 million to $(22.9) million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from a
loss of $(2.1) million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increased loss is primarily due to the
write-off of the carrying value of goodwill in the 2002 period partially offset by the valuation adjustment
for Carday, Inc. in the 2001 period. See other changes described above.

Eagrnings (Loss) Per Share, Basic and Diluted and Weighted Average Shares

“Basic earnings (loss) per share” is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted
average common shares outstanding. “Diluted earnings (loss) per share” is computed by dividing net
income (loss) by the weighted average common shares outstanding adjusted for the incremental dilution
of potentially dilutive securities. Options and warrants to purchase approximately 1,378,000 and
1,283,000 shares of common stock were outstanding as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The options and warrants were not included in the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share
because the option and warrant prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares or
the effect would have been anti-dilutive.

The basic and diluted (loss) per share for the year ended December 31, 2002 is $(3.20), which
includes basic and diluted income per share before cumulative effect of accounting change of $0.10 and
basic and diluted (loss) per share for a cumulative effect of accounting change of $(3.30), resulting from
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the goodwill impairment charge associated with the implementation of SFAS 142. The basic and diluted
(loss) per share for the year ended December 31, 2001 is ${0.32). See Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements for the effect of discontinuing the recording of goodwill amortization effective January 1, 2002

and recognition of an impairment of the carrying value of its goodwill in 2002, in accordance with SFAS
142.

The weighted average shares, basic and diluted, for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
are 7.2 million shares and 6.6 million shares, respectively. The weighted average shares for the basic and
diluted calculation are the same due Hometown incurring a net loss in both periods.

Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Yeer Ended December 31, 2000

Revenues

New vehicle sales decreased $14.0 million or 8.1% to $158.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 from $172.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Approximately $5.5
million of the decrease was due to the sale of our Morristown Lincoln Mercury location in January, 2001
to Lincoln Mercury. The remaining $8.5 million decrease is primarily due to decreases at Hometown’s
remaining Lincoln Mercury dealerships ($22.7 million decrease) partially offset by increases at
Hometown’s Toyota ($9.3 million increase) and Ford ($3.1 million increase) locations. The decreases at
the Lincoln Mercury locations were due to a decrease of 753 units sold in 2001 compared to 2000.
Included in this decrease was a 51.4% reduction in livery sales of $7.8 million or 202 units. The decrease
in volume was reflected in all of Lincoln Mercury, which reported a 14.7% decrease in sales nationally in
2001 compared to 2000. This compares to the 25.4% decrease in Lincoln Mercury sales for the Company
excluding livery sales. One of Hometown’s Lincoln Mercury dealerships, located in the New York
Metropolitan area, was particularly affected by the downturn in the economy over the previous year,
which accounts for the decrease beyond the national average. The Toyota increase was primarily due to
an additional 379 units sold in 2001 compared to 2000. Toyota now has the highest unit sales per retail
outlet in the country. The increase in the Ford location was due to the sale of 102 additional light trucks
in 2001 over 2000 partially offset by a decrease of 57 cars. The additional trucks also had a higher

average selling price due to increased sales of the Expedition and sales of new vehicles such as the
Excursion. '

Used vehicle sales increased by $8.3 million or 11.0% to $83.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001, from $75.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Adjusting for the sale of
the Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership ($2.4 million), the increase is $10.7 million. The increase is
primarily due to having a full year of resuits of a high-end used car business that was purchased in the
fourth quarter of 2000. The dealership that acquired this business accounted for an increase of 424 retail
units or $8.3 million over the prior year. The increase was primarily due to the increased volume. All
other dealerships accounted for an increase in revenues of $0.7 million which was generated by an 1.9%
increase in average selling price ($1.1 miilion) offset by a slight decrease of 28 units ($0.4 million). The

remaining $1.7 million increase was associated with 14.7% increase in average revenue per wholesale
unit,

Parts and service sales increased by $1.5 million or 6.3%, to $25.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 from $23.9 million at December 31, 2000. Adjusting for the sale of the Morristown
Lincoln Mercury dealership ($0.9 million), the increase is $2.4 million. The increase in parts and service
is due to: (i) the acquisition of a high-end used car dealership at the end of 2000 that enabled the
dealership to generate an additional $0.7 million of parts and service revenues in 2001 and (ii) the hiring
of new service managers in certain dealerships as well as increased focus of the dealerships toward
generating higher parts and service revenues ($1.7 million).

Other dealership revenues increased by $0.5 million or 7.0%, to $7.6 million for the year ended
- December 31, 2001 from $7.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Adjusting for the sale of the
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Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership ($0.1 million), the increase is $0.6 million. This increase is
primarily due to both increased sales of extended service contracts associated with increased used car
sales, and additional income associated with the decrease in deferred revenue (§0.1 million) from the
change in accounting for insurance and service contracts for the Connecticut dealerships.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $39.8 million, an increase of $1.9 million
or 5.0%, compared with $37.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Gross profit on sales of new vehicles decreased $0.4 million or 3.6%, from $11.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000 to $10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Gross profit on
same store new vehicle sales decreased by $0.1 million or 0.9% from the prior year primarily due to a
decrease of 314 units, primarily Lincoln Mercury (753 units) partially offset by Toyota (379 units) and
Ford (45 units) discussed in new vehicle revenues above, partially offset by an increase in gross profit
margin of 4.1% compared to the prior year.

Gross profit on sales of used vehicles was $7.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, an
increase of $1.1 million or 16.6%, from $6.6 million in the prior year. Excluding the sale of the
Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership, the increase is $1.0 million. This increase was attributable to: (i)
having a full year of results of a high-end used car business that was purchased in the fourth quarter of
2000 (as discussed in revenues above). The dealership that acquired this business accounted for additional
gross profit of $1.0 million of which $0.7 million was from an increase of 424 retail units and $0.3
million was from a 22.8% increase in gross profit per unit. (ii) All other dealerships decreased $0.3
million primarily due to a 3.1% decrease in average gross profit per unit. (iii) A $0.3 million decrease in
wholesale losses in 2001 compared to 2000. Larger than normal wholesale losses due to the demand for
used cars and trucks not keeping up with supply were reflected in the year ended December 31, 2000.

Parts and service sales yielded gross profit of $13.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2001,
an increase of $0.8 million or 6.1%, from $13.1 million for the prior year. Adjusting for the sale of the
Morristown Lincoln Mercury dealership the increase is $1.3 million. The increase is primarily due to the
aforementioned increase in related revenues.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Seliing, general and administrative expenses decreased $2.8 million or 7.4%, from $37.9 miliion
for the year ended December 31, 2000, to $35.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
decrease is primarily attributable to several non-recurring events in 2000 totaling approximately $3.5
million partially offset by an increase in salaries and employee benefits of approximately $0.6 million.
The increase in salaries was primarily due to increases associated with the inclusion of a full year of
results of a high-end used car dealership that was purchased in the fourth quarter of 2000 ($0.5 million)
combined with increases at the Toyota and Ford dealerships ($0.8 million). This was partially offset by
the sale of the Morristown dealership ($0.5 million) and decreases at other Lincoln Mercury locations
($0.4 million). The 2000 non-recurring events include: (1) The write-off of a receivable and associated
legal fees of approximately $800,000 from Autotech Leasing (“Autotech™ as Autotech filed for
bankruptcy protection. Autotech was a leasing company that provided alternative financing for primarily
one of Hometowns dealerships. Hometown no longer has this type of relationship with a leasing
company. (2) Defauit of certain livery vehicle loans which Hometown had guaranteed in the amount of
approximately $825,000. The vehicles were socld to high-risk customers and the transaction was
guaranteed by Hometown. Hometown no longer enters into this type of arrangement. (3) The write-off of
certain receivables totaling approximately $700,000 from specialty financing companies due to a
modification of Hometown’s strategy in working with customers with poor credit history. Hometown has
discontinued the practice of entering into recourse transactions. (4) Approximately $400,000 of bank/legal
fees associated with a discontinued bank facility. (5) A reserve for future expenses associated with the.
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dismissal of the former Chairman and CEQ and Vice President. Although the litigation with the former
Chairman / CEQO and Vice President is ongoing, Hometown believes that its legal reserves are adequate.
See “Management Discussion & Analysis— Litigation”.

Interest Income

Interest income increased to $90,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 from $1,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2000. The increase is the result of the new floor plan agreement with Ford
Motor Credit Corp., which began March 2001 and allows us to invest excess cash in interest bearing

accounts. Our previous credit agreement provided that we apply excess cash against the outstanding floor
plan liability.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $0.9 million to $4.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001
from $5.1 million for the same period in 2000. The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in the average

floor plan liability for the year caused by better management of inventory levels as well as a decrease in
interest rates from the year ended December 31, 2000.

Other Income

Included in other income is a $254,000 gain on sale of the Morristown Lincoln Mercury
dealership to Lincoln Mercury in January 2001.

Valuation Adjustment for CarDay.com

On October 18, 2001, CarDay, Inc. ceased operations. Hometown owns 7,380,000 shares of

CarDay, Inc. It is not anticipated that any shareholders will receive any distributions from the dissolution
of CarDay Inc.

CarDay, Inc. began operations in 1999 as an 82% owned subsidiary of Hometown. For the year
ended December 31, 1999, the assets, liabilities and results of operations of CarDay Inc. were included in
Hometown’s financial statements. In January 2000, CarDay, Inc. obtained $25 million in financing from
a group of venture capital providers. The result of this financing was to reduce Hometown’s ownership
from 82% to 10.7% and to increase the carrying value of its investment to $3,258,000. Subsequent to this
dilution of ownership, Hometown no longer reflected the assets, liabilities and results of operations of
CarDay, Inc. in its consolidated financial statements because ownership had been reduced to an amount

below 20%. Hometown recorded the increase in value of the investment, net of a deferred tax liability, as
an increase in additional paid-in capital.

As a result of CarDay, Inc. ceasing operations, Hometown now considers the investment to be
permanently and totally impaired. The entire investment in CarDay, Inc. of $3,258,000 less an associated
deferred tax liability of $1,175,000 has been charged against income in the quarter ended September 30,
2001. The charge has the effect of reducing net income for the year by $2,083,000 and reducing Earnings
per Share, fully diluted, for the year by $0.32. Excluding the charge net loss was ($53,000) or less than
(80.01) per share fully diluted for the year ended December 31, 2001. The charge does not affect cash,
cash flow from operations, or liquidity and capital resources.

Net Income (loss)

Net loss decreased from a loss of $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 to $2.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2001, a decrease of $1.7 million or 44.7%. As described above
this is due to improvements in gross profit, the absence of the non-recurring charges included in prior year
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses and decreased interest expense, partially offset by the
write-off of CarDay, Inc.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share, Basic and Diluted and Weighted Average Shares

“Basic earnings (loss) per share” is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted
average common shares outstanding. “Diluted earnings (loss) per share” is computed by dividing net
income (loss) by the weighted average common shares outstanding adjusted for the incremental dilution
of potentially dilutive securities. Options and warrants to purchase approximately 1,283,000 and 482,000
shares of common stock were outstanding as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The options
and warrants were not included in the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share because the option
and warrant prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares or the effect would
have been anti-dilutive. The Company had potentially dilutive securities related to a stock guarantee
issued in connection with an acquisition of approximately 1,900,000 common shares as of December 31,
2000 that was not included in the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share because the effect
would have been anti-dilutive.

The basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
are ($.32) and (8.63), respectively.

The weighted average shares, basic and diluted, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
are 6.6 million shares and 6.0 million shares, respectively. The weighted average shares for the basic and
diluted calculation are the same due to Hometown incurring a net loss in both periods.

Cyclicality

Hometown's operations, like the automotive retailing industry in general, are affected by a
number of factors relating to general economic conditions, including consumer business cycles, consumer
confidence, economic conditions, availability of consumer credit and interest rates. Although the above
factors, among others, may affect Hometown's business, Hometown believes that the impact on
Hometown's operations of future negative trends in such factors will be somewhat mitigated by its (i)
strong parts, service and collision repair services, (ii) variable cost salary structure, (ili) geographic
regional focus, and (iv) product diversity.

Seasonality

Hometown's operations will be subject to seasconal variations, with the second and third quarters
generally contributing more revenues and operating profit than the first and fourth guarters. This
seasonality is driven primarily by: (i) Manufacturer related factors, primarily the historical timing of

major Manufacturer incentive programs and model changeovers, (ii) weather-related factors, which
primarily affect parts and service and (iii) consumer buying patterns.

Effects of Inflation

Due to the relatively low levels of inflation experienced in fiscal 2001 and 2002, inflation did not
have a significant effect on the results of Hometown during those periods.

Liguidity and Capitel Resources
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2002 and 2001, was $3.6 millicn and $4.4
million, respectively.
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Cash Flow from Operations

The following table sets forth the consolidated selected information from the statements of cash
flow:

For the years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
\ (in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,386 $ 3,278 § 481
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,439) 350 (1,148)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,76%9) 232 (382)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (822) $ 3,860 $(1,049)

Net cash provided from operations of $3.4 million is primarily due to: (i) the net loss of $(22.9)
million plus non-cash items of $25.5 million, including cumulative effect of accounting change of $23.7
million and (ii) the increase in floor plan liability in excess of the increase in inventory of $0.7 million.
Reductions in accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other assets were mostly offset by reductions in
accounts payable and accrued expenses. Net cash used in investing activities of $2.4 million is primarily
due to capital expenditures associated with the construction of a new showroom at our Framingham,
Massachusetts dealership. Net cash used in financing activities of $1.8 million is primarily due to
principal payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures for 2003 are expected to be $0.4 million, consisting of equipment purchases
(30.3 million) and the remaining costs associated with the construction of the building of a new
showroom at our Framingham, Massachusetts dealership ($0.1 million).

Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. Actual amounts could differ

from those estimates. A summary of our significant accounting policies are presented in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues for vehicle and parts sales are recognized upon delivery to or acceptance by the
customer. Revenues for vehicle service are recognized when the service has been completed. Sales
discounts and service coupons are accounted for as a reduction to the sales price at the point of sale.
Manufacturer incentives and rebates, are not recognized until eamed in accordance with respective
manufacturers incentive programs.

Finance, Insurance and Service Contract Income Recognition

Hometown arranges financing for customers through various institutions and receives financing
fees equal to the difference between the loan rates charged to customers and the predetermined financing
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rates set by the financing institution. Hometown receives payment of finance fees from the financing
institution approximately 30 days after the financing institution receives the contract. In addition,
Hometown receives commissions from the sale of credit life and disability insurance based on the
premiums charged to the customer by the insurance company; and commissions from the sale of extended
service contracts to customers based on the difference between the price paid by the customer for the
service contract and the premium paid to the primary obligor. These commissions are received upfront at
the time the vehicle was sold. The revenues from financing fees and commissions are generally recorded
at the time of the sale of the vehicles. Hometown is not the principal in these transactions. Hometown
acts as the agent for the financing institution or vendor that is providing the service. These revenues are
recorded on a net basis.

Connecticut dealerships operate under state laws, which make the dealers responsible for
providing warranty service and insurance in the event of default by the insurance carriers. Accordingly,
commissions on insurance and service contract sales are required to be recognized over the life of the
related insurance product. For these dealerships, Hometown records the revenue as a liability and
amortizes the amount into revenue over a five-year pericd. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, Hometown
had $1,237,000 and $1,264,000 of related deferred revenue, respectively. During 2002, these dealerships
generated approximately $498,000 of related warranty service and insurance revenue, which was
deferred. During the same period, approximately $525,000 of deferred revenue was amortized to Cther
Revenues, net. At December 31, 2002, Hometown also had other deferred revenue of $94,000.

Hometown may be charged back (“‘chargebacks”) for uneamed financing fees, insurance or
service contract commissions in the event of early termination of the contracts by the customers. For
finance fees, if a customer were t¢ terminate their contract prior to the scheduled maturity, generally three
to five years, Hometown may be charged back for a portion of the finance fee received. The time pericd
whereby Hometown is subject to chargebacks is generally 90 days or in some cases 120 days. For certain
other contracts Hometown is subject to chargebacks for the life of the loan. Generally, if a customer
makes their first three payments and subsequently pays off the loan, Hometown will not be charged back
by the financing institution. Hometown pays for this in the form of a reduction of the finance fee. In the
case of insurance or service contracts, Hometown is subject to chargebacks for the life of the related
insurance policy or service contract. In the case of early termination, the vendor will bill us back a pro-
rated portion of our commission. The reserves for future charge backs are based on historical operating
results and the termination provisions of the applicable contracts. At the time of sale, Hometown records
finance, insurance and service contract income, net of estimated chargebacks. This is included in other
dealership revenue in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Receivables

Hometown had $4.9 million in accounts receivable, net at December 31, 2002 compared to $5.7
million at December 31, 2001. The majority of those receivables, $2.8 million and $3.2 millicn as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, are due from finance companies that provide or secure
financing for customer purchases, and primarily represent contracts-in-transit. These amounts are
typically received within seven days of the transaction. Of the remaining amount, $1.3 million and $1.4
million as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, represents amounts due from manufactures for
such items as wairanty claims and incentive reimbursements. Additional amounts are parts, service and
other trade receivables. In assessing our allowance for doubtful accounts, we consider historical losses as
well as current performance with respect to past due accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is
$0.2 million and $0.3 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Inventories

Hometown had $39.2 million in inventories, net at December 31, 2002 compared to $31.9 million
at December 31, 2001. The majority of inventory, $29.2 million and $21.7 million as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively, is new vehicle inventory. The increase in new vehicle inventory is primarily
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due to the fourth quarter of 2001 being benefited by zero percent financing on many new vehicles which
caused a surge in new vehicle sales during that period resulting in a decrease of new vehicle inventory at
December 31, 2001. The 2002 period did not have any such surge in sales, resulting in increased
inventory compared to the 2001 period. New, used and demonstrator vehicle values are stated at the lower
of cost or market, determined on a specific unit basis. Parts and accessories are stated at the lower of
cost (determined on a first-in, first-out basis) or market. Hometown assesses the lower of cost or market
reserve requirement for vehicles, on an individual unit basis, taking into consideration historical loss
rates, the age and composition of the inventory and curreni market conditions. The lower of cost or
market reserves were $0.6 million at both December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Private Equity Financing

On July 23, 2001, the Board of Directors voted in favor of raising up to $1.5 million in a private
equity financing through the sale of Units to accredited investors at a price of $2.00 per Unit. Each Unit
consists of two shares of Class A Common Stock of Hometown plus a warrant to purchase one additional
share at an exercise price of $1.20 per share, exercisable within a three-year period. On July 19, 2001,
agreements were signed with 10 accredited investors and a total of 974,996 Class A Common shares were
issued, as follows:

Investor # of Units Purchased # of Shares Issued/
Total Proceeds
Corey Shaker 35,714 71,428
Steven Shaker 35,714 _ 71,428
Janet Shaker 35,714 71,428
Richard Shaker 35,714 71,428
Joseph Shaker 35,714 71,428
Edward Shaker 35,714 71,428
Edward D. Shaker 35,714 71,428
William C. Muller Trust 100,000 200,000
William Muller, Jr. 100,000 200,000
Paul Yamin 37.500 75.000
Total 487,498 974,996

Corey Shaker, Steven Shaker and William Muller, Jr. are officers of Hometown. Joseph Shaker
was a Director of Hometown in July 2001 and became an officer of Hometown in August 2002.

The above was recorded as an increase in additional paid in capital in July 2001. At December
31, 2001, William Muller, Jr. owed Hometown $30,000. This is recorded in subscriptions receivable
which is a reduction to additional paid in capital at December 31, 2001. This was subsequently paid to
Hometown during the second quarter of 2002 and was recorded as a paid subscription receivable which is
an addition to paid in capital.

Floor Plan Financing

Since March 15, 2001, Hometown has a floor plan line of credit at each dealership with Ford
Motor Credit Corporation (“FMCC”). The FMCC floor plan agreement provides financing for vehicle
purchases and is secured by and dependent upon new and used vehicle inventory levels. Maximum
availability under the FMCC agreement is a function of new and used car sales and is not a pre-
determined amount. As of December 31, 2002, Hometown’s floor plan liability with FMCC is $38.5
million. The FMCC agreement has no set maturity date and it is the intention of Hometown to continue
with this financing on an ongoing basis.
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For the first year of the agreement, through May 2002, the FMCC floor plan loans carried an
interest rate of prime less 0.75% for new vehicles and prime less 0.50% for used vehicles. From March
15, 2001 through December 31, 2001, interest ranged from 4.00% to 7.25% for new vehicles and from
4.25% to 7.50% for used vehicles. From January 1, 2002 through May 31, 2002, interest was
approximately 4.0% for new vehicles and 4.25% for used vehicles.

In June 2002, Hometown renewed its floor plan agreement with FMCC and is now subject to the
FMCC standard financing agreement which provides for floor plan loans for new and used vehicles that
have variable interest rates that increase or decrease based on movements in the prime or LIBOR
borrowing rates and FMCC financing volume. Interest rates for the remainder of 2002 were
approximately 4.25% for new vehicles and 6.5% for used vehicles. At December 31, 2002, interest rates
were approximately 4.25 % for new vehicles and 6.0% to 6.5% for used vehicles.

Prior to March 15, 2001, Hometown had a revolving line of credit with GE Capital Corporation
(“GECC”). The GECC agreement provided financing for Hometown’s vehicle purchases as well as
operating expenses. Interest rates on the GECC floor plan arrangements ranged from 9.2% to $.9% during
2001, through its close in March 2001, and 7.4% to 9.4% during 2000. The arrangement included a
swing line that handled daily loan activity. The balance of the swing line was swept into the floor plan
line once monthly. The interest rates on the swing line ranged from 9.1% to 9.6% during 2001 and from
8.6% to 9.6% during 2000.

Automobile manufacturers periodicaily provide floor plan interest assistance, or subsidies, which
reduce the dealer’s cost of financing. The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect interest
expense gross. Floor plan interest assistance is recorded as a reduction of cost of sales when the vehicle is
sold.

Other Indebtedness

In addition to floor plan financing, Hometown has long-term debt and capital lease obligations of
$14.2 million, which is primarily attributable to real estate morigage notes payable of $8.3 million due in
monthly installments including interest at 10.0% that matures in May 2014, real estate capital lease
obligations of $4.4 million due in monthly instaliments including interest at 10.0% that matures in March
2013, and capital lease obligations on rental vehicles of $1.2 million due in monthly installments
including interest ranging from 6.0% to 10.0% that matures in March 2013 .

As of December 31, 2002, Hometown has the following contractual obligations:

(In thousands)
Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007  Thereafter
Floor Plan $38,522 $38,522
Long term debt
and capital lease
obligations $14,223 § 1,164 $1,077 $1,129 $1,043 § 968 § 8,842

Operating leases:
Third parties $i3,617 $ 1,884 $1,862 $1,613 $1,442 $1,368 $ 5,448
Related parties $ 9,652 § 912 § 912 § 912 § 912 § 912 $ 5,092

Total $76,014 $42,482 $3,851 $3,654 $3,397 §$3,248 $ 19,382
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Company Guarentees

Hometown guarantees or partially guarantees loans advanced by financial institutions to certain
customers. It is Hometown’s policy to provide reserves for potential future default losses based on
available historical information.

One of Hometown’s dealerships, prior to fiscal 2000, had entered into various arrangements
whereby Hometown guaranteed or partially guaranteed loans advanced by financial institutions to certain
customers as follows:

{i) Portfolio of 13 customer’s limousine vehicle loans granted by Ford Motor Credit Co. As of
December 31, 2002, Hometown fully and partially guaranteed limousine vehicle loans
aggregating approximately $103,000.

(i) Portfolio of 4 vehicle loans, granted by a financial institution, to various customers of the
dealership with below average credit. As of December 31, 2002, Hometown fully guaranteed
vehicle loans associated with these customers aggregating approximately $33,000.

The guarantees in (i) and (ii) above are related to loans whereby Hometown is required to pay the
remaining loan balance upon default by the customer. As of December 31, 2002, Hometown has reserved
$70,000 against a total maximum payout of $136,000 for these loans. The reserve amount represents
loans that are currently delinquent. Hometown would expect to realize proceeds from the sale of these
vehicles upon repessession of such vehicle. The amount of proceeds, if any, is undetermined due to not
knowing the condition of the vehicles.

The same dealership during fiscal 2000 and 2001 partially guaranteed 52 loans totaling
approximately $600,000 advanced by Ford Motor Credit Co. to a certain limousine customer. As of
December 31, 2002, Hometown has reserved $0 against a total maximum payout of $600,000 for these
loans. Hometown has not reserved for these loans due to the expected fair value of the vehicles
approximating or exceeding the unamortized portion of the loan balance.

There are also 17 loans whose liens were not properly perfected totaling approximately $126,000
as of December 31, 2002. Hometown will be required to pay the remaining loan balance should the
customer’s default on their payments. Hometown is working to perfect these liens and has taken steps to
prevent this from occurring in the future. Hometown has reserved $8,000 for these loans. The reserve
amount represents loans that are currenily delinquent. Hometown would expect to realize proceeds from
the sale of these vehicles upon repossession of such vehicle. The amount, if any, is undetermined due to
not knowing the condition of the vehicle.

Hometown will continue to provide a reserve for potential future default losses associated with
the guarantees based on available historical information. The reserve continues to decrease as the loans

are paid off and due to no new loan guarantees being provided by Hometown to customers with below
average credit.

In connection with the acquisition in 1999 of real estate used by Baystate Lincoln Mercury,
Hometown guaranteed the mortgage debt of Rellum Realty Company. The 1999 guaranty was given in
substitution for a February 1998 guaranty of that debt by the Muller Group, a subsidiary of Hometown. In
the event of default by Rellum Realty Company, Hometown is required to make the mortgage payments,
but does not take ownership of the property. As of December 31, 2002 the mortgage debt balance is $4.9
million. Hometown makes annual lease payments of $756,000 to the landlord. The annual mortgage
payments made by the landlord total approximately $774,000. The mortgage matures March 2013. The
lease was recorded as a capital lease. The capital lease obligation is $4.4 million at December 31, 2002.
See Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Company Warrenties

Hometown’s new vehicle sales and certain used vehicle sales have manufacturer warranties that
specify coverage and period. In these instances, Hometown is reimbursed by the manufacturer for the
cost of parts and service on the vehicle covered by these warranties, as specified by the manufacturer.
Hometown also provides a limited warranty on used vehicles sold at retail. The warranty period is as
agreed upon by the customer and may be subject tc a minimum period as mandated by the state. The
typical warranty period ranges up to three months. Hometown also sells parts and service. Manufacturer
parts are covered by limited warranties, as specified by the manufacturer. Service also has a limited
warranty; whereby the part and certain labor costs are covered under the limited manufacturer warranty.

Hometown records a reserve referred to as “policy” for used vehicle warranties and the labor
portion of service warranties based on available historical information. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
Hometown has a reserve of $172,000 and $226,000, respectively. The reserve is based on the last three
months of used vehicle units scld and the average cost of repairs over the last twelve months. While
Hometown believes its estimated liability for product warranties is adequate and that the judgment
applied is appropriate, the estimated liability for product warranties could differ materially from future
actual warranty costs.

Balance At Additions To Costs Balance At

Reserve for Policy Work  Beginning of Year and Expenses Deductions End of Year
Year Ended 12/31/02 $226,000 $800,000 $(854,000)  $172,000
Year Ended 12/31/01 $158,000 $947,000 $(879,000)  $226,000
Year Ended 12/31/00 $180,000 $775,000 $(797,000)  $158,000

Other revenues generated by sales of extended service plans, finance, insurance and other do not
have any Hometown warranties attached to the sale, except for certain sales in Connecticut dealerships
discussed in “Finance, Insurance and Service Contract Income Recognition” above.

Franchise Agreements

Cn March 13, 2003, Hometown was notified by Toyota Motor Sales, U.S.A., Inc. that
Hometown must correct certain operational deficiencies or make substantial progress toward rectifying
such deficiencies during the next six months. Toyota has expressed concerns that the financial resources
of the Toyota dealerships are being used to finance the cash flow deficits of affiliated companies and that
because of this the Toyota dealerships do not meet their net working capital requirements by
approximately $1.0 million. Toyota has also requested that Hometown provide a written action plan and
consolidated financia! forecast. Toyota has also expressed concerns about the impact of Ford Motor
Credit’s financing terms upon the Toyota dealerships and the existing litigation, including the Vergopia’s
as discussed in Item. 3, Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Litigation and in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Hometown is developing plans to correct the operational deficiencies
that would bring Hometown into compliance. These plans include various alternatives such as; obtaining
an outside line of credit, private equity financing, sale of real property, sale of a dealership, and advances
on warranty income from Hometown’s Extended Service Plan vendor. In addition, Hometown will be in
monthly contact with Toyota to review the efforts of Hometown to resolve the deficiencies alleged by
Toyota. The two Toyota dealerships at December 31, 2002 had combined revenues of $100.6 million and
pre-tax income before allocation of corporate costs of $2.5 million. Hometown believes that it will be
able to alleviate the concerns expressed by Toyota; however, Toyota has reserved the right to terminate
the Toyota Dealership Agreements if sufficient progress is not made to correct the alieged deficiencies.
Should Hometown be notified by Toyota that they intend to terminate the Toyota Dealership Agreements,
Hometown believes it would have a reasonable amount of time to cure the default.
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Acquisitions and Dispositions

_ In January 2001, Hometown sold the franchise for its Morristown, NJ store back to Lincoln
Mercury for $0.7 million in cash. Hometown received the purchase price plus $40,000 for parts returned,
and paid out a broker’s commission of $35,000. The transaction resulted in Hometown recording a
$254,000 gain on the sale, which is included in other income.

Hometown guaranteed the stock that was issued in connection with the Toyota of Newburgh
acquisition in 1999 would have a market value of at least $1,000,000 by March 31, 2001. On June 28,
2001, an agreement was signed with the former owners settling the guarantee whereby Hometown issued
200,000 shares of Hometown stock and paid $240,000, paid in monthly installments through December
31, 2002 and a monthly profit sharing payment equal to 20% of Newburgh Toyota’s monthly pre-tax
income over $57,142 for the period from April 1, 2001 to December 31, 2002.

Related Party Transactions

Hometown has leased from various affiliates the premises occupied by certain of its dealerships
and guaranteed the related mortgage debt of certain dealerships. Each of the governing leases became
effective as of the closing of the initial public offering, has a term expiring in 2013, is on a triple net basis
and provides for a consumer price index ("CPI") increase to the base rent for the five-year periods
commencing January 1, 2004 and 2009. Total expense for operating leases and rental agreements with
related parties was $0.9 million for the year ending December 31, 2002 and future minimum payments
under these lease agreements as of December 31, 2002 is $9.7 million. Two of the leases are treated as
capital leases. Total payments for these leases were $0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.
This practice is fairly common in the automotive retail industry. See Item 13 — “Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions”.

At December 31, 2002, $122,000 is due from related parties, including a non-interest bearing note
receivable ($85,000) from a company owned by an officer of Hometown. The note is being paid to

Hometown at $3,000 per month. Other related party receivables are being paid back at approximately
$900 per month.

Litigation

In May 2001, Hometown’s wholly-owned subsidiary Morristown Auto Sales, Inc.
(“Morristown”) assigned to Crestmont MM, L.P. (the “Assignee”) the lease for the premises, where it was
operating its Lincoln Mercury dealership in Morristown, New Jersey. On or about July 12, 2002,
Morristown received notice from the landlord that the Assignee had not paid the required monthly rent,
maintained the premises in accordance with the lease, nor provided the required insurance for the
premises. In September 2002, Hometown received notice of a complaint filed by the landlord against
Hometown, Morristown and certain former officers seeking payment of rent and other obligations through
June 2005. In October 2002, Morristown filed a complaint against the Assignee to recover any potential
damages from the Assignee as provided under the lease assignment. The Assignee has made a claim
against Hometown for breach of the assignment agreement and misrepresentation of the use of the subject
property. The Assignee has also brought a claim against Morristown’s president, Hometown’s Chief
Executive Officer, for misrepresentation. Total anticipated costs for the remainder of the lease term,
through June 2005, is $540,000 for rent plus certain other costs. Hometown believes it has meritorious
defenses to the claim and counterclaim and intends to vigorously defend this action. Hometown does not
believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material adverse effect on Hometown’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In July 2002, Hometown received notice of a complaint filed by the Trust Company of New
Jersey (“Trust Company”) for payment under certain guaranty agreements allegedly .made by
Hometown’s wholly-owned subsidiary Westwood Lincoln Mercury Sales, Inc. (“Westwood™) in favor of
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Trust Company in connection with a sale of vehicles in 1998. Trust Company is seeking approximately
$390,000 plus other costs. Hometown does not believe that Westwood has any obligations under the
guaranty agreements due to certain actions taken by Trust Company in relation to the underlying debt, the
debtor and other guarantors. Hometown believes it has meritorious defenses and intends to vigorously
defend this action. Hometown does not believe that the eventual cutcome of the case will have a material
adverse effect on Hometown’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

On or about February 7, 2001, Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia, directors and
formerly executive officers of Hometown, and Janet Vergopia, the wife of Salvatore A. Vergopia (the
“Vergopias™) filed a complaint in the Superior Court of New Jersey in Bergen County, against
Hometown, its officers and directors, certain holders of its Class B common stock, and certain other
unnamed persons, alleging breach of two employment agreements, wrongful termination of employment,
breach of a stockholders’ agreement and certain other wrongful conduct, including age discrimination and
breach of fiduciary duty. The Vergopias are seeking back pay, front pay, compensatory, consequential
and punitive damages, in an unspecified amount as well as, reinstatement, injunctive and other legal and
equitable relief. Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia have also commenced a second action
for defamation against Hometown and its Chief Executive Officer, which has been consolidated with the
action initially filed.

We have retained litigation counsel to represent us in this action. A motion has been granted such
that only a single shareholder remains as an individual shareholder defendant. Also, Hometown has filed
counterclaims to recover damages associated with the Vergopia’s breaches of certain agreements, as well
as breaches of their fiduciary duties. Discovery is proceeding in this action.

We believe that the Vergopias commenced this action in response to our dismissal of both
Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia from their officerships and employment positions with
us. We believe we have meritorious defenses and are vigorously defending this action. Hometown does
not believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material adverse effect on Hometown’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Universal Underwriters Group (“Universal”), Hometowns insurance provider, commenced a
lawsuit against The Chubb Group of Insurance Companies (“Chubb”), Hometown’s Director and Officer
Liability Insurance provider, Hometown, certain officers, directors and shareholders of Hometown and
the Vergopias seeking a declaration of its coverage obligations with respect to the suit brought by the
Vergopias discussed above. The suit has been consolidated with the suit brought by the Vergopia’s for
discovery and case management purposes. Universal originally acknowledged its obligation to defend and
indemnify Hometown against the Vergopia’s claims and engaged separate counsel to represent
Hometown and its directors. Universal is now seeking to limit its obligations under the comprehensive
insurance policy as well as require Chubb, to share in defense and indemnity obligations. Hometown
originally commenced an action seeking affirmative declaration of its rights under its policy with
Universal, but allowed this action to be stayed pending a resolution of the action brought by Universal.
Hometown has brought counterclaims against Universal and a cross-claim for declaratory judgment
against Chubb. Hometown maintains that the insurers are obligated to defend and indemnify on all claims
brought by the Vergopias. Discovery is ongoing on this matter. Hometown believes it has meritorious
claims and is vigorously defending this action and prosecuting its counterclaims and cross-claims.
Hometown does not believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material adverse effect on
Hometown’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Quanvirative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on our amounts outstanding under
our floor plan financing arrangement, which bears interest at variable rates based on the prime or LIBOR
borrowing rates. Based on floor plan amounts outstanding at December 31, 2002 of $38.5 million, a 1%
change in the borrowing rate would result in a $0.4 million change to annual floor plan interest expense.
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Hometown invests excess cash, $2.4 million at December 31, 2002, in a money market account
that was paying interest of 1.03% at December 31, 2002.

New Accounting Pronouncemenis

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of SFAS 123.
SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123 to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the
fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. The three methods
allowed are the (i) prospective method, (i) modified prospective method and (iii) retroactive restatement
method. The prospective method was previously the only permitted transition method under SFAS 123.
Under this method, the recognition provisions apply to all employee awards granted, modified or settled
after the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption of SFAS 123. The company would continue to use the
Opinion 25 intrinsic value method to account for all prior awards. Under the modified prospective
method, SFAS 123 fair value based accounting is applied to all awards granted, meodified or settled in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1994, the effective date of SFAS 123, but only for measuring
compensation cost for the year of change and future years. No prior years are restated. Under the
retroactive restatement methed, the company applies the fair value method to all awards granted,
modified, or settled in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1994. The company would be required
to restate compensation cost and net income for all income statements presented. Restatement of periods
prior to the presented is permitted but not required.

In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement 123 to require
prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. This statement
is effective for financial statements with fiscal years ending afier December 15, 2002. As allowed by
SFAS 148, Hometown has elected not to use one of the alternative methods of transition available for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation.
Hometown accounts for this plan under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting
Principles Board {“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related
Interpretations. See Notes 2 and Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for additional disclosure.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantors Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others an
interpretation of SFAS 5, 57 and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34. This Interpretation
elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements
about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required
to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in
issuing the guarantee. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of this Interpretation are
applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified afier December 31, 2002. The
disclosure requirements in this Interpretation are effective for financial statements of interim or annual
periods ending after December 15, 2002. Hometown is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of
FASB Interpretation No. 45 on Hometown’s financial statements.

In July 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 146, Accounting
for Restructuring Costs. SFAS 146 applies to costs associated with an exit activity (including
restructuring) or with a disposal of long-lived assets. Those activities can include eliminating or reducing
product lines, terminating employees and contracts, and relocating plant facilities or personnel. Under
SFAS 146, a company will record a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity when
that liability is incurred and can be measured at fair value. SFAS 146 will require a company to disclose
information about its exit and disposal activities, the related costs, and changes in those costs in the notes
to the interim and annual financial statements that include the period in which an exit activity is initiated
and in any subsequent period until the activity is completed. SFAS 146 is effective prospectively for exit

41




or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, with earlier adoption encouraged. Under SFAS
146, a company may not restate its previously issued financial statements and the new Statement
grandfathers the accounting for liabilities that a company had previously recorded under Emerging Issues
Task Force Issue 94-3. The adoption of SFAS 146 is not expected to have a material impact on
Hometown’s financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets” which supercedes SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
to be Disposed Of” and the accounting and reporting provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion
(APB) 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations - Reporting the Effects of the Disposal of a Segment
Business and Extraordinary, Unusual, and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”. SFAS 144
addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment and disposal of long-lived assets.
Discontinued operations accounting will be used for a component of an entity and future operating losses
of discontinued operations will no longer be accrued. Additionally, assets acquired and held for disposal
are recorded based on fair value less cost to sell at the acquisition date. SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001. Hometown adopted SFAS 144 at January 1, 2002 and it did not
have a material impact on Hometown’s financial statements.

In June 2001, the FASB approved SFAS Nos. 141 and 142 “Business Combinations” and
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, respectively. SFAS 141, among other things, eliminates the
"Pooling of Interests” method of accounting for business acquisitions entered into after June 3G, 2001.
SFAS 142, among other things, eliminates the need to amortize goodwill and requires companies to use a
fair-value approach to determine whether there is an impairment of existing and future goodwill.

Additionally, an acquired intangible asset should be separately recognized if the benefit of the
intangible asset is obtained through contractual or other legal rights, or if the intangible asset can be scld,
transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, regardless of the acquirer’s intent to do so. Intangible assets
with definitive lives will need to be amortized over their useful lives. These statements are effective for
Hometown beginning January 1, 2002.

Hometown adopted this statement effective January 1, 2002, and at such time ceased recording
goodwill amortization. During 2002, Hometown completed its goodwill impairment testing which
resulted in Hometown recording a one-time, non-cash charge of approximately $23.7 million to write-off
the carrying value of goodwill. This charge is non-operational in nature and is reflected as a cumulative
effect of an accounting change in the accompanying statement of operations for the year ended December
31, 2002. See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for additional disclosure.

Forward Looking Statement

When used in the Annual Report on Form 10K, the words “may”, “will”, “should”, “expect”,
“believe”, “anticipate™, “continue”, “estimate”, “project”, “intend” and similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section
21E of the Exchange Act regarding events, conditions and financial trends that may affect the
Hometown’s future plans of operations, business strategy, results of operations and financial condition.
Hometown wishes to ensure that such statements are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements
pursuant to the safe harbor established in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Prospective investors are cautioned that any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties and that actual results may differ materially from
those included within the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors including the ability of
Hometown to consummate, and the terms of, acquisitions. Such forward-looking statements should,
therefore, be considered in light of various important factors, including those set forth herein and others
set forth from time to time in Hometown’s reports and registration statements filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Commission™). Hometown disclaims any intent or obligation to update such
forward-looking statements.
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ETEM TA. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET
RiISK.

See Management Discussion and Analysis — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market
Risk.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consclidated financial statements of Hometown required by this item are set forth beginning on
page F-1.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

On July 11, 2002, Hometown filed a report on Form 8-K announcing that Hometown engaged BDO
Seidman LLP (“BDO”) as its auditors, replacing Arthur Andersen LLP (“Andersen”) with whom

Hometown had no disagreement. Previously, on June 25, 2002 and July 3, 2002, Hometown filed a report
on Form 8-K and Form 8-K/A, respectively, announcing the dismissal of Andersen.
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PART [II

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Directors and Executive Officers

The executive officers and directors of Hometown and their respective ages as of March 19, 2003
are as follows:

Name Age  Position Director Since
Corey Shaker 45 President, Chief Operating Officer, Chief 1997
Executive Officer and Director
William C. Muller Jr. 51 Regional Vice President — South Division 1997
and Director
Steven Shaker 34 Regional Vice President — North Division Not a director
Joseph Shaker 35 Regional Vice President - East Division 1997
and Director
Charles F. Schwartz 47 Chief Financial Officer Not a director
Salvatore A. Vergopia 63 Director 1997
Edward A. Vergopia 33 Director 1997
H. Dennis Lauzon 54 Director 2002
Timothy C. Moynahan * 63 Director 2002
Steven A. Fournier * 48 Director 2002

*Member of Audit and Compensation Committees

All directors hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders and untii their successors
are duly elected and qualified. Officers are elected to serve subject to the discretion of the Board of
Directors.

Set forth below is a brief description of the background and business experience of the executive
officers and directors of Hometown:

Corey Shaker was named President and Chief Operating Officer on February 7, 2000, and added
the title of Chief Executive Officer on August 29, 2000. In addition, he was Vice President-Connecticut
Operations since October 1, 1997 and was in charge of Hometown's Company-wide sales training efforts.
Prior to that, from 1989 he was Chief Operating Officer and General Manager of Family Ford Inc. where
he was responsible for all aspects of its operations. He is a past member of NADA Ford F01 20 group. He
was awarded the Lincoln Mercury Salesperson of the Nation award in 1980 and is a three-time winner of
the Lincoln Mercury Inner Circle award. Mr. Shaker serves on the board of directors of AdStar Inc., a
provider of classified ad placement services on the Internet and other electronic delivery channels. He is
also a first cousin to Steven Shaker, the Regional VP — North Division, and Joseph Shaker, the Regional
VP — East Division and director of Hometown. He holds a B.S. in Business Administration from
Providence College.

William C. Muller Jr. has been Regional Vice President — South Division since March 2000. Mr.
Muiler has been Vice President-New Jersey Operations since October 1, 1997. In addition, from 1980 he
was the President of Muller Toyota, Inc. and of Muller Chevrolet, Oldsmobile, Isuzu, Inc (both of which
are currently known as Muller Automotive Group, Inc. and Good Day Chevrolet, Oldsmobile, Isuzu, Inc.,
respectively.) Under his management, Muller Toyota has been: (a)a 13-time recipient of Toyota's
Prestigious President's Award, given to those dealers with superior levels of customer satisfaction who
also exceed capital standards and have high market penetration and facilities that meet or exceed Toyota
standards; (b) a 13-time recipient of Toyota Parts Excellence Award; (c) a 9-time winner of the Toyota
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Service Excellence Award; and (d) a 3-time winner of Toyota's Sales Excellence Award. He holds a B.A.
degree from Fairleigh Dickinson University.

Steven Shaker has been Regional Vice President — North Division since March 2000. Mr. Shaker
had been a Vice President in charge of Parts and Service since October 1, 1997. In addition, from 1992
he was Director of Parts and Service of all of the Shaker Group's operations and was instrumental in the
implementation of the pilot program to develop the Ford Motor Company's first Autocare automobile
service center. He is the brother of Joseph Shaker and a first cousin of Corey Shaker, each respectively
an officer and director of Hometown. He holds a B.A. degree from Salve Regina College.

Joseph Shaker was President and Chief Operating Officer from October 1, 1997 to February 7,
2000, and was in charge of Hometown's dealer acquisition program, including the implementation of such
programs as may be necessary to assimilate new dealers into Hometown's operational model. In addition,
from 1991 he was the Chief Operating Officer of Shaker's Lincoln Mercury, Shaker's Jeep Eagle and
Lincoln Mercury Autocare in Connecticut. In 1992, at the request of Ford Motor Company, he developed
the pilot free-standing neighborhood Autocare Center which has become the model for free-standing
neighborhood auto maintenance centers established by Ford Motor with certain of its other dealers. He
also started Shaker's Lincoln Mercury limousine department in 1992 and has been responsible for its
growth and implementation. He is a Member of the Executive Committee of the NADA 20 Group. He is
the brother of Steven Shaker, the Regional VP ~ North Division, and a first cousin of Corey Shaker, the
Chief Executive Officer and a director of Hometown. He holds a B.S. (Management) degree from
Bentley College.

Charles F. Schwartz has been Chief Financial Officer since January 2002. From November 2001
through January 2002 he was the Assistant to the CEQ. Prior to joining Hometown, he was the Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer for Staples Communications, a nationwide integrator of
communications sclutions from 2000 - 2001. From 1993 — 2000 he was the Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Chief of Staff for People’s Choice TV Corporation, a wireless communications
company. From 1989 through 1993, Mr. Schwartz had been Chief Financial Officer of Jimbo’s Jumbos,
Incorporated, an affiliate of Chock Full O’ Nuts. Mr. Schwartz is a Certified Public Accountant. He holds
a B.B.A. degree in accounting from Bernard M. Baruch College in New York City

Salvatore A. Vergopia had been Chairman of the Board from October 1997 to December 2000,
and Chief Executive Officer from October 1997 to August 2000, of Hometown. In addition, from 1992
until December, 2000, he was President and for over 20 years prior thereto, Vice President of Westwood
Lincoln Mercury Sales Inc. He is also the father of Edward Vergopia, director. He holds a B.S. degree
from Northern Arizona University.

Edward A. Vergopia was formerly Vice President - Fleet Operations from October 1997 to
December 2000. In addition, from 1988 until December, 2000, he was Executive Vice President of
Westwood where, among other responsibilities, he managed the Lincoln Mercury Division of Spoilers
Plus (custom cars) and Westwood Lincoln Mercury Limousine Department. During those periods, he
also worked in the Leasing, Financing and Parts and Service Departments of Westwood Lincoin Mercury.
He is also the son of Salvatore Vergopia, director. He holds a B.B.A. from the University of Miami.

H. Dennis Lauzon has been the President and owner of Parkway Toyota since 1978. Mr. Lauzon
is on the Toyota Dealers Advertising Board as well as the Dealer Council. He is also on the board of
Trustees for Hackensack University Medical Center. Mr. Lauzon attended Fairleigh Dickinson
University.

Timothy C. Moynahan has been a founding partner in the law firm Moynahan, Minnella,
Broderick and Tindall since 1974. Mr. Moynahan is a director of The Institute of Human Virology, at the
University of Maryland School of Medicine. He is also the President of the Connecticut Chapter of the
Ireland Chamber of Commerce, a non-profit organization which promotes economic relationships
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between the United States and Ireland and is Vice-President of the Paula A. Moynahan Skin Care
Company, a manufacturer of skin care products. Mr. Moynahan holds a BS degree in History from
Providence College and a JD degree from Catholic University School of Law.

Steven A. Fournier has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of Gar-Kenyon
Technologies, LLC, a manufacturer of hydraulic aerospace components, since December 2001. He
previously was President and Chief Operating Officer of Matthews Ventures, a diversified holding
company, from 1992. Mr. Fournier currently serves as Director, Treasurer, and member of the executive
committee of the Greater New Haven Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Fournier received a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Accounting from Bentley College in 1975 and is a Certified Public Accountant.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Hometown's Board of Directors has established compensation and audit comumittees, whose
members are Messrs. Moynahan and Fournier. The Compensation Committee reviews and recommends
to the Board of Directors the compensation and benefits of all officers of Hometown, reviews general
policy matters relating to compensation and benefits of employees of Hometown and administers the
issuance of stock options and discretionary cash bonuses to Hometown's officers, employees, directors
and consuitants. The Audit Committee meets with management and Hometown's independent public
accountants to determine the adequacy of internal controls and other financial reporting matters. It is the
intention of Hometown to appoint only independent directors to the Audit and Compensation
Committees.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation.

The following table presents certain information concerning compensation paid or accrued for
services rendered to Hometown in all capacities during the years ended December 31, 2002, for the Chief
Executive Officer and the other executive officers of Hometown whose aggregate annual base salary
exceeded $100,000 (collectively, the "Named Executive Officers").

COMPENSATION TABLE

Annua! Compensation

Fiscal Annual
Name and Principal Year Bonus
Position Compensation $ Salary (1)
Corey E. Shaker, 2002 250,000 -
President and Chief 2001 250,000 (2) -
Executive Officer 2000 200,000 -
William C. Muller, Jr. 2002 200,000 101,844
Regional Vice 2001 200,000 130,372
President-South 2000 200,000 -
Division
Steven Shaker, 2002 125,000 1,325
Regional Vice 2001 118,600 10,000
President-North 2000 110,000 -
Division
Joseph Shaker, 2002 (3) 196,380 -
Regional Vice
President-East
Division
Charles F. Schwartz, 2002 (4) 160,000 20,000
Chief Financial
Officer

(1) The amounts shown are cash bonuses earned in the specified year. A portion of these bonuses may be

paid in the first quarter of the following year.
(2) Includes amounts paid after year-end.

Other

6,840
7,000
7,000

9,673
2,600

2,600
3,000

8,000

1,749

Ontion
Grants

50,000
50,000

30,000

30,000

(3) Named Regional Vice President-East Division in 2002. Includes compensation for entire year.
(4) Has been Chief Financial Officer since January 2002.
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OPTION GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

Number of Potential Realizable
Shares Percent of Value At Assumed
Underlying Total Options Annual Rates of Stock
Options Granted to Exercise Price Appreciation for
Granted(#) Employees in Price Expiration Option
Name 1 Fiscal Year ($/Share) Date Term(2
2002 5% 10%

Corey Shaker 50,000 100% $0.48 April 2007 $6,631 $14,652

(1) The options vest with respect to one-third of the shares of Common Stock covered by the options on
each of the first, second and third anniversary of the Option Grant Date, April 29, 2002.

(2) Potential realizable values are net of exercise price but before taxes, and are based on the assumption
that the Common Stock of Hometown appreciates at the annual rate shown (compounded annually)
from the date of grant until the expiration date of the respective options. All the options issued in
2002 were issued at the market price at the date of issuance. These numbers are calculated based on
Securities and Exchange Commission requirements and do not reflect Hometown's projection or
estimate of future stock price growth. Actual gains, if any, on stock option exercises are dependent
on the future financial performance of Hometown, overall market conditions and the option holder's
continued employment through the vesting pericd. This table does not take into account any
appreciation in the price of the Common Stock from the date of grant to the date of this Form 10-K.
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AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR AND FISCAL YEAR END
OPTION VALUES

The following table summarizes options exercised during fiscal 2002 and presents the value of
unexercised options held by the Named Executive Officers at fiscal year end:

Number of Securities

Value of Unexercised

Underlying In-the-Momey
Unexercised Options at Options at Fiscal
Acquired Fiscal Year-End Year-End
on Value Exercisable ([E) Exercisable (E)
Name Exercise Realized Unexercisable (U) Unexercisable (U)
Corey E. Shaker - —— 83,166 E -
President and Chief 83,334 U
Executive Officer
William C. Muller, Jr. — — 30,000 E ——
Regional Vice 20,000 U
President — South
Steven Shaker -— -— 20,000 E -
Regional Vice 20,000 U
President — North
Joseph Shaker, —— - 36,500 E ——
Regional Vice
President-East
Charles F. Schwartz, — — 16,666 E -~
Chief Financial 33,334 U

Officer

In general, the option agreements shall be exercisable only so long as the Optionee shall continue
tc be an employee of Hometown and within the thirty-day period afier the date of termination of his
employment to the extent it was exercisable on the day prior to the date of termination. In the event the
Optionee is unable to continue his employment with Hometown as a result of his total and permanent
disability, he may, but only within three (3) months from the date of disability, exercise the option to the
extent he was entitled to exercise it at the date of such disability. In the event of death of the Optionee, the
option may be exercised, at any time within twelve (12) months following the date of death, by the
Optionee's estate or by a person who acquired the right to exercise this option by bequest or inheritance,
but only to the extent of the right that would have accrued had the Optionee continued living one (1)
month after the date of death, provided that at the time of his death the Optionee is an employee of
Hometown and shall have been in Continuous Status (as defined in Hometown’s Stock Option Plan) as an
employee from the date hereof; or within thirty (30) days after the termination of Continuous Status as an
employee, the option may be exercised, at any time within three (3) months following the date of death,
by the Optionee's estate or by a person who acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest or
inheritance, but only to the extent of the right to exercise that had accrued at the date of termination.
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Employment Comtracts

In April 1998, Hometown entered into five-year employment agreements, effective as of the
closing of Hometown’s initial public offering in July, 1998, with Corey E. Shaker, William C. Muller, Jr.
and Steven Shaker. The agreement for Corey E. Shaker provides for an annual base salary of $200,000,
which increased to $250,000 in 2001. The agreement for William C. Muller and Joseph Shalker provides
for an annual base salary of $200,000 and the agreement for Steven Shaker provides for an annual base
salary of $100,000, which increased to $125,000 in 2001.

Each agreement also provides for participation by the employee in all executive benefit plans and,
if employment is terminated without cause (as defined in the agreement), payment of an amount equal to
the salary which would have been payable over the unexpired term of his employment agreement.

Compensation Committee Interiocks ané Insider Participation in Compensation Decisiorns

None of the directors serving on the Compensation Commitiee are employees or officers of
Hometown. No director or executive officer of Hometown is a director or executive officer of any other
corporation that has a director or executive officer who is also a director of Hometown.

1998 Stock Option Plan

In February 1998, as further amended in August 2002, in order to attract and retain persons
necessary for the success of Hometown, Hometown adopted its 1998 Stock Option Plan (the "Stock
Option Plan") covering up to 830,000 shares of Class A Common Stock. Pursuant to the Stock Option
Plan officers, directors and key employees of Hometown and consultants to Hometown are eligible to
receive incentive and/or non-incentive stock options. The Board of Directors will administer the Stock
Option Plan, which expires in January 2008, or a commitiee designated by the Board of Directors. The
selection of participants, allotment of shares, determination of price and other conditions relating to the
purchase of options will be determined by the Board of Directors, or a committee thereof, in its sole
discretion. Stock options granted under the Stock Option Plan are exercisable for a period of up to 10
years from the date of grant at an exercise price which is not less than the fair market value of the
Common Stock on the date of the grant, except that the term of an incentive stock option granted under
the Stock Option Plan to a stockholder owning more than 10% of the outstanding Common Stock may not
exceed five years and its exercise price may not be less than 110% of the fair market value of the
Common Stock on the date of the grant. For grants to the Named Executive Officers see the chart above
titled “AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR AND FISCAL YEAR END
OPTION VALUES.”

Employee Benefit Plan

In October 1999, Hometown amended and restated the E.R.R. Enterprises, Inc. Profit
Sharing/401(k) Plan, (the “Amended Plan”) into the HOMETOWN AUTO RETAILERS, INC. 401K
Plan (the “Plan”) effective October 1, 1999, for the benefit of eligible employees, as defined. Participants
may make voluntary contributions of up to 15% of their compensation, subject to certain RS limitations.
Hometown may make annual matching contributions to the Plan at its discretion. No Contributions were
made by Hometown to the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Corey E. Shaker
and Joseph Shaker are the Trustees of the Plan.

Compensation of Directors

Each non-employee Director receives a fee of $1,000, for each meeting attended in person and $250
for each meeting attended telephonically and reimbursement for travel costs and other out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in attending each Directors’' meeting. In addition, committee members receive $500 for
each committee meeting attended in person, other than meeting directly following or preceding Board

50




meetings and $125 for each committee meeting attended telephonically. In addition, each non-employee
Director receives options to purchase an additional 2,500 shares of Common Stock on the date of
Hometown's annual stockhclders' meeting. Such options will have an exercise price equal to the fair
market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant and will vest one-third upon grant and one-third
on each of the first and second anniversary of the date of grant.

Limitation of Directors’ Liability and Indemnification

The Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”) authorizes corporations to limit or eliminate
the personal liability of directors to corporations and their shareholders for monetary damages for breach
of directors' fiduciary duty of care. Hometown's Certificate of Incorporation limits the liability of
Directors of Hometown to Hometown or its shareholders to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law.

Hometown's Certificate of Incorporation provides mandatory indemnification rights to any officer or
Director of Hometown who, by reason of the fact that he or she is an officer or Director of Hometown, is
involved in a legal proceeding of any nature. Such indemnification rights include reimbursement for
expenses incurred by such officer or Director in advance of the final disposition of such proceeding in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the DGCL. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities under
the Securities Act may be provided to officers and Directors or persons controlling Hometown,
Hometown has been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore,
unenforceable.

Except for the litigation described in Item 3 above, there is no pending litigation or proceeding
involving a Director, officer, employee or agent of Hometown in which indemnification by Hometown
will be required or permitted.

Report of the Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation

The primary purposes of the Compensation Committee are to establish and maintain competitive,
fair and equitable compensation practices designed to atiract and retain key management employees
throughout the Corporation and to establish appropriate incentives to motivate and reward key
management employees for achieving or exceeding established performance goals; and to oversee the
competency and qualifications of senior management personnel and the provisions of senior management
succession planning. The Compensation Committee is responsible for a broad range of activities which
include (i) recommending to the full Board of Directors the salary(ies) of the Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Cfficer and Chief Financial Officer after an evaluation of
market data, internal salary relationships as provided by the Corporation’s executive compensation
professionals, and such other factors as the Committee deems appropriate; (ii) recommending to the full
Board of Directors the salaries for other elected Corporate Officers and selected key management
employees after reviewing the recommendations made by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Operating Officer; (iii) recommending to the full Board of Directors the type of incentive plans, if any,
which will be offered to management employees; and (iv) administering the Corporation’s 1998 Incentive
Stock Option Plan, to include, after reviewing the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Operating Officer, determining the employees to be eligible for plan participation.

Due to the existence of five-year employment agreements between Hometown and certain of its

key officers, which do not expire until July 2003, the scope of the Compensation Committee’s duties has
been limited.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Steven Fournier
Chairman
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The above graph shows a comparison of cumulative total returns for Hometown, the NASDAQ Market
Index, and a Peer Group from Hometown’s SIC Code Index from the date of the initial public offering.

(1) The Peer Group Index includes the following companies: Asbury Automotive Group, Auto Nation
Inc., CarMax Inc., Group 1 Automotive, Inc., Lithia Motors Inc., Major Automotive Companies, Inc.,
Motorcars Automotive Group, Rush Enterprises, Inc., Sonic Automotive Inc. and United Auto Group,
Inc.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information known to Hometown regarding the beneficial
ownership of Common Stock as of by (i) each person known to Hometown to be the beneficial owner of
more than 5% of its outstanding shares of Common Stock, (ii) each Director of Hometown, (iii) each
Named Executive Officer and (iv) all Directors, and Executive Officers of Hometown as a group. Except
as otherwise indicated, the persons or entities listed below have sole voting and investment power with
respect to all shares of Common Stock owned by them.

A person is deemed to be a beneficial owner of securities that can be acquired by such person
within 60 days from the filing of this Form 10-K upon the exercise of options and warrants or conversion
of convertible securities. Each beneficial owner’s percentage ownership is determined by dividing the
number of shares beneficially owned by that person by the total number of shares beneficially owned,
increased to reflect the shares underlying the options, warrants and convertible securities that are held by
such person, but not held by any other person.

e As of March 3, 2003, the total number of shares outstanding is 7,175,105, of which 3,564,605
shares are Class A common stock and 3,610,500 shares are Class B common stock.

The total number of votes are based on the combined total of Class A and Class B common stock
beneficially owned by the beneficial owner. The voting power percentage of each beneficial owner is
determined by dividing the number of votes held by that person by the total number of votes outstanding,
increased to reflect the number of votes of the shares underlying the options, warrants and convertible
securities that are held by such person, but not held by any other person.

e As of March 3, 2003, the total number of votes outstanding is 39,669,605, of which 3,564,605
votes are from Class A common stock outstanding and 36,105,000 votes are from Class B
common stock outstanding;

e (Class A common stock have one (1) vote per share; and
Class B common stock have ten (10) votes per share.

% of
Common Stock % of Outstanding Equity Aggregate
Name of Beneficial Owner Beneficially Owned Owned voting
Class Class Class  Class Power of
A B A B Total all Classes
Officers and Directors
Salvatore Vergopia - 705,000 - 19.53 9.83 17.77
Corey E. Shaker 236,714 265,080 6.37 7.34 6.85 7.25
William C. Muller, Jr. 346,250 453,034 935 1255 10.93 12.25
Edward Vergopia - 235,000 - 6.51 3.28 5.92
Steven Shaker 145,142 206,424 4.00 5.72 4.86 5.56
Joseph Shaker 184,326 321,812 5.07 8.91 6.98 8.56
Charles Schwartz 16,666 - b - b *=2
H. Dennis Lauzon 3,333 - B - ¥ e
Timothy Moynahan 30,834 - ok - i wE
Steven Fournier 30,834 - b - wE w
All Directors, and Executive
Officers as a group (10 persons) 994,099 2,186,350 2439  60.56 41.37 56.89

5% Bereficial Owners
William C. Muller, Sr. 286,000 308,718 7.80 8.55 8.17 8.48

** QOwnership is less than 1%
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Salvatore Vergopia has an address at 20 Bayberry Drive, Saddle River, New Jersey 07458. His
beneficial ownership of our Class B common stock includes 225,600 shares owned by his wife, Janet.

Edward A. Vergopia has an address at 4912 Pine Street Drive, Miami Beach, Florida 33140.

Corey Shaker has an address at c/o Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc., 774 Straits Turnpike,
Watertown Connecticut 06795. His beneficial ownership of cur common stock includes:
© 265,080 shares of Class B common stock, of which 15,980 shares are held by the Edward
Shaker Family Trust of which he is the Trustee and a beneficiary;
o 84,500 shares of Class A common stock, inciuding 72 shares (24 shares each for his children,
Lindsay, Kristen and Edward) of which he is custodian;
o Options exercisable within the next 60 days to purchase shares of Class A common stock as
follows:
o 36,500 shares at $9.00 per share;
c 30,000 shares at $3.00 per share;
o 16,667 shares at $2.25 per share;
o 16,667 shares at $1.25 per share;
o 16,666 shares at $0.48 per share;
e Warrants immediately exercisable to purchase 35,714 shares of Class A common stock at
$1.20 per share.

William Muller, Jr. has an address at ¢/o Muller Toyota Inc., Route 31, PO Box J, Clinton, New
Jersey 08809. His beneficial ownership of our common stock includes:
o 453,034 shares of Class B common stock;
e 205,250 shares of Class A common stock;
e 1,000 shares of Class A common stock owned by his wife, Michele;
o  QOptions exercisable within the next 60 days to purchase shares of Class A common stock as
follows:
o 20,000 shares at $9.00 per share;
o 10,000 shares at $2.25 per share;
o 10,000 shares at $1.25 per share;
o Warrants immediately exercisable to purchase 100,000 shares of Class A common stock at
$1.20 per share. i

Steven Shaker has an address at c¢/c Family Ford, Inc., 1200 Wolcott Street, Waterbury,
Connecticut 06705. His beneficial ownership of our comimon stock includes:
e 206,424 shares of Class B common stock;
o 79,428 shares of Class A common stock;
o Options exercisable within the next 60 days to purchase shares of Class A common stock as
follows:
o 10,000 shares at $9.00 per share;
o 10,000 shares at $2.25 per share;
o 10,000 shares at $1.25 per share;
e Warrants immediately exercisable to purchase 35,714 shares of Class A common stock at
$1.20 per share.

Joseph Shaker has an address at c/o Baystate Lincoln Mercury, 571 Worcester Road,
Framingham, Massachusetts 01701. His beneficial ownership of our common stock includes:
e 321,812 shares of Class B common stock of which 15,980 shares are held by the Richard
Shaker Family Trust which Mr. Shaker is the Trustee and a beneficiary; and 40,000 shares are
held by the Shaker Irrevocable Trust of which Mr. Shaker is Trustee;
® 112,112 shares of Class A common stock;
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o an option to purchase 36,500 shares of Class A common stock, exercisable within the next 60
days at $9.00 per share; and

e Warrants immediately exercisable to purchase 35,714 shares of Class A common stock at
$1.20 per share.

Charles Schwartz has an address at ¢/o Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc., 774 Straits Turnpike,
Watertown Connecticut 06795. His beneficial ownership of our common stock consist of an option to
purchase 16,666 shares of Class A common stock, exercisable within the next 60 days at $0.68 per share.

H. Dennis Lauzon has an address at 854 Sunset Avenue, Haworth, New Jersey 07641. His
beneficial ownership of our common stock consist of an option to purchase 3,333 shares of Class A
common stock, exercisable within the next 60 days at $0.65 per share.

Timothy Moynahan has an address at 141 East Main Street, Waterbury, Connecticut 06722. His
beneficial ownership of our common stock consist of options exermsable within the next 60 days to
purchase shares of Class A common stock as follows:

o 30,000 shares at $0.48 per share;
o 834 shares at $0.42 per share;

Steven Fournier has an address at 446 Blake Street, New Haven, Connecticut 06510. His
beneficial ownership of our common stock consist of options exercisable within the next 60 days to
purchase shares of Class A common stock as follows:

o 30,000 shares at $0.58 per share;
o 834 shares at $0.42 per share;

William Muller, Sr. has an address at ¢/o Muller Toyota Inc., Route 31, PC Box J, Clinton, New
Jersey 08809. His beneficial ownership of our common stock includes:

e 308,718 shares of Class B common stock;

s 186,000 shares of Class A common stock; and

e Warrants immediately exercisable to purchase 100,000 shares of Class A common stock at
$1.20 per share.

~All shares and warrants are owned by The William C. Muller Revocable Living Trust of
which William C. Muller Sr. is Trustee. William C. Muller Sr. is neither an officer nor director.
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Plan category

Equity Compensation Plan Infermation

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation

warrants and rights plans (excluding
securities reflected in

(2) column (a))

Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders

180,000 (1)
716,750 (ii)

$10.85 (i) - ()
$3.60 (ii) 119,250 (i)

None None None

Total 890,750 $5.05 119,250

(i) Hometown granted to Paulson Securities (the “Representative”), Representative's Warrants,
entitling the holders thereof to purchase up to 180,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at a purchase
price of $10.80 per share over a four-year period commencing one year from the effective date of the
Offering, July 1998. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements for additional disclosure. These
warrants were issued in connection with the Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) as additional compensation
for Representatives services, as approved by Hometown and each of the three dealership groups (“Core
Operating Companies”) that were combining to complete the IPO of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.
Without the completion of the IPO, the warrants would not have been issued. Upon completion of the
IPO, the Core Operating Companies controlled approximately 85% of the aggregate number of votes
eligible to be cast by stockholders.

(i1) In February 1998, as further amended in August 2002, in order to attract and retain persons
necessary for the success of Hometown, Hometown adopted its 1998 Stock Option Plan covering up to
830,000 shares of Class A Common Stock. See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for
additional disclosure.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repeorting Compliznce

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Hometown's officers and directors,
and persons who own more than ten-percent of a registered class of Hometown's equity securities, to file
reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").
Officers, directors and greater than ten-percent stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish
Hometown with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To the best of Hometown's knowledge, based solely on review of the copies of such forms furnished
to Hometown, or written representations that no other forms were required, Hometown believes that all
Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable with respect to all its current officers, directors and ten
percent shareholders have been complied with as of the filing date of this Annual Report. However,
Corey E. Shaker, William Muller, Jr., Steven A. Fournier and Timothy Moynahan were late in filing one
(1) Statement of Changes in Beneficial Ownership on Form 4 during 2002 but have subsequently come
into compliance. With respect {o any former directors, officers, and ten-percent shareholders of
Hometown, Hometown does not have any knowledge of any known failures to comply with the filing
requirements of Section 16(a).
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Leases

Hometown has leased from various affiliates the premises occupied by certain of its dealerships.
Each of the governing leases became effective as of the closing of the initial public offering, has a term
expiring in 2013, is on a triple net basis and provides for a consumer price index ("CPI") increase to the
base rent for the five-year periods commencing January 1, 2004 and 2009. Hometown believes that each
lease was at their fair market value at inception.

Shaker Group. Hometown leases, for an initial annual base rental of $240,000, the premises occupied by
its Lincoln/Mercury dealership in Watertown, Connecticut and for an initial base rental of $240,000 and
$72,000 respectively, the premises occupied by the Family ford and Shaker Jeep/Eagle dealership in
Waterbury, CT from Shaker Enterprises, a Connecticut general partnership whose seven partners include
Joseph Shaker, Corey Shaker, Steven Shaker and Janet Shaker. Corey Shaker is the CEO, Director and a
principal stockholder of Hometown. Steven Shaker is the Regional Vice President - North Division and a
principal stockholder of Hometown. Joseph Shaker is the Regional Vice President-East Division,
Director and a principal stockholder of Hometown. Janet Shaker is a principal stockholder of Hometown.

Muller Group. Hometown leases, for an initial annual base rental of $360,000 and $396,000 respectively
the premises occupied by its Toyota dealership in Clinton, New Jersey and its Chevrolet/Oldsmobile
dealership in Stewartsville, New Jersey from Rellum Realty Company, a New Jersey general partnership,
one of whose two partners is William C. Muller Jr. Mr. Muller is Regional Vice President-South
Division, director and a principal stockholder of Hometown. The Toyota and Chevy leases are treated as
capital leases. In connection with the acquisition in 1999 of real estate used by Baystate Lincoln Mercury,
Hometown guaranteed the mortgage debt of Rellum Realty Company. The 1999 guaranty was given in
substitution for a February 1998 guaranty of that debt by the Muller Group, a subsidiary of Hometown.
As of December 31, 2002, the mortgage debt balance is $4.9 million. Hometown makes annual lease
payments of $756,000 to the landlord. The annual mortgage payments made by the landlord total
approximately $774,000. The mortgage matures March 2013.

Westwood. Hometown leases, for an initial annual base rental of $360,000 the premises occupied by its

Lincoln Mercury dealership in Emerson, New Jersey from Salvatore A. Vergopxa and his wife. Mr.
Vergopia 1s a director and a principal stockholder of Hometown.
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PART IV
ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Controls and Procedures

{(2) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and its Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c) as of a
date within 90 days of the filing date of this annual report on Form 10-K (the “Evaluation Date™)), have
concluded that as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
adequate and effective to ensure that material information relating to the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries would be made known to them by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report on Form 10-K was being prepared.

(6) Changes in Internal Controls. There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures subsequent to the Evaluation Date, nor any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in
such disclosure controls and procedures requiring corrective actions. As a result, no corrective actions
were taken.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON
FORM 8-K

Exhibits: Description
No.
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Dealer-Co., Inc. (NY-3/10/97)
3.2 Certificate of Incorporation of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. (Del-6/5/97)
3.3 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of Dealer-Co., Inc. into Hometown Auto
Retailers, Inc. (Del-6/27/97) ,
3.4 Certificate of Merger of Dealer-Co., Inc. and Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.
into Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. (the "Company") (NY-9/11/97)
3.5 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation filed February
19, 1998 :
3.6 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation filed June 8,
1998
(1) 3.7 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation filed December
7, 2000
3.8 By-Laws of Hometown
4.1 Form of Class A Common Stock Certificate
4.2 Form of Class B Common Stock Certificate

4.3 Form of Warrant Agreement between Hometown and Paulson Investment
Company and related Warrant

4.4 Stock Option Plan of Hometown

(2} 4.5 Form of 3-year warrant issued in the Private Placement of units on July 25,
2001

(2) 4.6 Copy of the $240,000 Non-negotiable Promissory Note made by Hometown to
Autos of Newburgh, Inc.
(2) 4.7 Copy of the Settlement Agreement, dated June 28, 2001, between Hometown
and Autos of Newburgh, Inc.
10.1 Exchange Agreement, dated as of the 1st day of July, 1997, among the
Registrant and the members of the Shaker Group, the Muller Group and the
Westwood Group
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10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Agreement, dated July 2, 1997, between the Registrant and Brattleboro
Chrysler Plymouth Dodge, Inc. and Amendments dated November 11, 1997,
April 14, 1998 and July 8, 1998

Agreement, dated August 14, 1997, between the Registrant and Leominster
Lincoln Mercury, Inc., dba Bay State Lincoln Mercury and Amendments dated
October 31, 1997 and April 14, 1998, respectively

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of the 16th day of February 1998, among
the Shaker Stockholders, the Muller Stockholders and the Westwood
Stockholders

Employment Agreement, dated as of the 20th day of April, 1998, between the
Registrant and Salvatore A. Vergopia

Employment Agreement, dated as of the 20th day of April, 1998, between the
Registrant and William C. Muller Jr.

Employment Agreement, dated as of the 20th day of April, 1998, between the
Registrant and Corey Shaker

Employment Agreement, dated as of the 20th day of April, 1998, between the
Registrant and Edward A. Vergopia

Employment Agreement, dated as of the 20th day of April, 1998, between the
Registrant and James Christ

Employment Agreement, dated as of the 20th day of April, 1998, between the
Registrant and Steven Shaker

Lease, dated as of April 20, 1998, between Shaker Enterprises, as landlord,
and Hometown (Lincoln/Mercury dealership in Watertown, CT.)

Lease, dated as of April 20, 1998, between Joseph Shaker Realty Company, as
landlord, and Hometown (Ford dealership in Waterbury, CT.)

Lease, dated as of April 20, 1998, between Joseph Shaker Realty Company, as
landlord, and Hometown (Jeep/Eagle dealership Waterbury, CT.)

Lease, dated as of April 20, 1998, between Rellum Realty Company, as
landlord, and Hometown (Toyota dealership in Clinton, NJ)

Lease, dated as of April 20, 1998, between Rellum Realty Company, as
landlord, and Hometown {Chevrolet/Oldsmobile/Isuzu dealership In
Stewartville, NJ)

Lease, dated as of April 20, 1998, between Salvatore A. Vergopia and Janet
Vergopia, as landlord, and Hometown (Lincoln Mercury dealership in
Emerson, NJ)

Inventory Loan and Security Agreement between Toyota Motor Credit
Corporation and Muller Toyota, Inc.; Commercial Promissory Notes; Dealer
Floor Plan Agreement

Ford Motor Company Automotive Wholesale Installment Sale and Security
Agreement with Shakers, Inc.; Power of Attorney for Wholesale Installment
Sale Contract; and Automotive Installment Sale Contract

Ford Motor Company Automotive Wholesale Installment Sale and Security
Agreement with Family Ford, Inc. and Power of Attorney for Wholesale
Chrysler Financial Security Agreement and Master Credit Agreement with
Shaker's Inc.

Lease, dated as of April 20, 1998, between Thomas E. Cosenzi optionees as
landlord, and Hometown (Chrysler Plymouth dealerships in N. Brattleboro,
VT.)

Form of Stock Option Agreement with schedule of optionees

Agreement dated May 28, 1998, between the Registrant and Pride Auto
Center, Inc. (an Acquisition)

Supplemental Agreement to Dealer Sales and Service Agreement (Publicly
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Traded Company) dated April 27, 1998 among Muller Chevrolet, Cldsmobile,
Isuzu, Inc., Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. and American Isuzu Motors, Inc.
10.25 Letter consent for ownership change and initial public offering from Toyota
Motor Sales, USA, Inc. dated July 24, 1998
10.26 Suppiemental Agreement to General Motors Corporation Dealer Sales and
Service Agreement between Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. and General
Motors, dated July 20, 1998.
10.27 Letter consent from Ford Motor Company tc Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.
relating to the Ford Division and Lincoln Mercury Division dated July 24,
1998.
10.28 Credit Agreement dated January 6, 1999 among the registrant, specified
subsidiaries, General Electric Capital Corporation, and other specified lenders.
All Annexes A through L.
(1) 10.28 Credit Agreement dated March 14, 2001 among the registrant, subsidiaries of
the registrant, and Ford Motor Credit Company.
(2) 10.30 Guarantee Agreement dated January 5, 1999 among the registrant and Falcon
Financial, LLC.
(2) 10.31 Modification Agreement dated January 6, 1999 among the registrant,
subsidiaries of the registrant and Falcon Financial, LLC.
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
(3) 99.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(3) 99.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(3) 99.3 Chief Executive Officer Certification

(3) 99.4 Chief Financial Officer Certification

*Unless otherwise indicated all exhibits were previously filed as an exhibit to Hometown’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No 333-52763), and incorporated herein by reference.
(1) Filed as an exhibit to Hometown’s Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2000, and
incorporated herein by reference.
(2) Filed as an exhibit to Hometown’s Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference.
(3) Filed herewith.

Reports on Form §-K:

On November 27, 2002, Hometown filed a report on Form 8-K with respect to Items 5 and 7 on such
report, announcing Hometown’s authorizing a stock buy-back program to acquire up to 350,000 shares of
Hometown’s outstanding common stock.

Financial Statement Schedules:

See below, beginning on page F-1.

Supplemental Schedules:

Report of Independent Public Accountants on Schedule is set forth on page S-1.

Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is
set forth hereafter beginning on page S-2.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d), the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on March 24, 2003 on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.

By: /s/ Corey Shaker
Corey Shaker, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated.

/s/ Corey Shaker

Corey Shaker

/s/ Charles F. Schwartz

Charles F. Schwartz

/s/ William C. Muller, Jr.

William C. Muller, Jr.

/s/ Joseph Shaker

Joseph Shaker

/s/ H. Dennis Lauzon

H. Dennis Lauzon

Salvatore A. Vergopia

Edward A. Vergopia

/s/ Timothy C. Moynahan

Timothy C. Moynahan

/s/ Steven A. Fournier

Steven A. Fournier
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders and Directors of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.
(a Delaware Corporation) as of December 31, 2002 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. as of December 31, 2002 and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 5 to the financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted FASB Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

Valhalla, New York BDO Seidman, LLP
March 7, 2003




This is & copy of the audit report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection
with Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.'s filing on Form 10-K for the yeer ended December 31, 2001.
This sudit report has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection with this filing om
Form 10-K, as Arthur Andersen LLP ceased providimg audit services as of August 31, 2002. The
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2000 and the consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 1999 referred to im this report
have not been included in the accompanying finsncial statements.

REPORT COF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hometown Auto Retailers,
Inc. (a Delaware Corporation) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consoclidated statements
of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Hometown Autc Retailers, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2000, and the related consclidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2600 and 1999 have been restated.

Stamford, Connecticut ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
May 23, 2002
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HOMETOWN AUTO RETAILERS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred income taxes and taxes receivable

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill, net
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHCLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Floor plan notes payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Long-term deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities and deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 2,000,000 shares
authorized, no shares issued and outstanding
Common stock, Class A, $.001 par value, 12,000,000 shares
authorized, 3,563,605 and 3,561,605 issued and outstanding,
respectively
Common stock, Class B, $.001 par value, 3,760,000 shares
authorized, 3,611,500 and 3,613,500 issued and outstanding,
respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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December 31,
2002 2001

$ 3,624 $ 4,446
4,883 5,656
39,169 31,887
510 344
1,245 1,681
749,431 44014
12,882 11,889
- 23,708
1,503 2,231
$63816  $81,842
$ 38,522 $ 32,463
5,072 6,160
1,164 886
588 476
745,346 739,985
13,059 12,885
118 721
743 799
759,266 54,390
3 3
4 4
29,760 29,730
(25,217) (2,285)
4,550 27,452
$ 63,816 $81,842




HOMETOWN AUTO RETAILERS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CPERATIONS
(im thousands, except share and per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Revemwes . Ty e T
New vehicle sales $ 164,659 $ 158,825 $ 172,759
Used vehicle sales 72,482 83,903 75,623
Parts and service sales 24,330 25,402 23,869
Other, net 8,268 7,630 7,131
Total revenues 269,739 275,760 276,382
Cost of sales
New vehicle 154,225 148,271 161,752
Used vehicle 65,821 76,189 68,981
Parts and service 11,026 11,485 10,768
Total Cost of sales 231,072 235,945 241,501
Gross profit 738,667 739,815 37,881
Amortization of goodwill - 704 661
Selling, general and administrative expenses 33,978 35,114 37,946
Income (loss) from operations m-zﬂ;,:é@ ""3-,553-7_ ""7(.7.576_5
Interest income 43 80 1
Interest (expense) (3,379) (4,225) (5,069)
Other income 52 254 -
Other (expense) (158) {8) 23)
Valuation adjustment for CarDay.com - (3,258) -
Income (loss) before taxes and cumulative effect e T
of accounting change 1,247 (3,150} (5,817}
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 471 (1,014) (2,017)
Income (loss) before and cumulative effect . TT77
of accounting change 776 (2,136) (3,800)
Cumulative effect of accounting change (23,708) - -
Net loss $ (22,932) $ (2,136) $ (3,800)
Earnings (loss) per share, basic
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ o0.10 $ (0.32) $ (0.63)
Cumuiative effect of accounting change (3.30) - -
Earnings {loss) per share, basic $:“(-§-565 5"(-6.355 $m(.d?€3-5
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted R -
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $§ o©.10 $ (0.32) § (0.63)
Cumulative effect of accounting change (3.30) - -
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted $"(.§-265 fn(-d}-ﬁ $“7(_6?8-33
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 7,175,105 6,592,436 5,895,996
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted 7,175,105 6,592,436 5,995,996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
F-5




Balance at
December 31, 1999

Conversion of Class B
Common to Class A
Common

Issuance of Class A
common

Valuation adjustment for
CarDay, Inc.

Net loss

Balance at
December 31, 2000

Conversion of Class B
Common to Class A
Common

Shares issued for
Newburgh purchase
Capital infusion from
accredited investors
Warrants

Subscription receivable
Net loss

Balance at
December 31, 2001

Conversion of Class B
Common to Class A
Common

Paid subscription
receivable

Net loss

Balance at
December 31, 2002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

HOMETOWN AUTO RETAILERS, INC.

CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
(in thousands)

Class A

Class B

Common Stock Common Stock Additional Total
Paid-in  (Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Equity
2,147 $ 2 3,753 $ 4 $ 26,194 $ 3,651 $ 29,851
54 - (54) - - - -
100 - - - 332 - 332
- - - - 2,260 - 2,260
. - - - - (3,800) (3,800)
2,301 2 3,699 4 28,786 (149) 28,643
86 - (86) - - - -
200 - - - - - -
975 1 - - 808 - 809
- - - - 166 - 166
- - - - (30) - (30)
- - - - - (2,136) (2,136)
3,562 3 3613 4 29,730 (2,285) 27,452
2 - 2) - - - -
- - - - 30 - 30
] . . " - (22,932)  (22,932)
3,564 $§ 3 3,611 $ 4 $ 29,760 $(25,217) $ 4,550
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HOMETOWN AUTO RETAILERS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (22,932) $ (2,136) $ (3,800)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss

to net cash provided by operating activities -

Cumulative effect of accounting change 23,708 - -
Depreciation and amortization 1,330 1,739 1,720
Impairment of assets 150 - -
Gain on disposal of business unit - (254) -
Loss on write-down of CarDay, Inc. - 3,258 -
Deferred income taxes 309 (1,124) (1,683)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net 768 499 (48)
Inventories, net (5,330) 8,226 11,017
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 134 (59) 914
Cther assets 172 7 290
Floor plan notes payable 6,059 (7,458) (8,863)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,038) 898 883
Deferred revenue 112 (38) (17)
Other long term liabilities and deferred revenue ___{56) __(280) ____68
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,386 3.278 __ 481
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment, net (2,439) (369) (421)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment - 14 149
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired - - (876)
Disposal of business unit - 705 -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2.439) 359 (1.148)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 61 125 -
Principal payments of long-term debt and capital lease
obligations (1,860) (838) (714)
Issuance of common stock and warrants 30 945 332
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1.769) 232 382
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (822) 3,860 (1,049)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period 4,446 586 1,635
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period § 3624 § 4446 $ 586
Cash paid for - Interest $ 3331 $ 3988 $ 4571
Cash paid for — Taxes 3 264 $ 146 $ 204
Purchases financed by capital lease obligations $ 1386 E - s -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




HOMETOWN AUTO RETATLERS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION
Business of Hometown Auto Retailers Inc.

Hometown was founded on March 10, 1997 as Dealerco, Inc., a New York Corporation,
and was later merged into Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (“Hometown”
or the “Company”). Hometown’s purpose was to consolidate and operate automobile dealerships
in the Northeast, primarily in New Jersey and New England. Hometown was formed to combine
three dealership groups (the “Core Operating Companies”) located in New Jersey and
Connecticut, one of which was considered the accounting acquirer (““Shaker”), acquire two other
dealerships (the “Acquisitions”) located in Vermont and Massachusetts, complete an initial public
offering (the “Offering”) of its Common Stock and, subsequent to the Offering, continue to
acquire, through merger or purchase, additional dealerships to expand its regional operations.

During 1999, the Company invested in an internet-commerce subsidiary, CarDay, Inc.
(CarDay). CarDay is an Internet auction site that offers a buying experience that offers many of
the features generally not available outside the traditional dealership environment. In January
2000, CarDay obtained $25 million in financing from a group of venture capital firms. As a
result of that financing, Hometown’s ownership interest in CarDay was reduced from 82% to
10.7% and to increase the carrying value of its investment to $3,258,000. Since CarDay is a
“Development Stage Company”, the Company treated the resulting increase in value of the
investment as an increase in additional paid-in-capital. This is in accordance with the Securities
and Exchange Commissions Staff Accounting Bulletin 51. The investment in CarDay is
accounted for on the cost basis. The Company believes that any similar future transactions are
unlikely. Subsequent to January 20, 2000, the operating results of CarDay are not reflected in
Hometown’s financial statements as Hometown’s ownership interest has fallen below 20%. In the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, CarDay ceased operations, accordingly the Company considers the
investment to be permanently and totally impaired. See Note 4.

Basis of Presentation

In July 1998, Hometown simultaneously completed the combination of the Core
Operating Companies, the Acquisitions and the Offering. The Core Operating Companies were
acquired in exchange for common stock of Hometown. The Acquisitions were acquired for cash.

Principals of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include all significant majority-owned subsidiaries.
All intercompany accounts and transaction among the consolidated subsidiaries have been
eliminated.

Hometown's operations are subject to seasonal variations, with the second and third
quarters generally contributing more revenues and operating profit than the first and fourth
quarters. This seasonality is driven primarily by: (i) factors related to the automobile and truck
manufacturers from which Hometown holds franchises (“Manufacturer”), primarily the historical
timing of major Manufacturer incentive programs and model changeovers, (ii) weather-related
factors, which primarily affect parts and service and (iii) consumer buying patterns.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Major Suppliers and Franchise Agreements

Hometown purchases substantially all of its new vehicles at the prevailing prices charged
by the applicable Manufacturers to all franchised dealers. Hometown's sales volume could be
adversely impacted by the manufacturers' inability to supply it with an adequate supply of
popular models or as a result of an unfavorable allocation of vehicles by the manufacturer.

Each Manufacturers franchise agreement contains provisicns which may limit, without
the consent of the applicable manufacturer, changes in dealership management and ownership,
place certain restrictions on the dealership (such as minimum working capital requirements) and
provide for termination of the franchise agreement by the manufacturer in certain instances. See
Note 15 for additional disclosure.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues for vehicle and parts sales are recognized upon delivery to or acceptance by the
customer. Revenues for vehicle service are recognized when the service has been completed.
Sales discounts and service coupons are accounted for as a reduction to the sales price at the point
of sale. Manufacturer incentives and rebates are not recognized until earned in accordance with
respective manufacturers incentive programs.

Finance, Insurance and Service Contract Income Recognition

Hometown arranges financing for customers through various institutions and receives
financing fees equal to the difference between the loan rates charged to customers and the
predetermined financing rates set by the financing institution. In addition, Hometown receives
commissions from the sale of credit life and disability insurance and extended service contracts to
customers. The revenues from financing fees and commissions are generally recorded at the time
of the sale of the vehicles. These revenues are recorded on a net basis. Connecticut dealerships
operate under state laws which make the dealers responsible for providing warranty service and
insurance in the event of default by the insurance carriers. Accordingly, commissions on
insurance and service contract sales are required to be recognized over the life of the related
insurance product. At December 31, 2002 and 2001 Hometown had $1,237,000 and $1,264,000
of related deferred revenue, respectively. At December 31, 2002, Hometown also had other
deferred revenue of $94,000.

Hometown may be charged back (“chargebacks™) for unearned financing fees, insurance
or service contract commissions in the event of early termination of the contracts by the
customers. The reserves for future charge backs are based on historical operating results and the
termination provisions of the applicable contracts. Finance, insurance and service contract
income, net of estimated chargebacks, are included in other dealership revenue in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash on deposit, marketable securities
and liquid investments, such as money market accounts, that have an original maturity of three

months or less at the date of purchase.
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Contracts-in-Transit

Contracts—in—transit represent receivables from finance companies for the portion of the
vehicle purchase price financed by customers through sources arranged by Hometown.

Inventories

New, used and demonstrator vehicle values are stated at the lower of cost or market,
determined on a specific unit basis. Parts, accessories and other are stated at the lower of cost
(determined on a first-in, first-out basis) or market. Hometown assesses the lower of cost or
market reserve requirement for vehicles, on an individual unit basis, taking into consideration
historical loss rates, the age and composition of the inventory and current market conditions. The
lower of cost or market reserves were $0.6 million and $0.6 million at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are capitalized and
amortized over the lesser of the life of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Capital Lease Obligations

Hometown classifies two dealership leases and certain vehicle leases as capital leases.
Hometown depreciates these assets over the lesser of the asset’s useful life or the terms of the
lease agreements.

Company Guarantees

Hometown guarantees or partially guarantees loans advanced by financial institutions to
certain customers. It is Hometown’s policy to provide reserves for potential future default losses
based on available historical information. Hometown guarantees certain mortgage debt
obligations of the lessor, related to two dealership leases.

Company Warranties

Hometown’s new vehicle sales and certain used vehicle sales have manufacturer
warranties. Hometown also provides limited warranties on certain used vehicles sold at retail.
Hometown also sells parts and service. Manufacturer parts and service are covered by limited
warranties. It is Hometown’s policy to provide reserves for warranty costs based on available
historical information.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Hometown periodically reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever changes in
the circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable.
Hometown considers relevant cash flow, management’s strategic plans, significant decreases in
the market value of the asset and other available information in assessing whether the carrying
value of the assets can be recovered. When such events occur, Hometown compares the carrying
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amount of the assets to undiscounted expected future cash flows from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. If this comparison indicates an impairment, the carrying amount would

then be compared to the fair value of the long-lived asset. An impairment loss would be measured
as the amount by which the carrying value of the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. The
difference would be recorded as an impairment of assets. Hometown recorded am asset
impairment charge for assets that are held for sale of $150,000 and $50,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. See Notes 3 and 4. Hometown does not believe any
other impairment exists based on this methodology.

Income Taxes

Hometown accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred income taxes are recorded based upon
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are
measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the underlying assets are
realized or liabilities are settled. A valuation allowance reduces deferred tax assets when it is
more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Interest Expense

Automobile manufacturers periodically provide floor plan interest assistance, or
subsidies, which reduce the dealer’s cost of financing. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements reflect interest expense gross. Floor plan interest assistance is recorded as a reduction
of cost of sales when the vehicle is sold. See Note 6.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Hometown’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents; floor
plan notes payable and long-term debt. The carrying amounts of cash equivalents approximate
fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments. The carrying amounts of floor plan notes
payable approximate fair value due to their variable interest rates. The fair market value of long-
term debt approximated the carrying value at December 31, 2002. The fair value of long-term
debt is estimated based on the current rates offered for similar debt instruments with the same
remaining maturities.

Advertising and Promotion

Hometown expenses advertising and promotion as incurred. Automobile Manufacturers
periodically provide advertising assistance, or subsidies, which is recorded as a reduction the
dealer’s advertising expense.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentiaily subject Hometown to a concentration of credit risk
consist principally of cash, cash equivalents, contracts-in-transit and accounts receivable.
Hometown maintains cash balances at financial institutions that may, at times, be in excess of
federally insured levels. Also, Hometown grants credit to individual customers and local
companies in the automobile repair business such as automotive parts stores, automotive
mechanics, and automotive body repair shops.
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Hometown performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not
require collateral. Hometown maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts at a level which
management believes is sufficient to provide for potential credit losses.

Earnings (loss) per Share

“Basic earnings (loss) per share” represents net income (loss) divided by the weighted
average shares outstanding. “Diluted earnings (loss) per share” represents net income (loss)
divided by weighted average shares outsianding adjusted for the incremental dilution of
potentially dilutive securities. See Note 190.

Stock-based Compensation

At December 31, 2002, Hometown has one stock-based employee compensation plan, the
1998 Stock Option Plan (the “Stock Option Plan™) which is described more fully in Note 17. As
allowed by SFAS 148, Hometown has elected not to use one of the alternative methods of
transition available for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation. Hometown accounts for this plan under the recognition and
measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Cpinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related Interpretations. No stock-based employee
compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted under those plans had an
exercise price equal to or greater than the market value of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the
company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to stock-based employee compensation.

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Net loss, as reported $(22,932) $ (2,136) $ (3,800)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee ' 4
compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all awards, net
of related tax effects (1) (28) (73) (19)
Pro forma net loss $ (22,960) § (2,209) $ (3,819)
Eamings (loss) per share: _
Basic, as reported $§ (3.20) § (032) $ (0.63)
Basic, pro forma $ (320 5 (0.34) $ (0.64)
Diluted, as reported $ (.20 $ (032 $ (0.63)
Diluted, pro forma $§ (320 $ (0.34) $ (0.64)

(1) All awards refers to awards granted, modified, or settled in fiscal periods since plan
inception in 1998; that is, awards for which the fair value was required to be measured
under Statement 123.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

The net change in floor plan financing of inventory, which is a customary financing
technique in the industry, is reflected as an operating activity in the accompanying consolidated
statements of cash flows.

Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation.
Segments

Hometown’s management considers its business to be a single segment-Automotive
Retailing. Hometown’s sales and services are through similar distribution channels, and
Hometown'’s customers are similar for all sources of revenues. Management evaluates its operating
results by dealerships, which are ali located in the Northeastern United States.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of SFAS
123. SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123 to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. The
three methods allowed are the (i) prospective method, (ii) modified prospective method and (iii)
retroactive restatement method. The prospective method was previously the only permitted
transition method under SFAS 123. Under this method, the recognition provisions apply to all
employee awards granted, modified or settled after the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption of
SFAS 123. The company would continue to use the Opinion 25 intrinsic value method to account
for all prior awards. Under the modified prospective method, SFAS 123 fair value based
accounting is applied to all awards granted, modified or settled in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 1994, the effective date of SFAS 123, but only for measuring compensation cost
for the year of change and future years. No prior years are restated. Under the retroactive
restatement method, the company applies the fair value method to all awards granted, modified,
or settled in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1994. The company would be required to
restate compensation cost and net income for all income statements presented. Restatement of
perieds prior to the presented is permitied but not required.

In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement 123 to
require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported
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results. This statement is effective for financial statements with fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2002. As allowed by SFAS 148, Hometown has elected not to use one of the
alternative methods of transition available for a voluntary change to the fair value based method
of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. Hometown accounts for this plan under
the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related Interpretations. See Note 2,
Stock-based Compensation above and Note 17 for additional disclosure.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantors
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation of SFAS 5, 57 and 107 and rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34. This Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor
in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it
has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a
guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The
initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a
prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure
requirements in this Interpretation are effective for financial statements of interim or annual
periods ending afier December 15, 2002. Hometown is currently evaluating the impact of the
adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 45 on Hometown’s financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, Accounting for Restructuring Costs. SFAS
146 applies to costs associated with an exit activity (including restructuring) or with a disposal of
long-lived assets. Those activities can include eliminating or reducing product lines, terminating
employees and contracts, and relocating plant facilities or personnel. Under SFAS 146, a
company will record a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity when that
liability is incurred and can be measured at fair value. SFAS 146 will require a company to
disclose information about its exit and disposal activities, the related costs, and changes in those
costs in the notes to the interim and annual financial statements that include the period in which
an exit activity is initiated and in any subsequent period until the activity is completed. SFAS 146
is effective prospectively for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, with
earlier adoption encouraged. Under SFAS 146, a company may not restate its previously issued
financial statements and the new Statement grandfathers the accounting for liabilities that a
company had previously recorded under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 94-3. The adoption of
SFAS 146 is not expected to have a material impact on Hometown’s financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” which supercedes SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of’ and the accounting and reporting provisions of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations -
Reporting the Effects of the Disposal of a Segment Business and Extraordinary, Unusual, and
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”. SFAS 144 addresses financial accounting and
reporting for the impairment and disposal of long-lived assets. Discontinued operations
accounting will be used for a component of an entity and future operating losses of discontinued
operations will no longer be accrued. Additionally, assets acquired and held for disposal are
recorded based on fair value less cost to sell at the acquisition date. SFAS 144 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Hometown adopted SFAS 144 at January 1,
2002 and it did not have a material impact on Hometown’s financial statements.

In June 2001, the FASB approved SFAS Nos. 141 and 142 “Business Combinations” and
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“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, respectively. SFAS 141, among cther things, eliminates
the "Pooling of Interests" method of accounting for business acquisitions entered into after June
30, 2001. SFAS 142, among other things, eliminates the need to amortize goodwill and requires
companies to use a fair-value approach to determine whether there is an impairment of existing
and future goodwill.

Additionally, an acquired intangible asset should be separately recognized if the benefit
of the intangible asset is obtained through contractual or other legal rights, or if the intangible
asset can be sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, regardless of the acquirer’s intent to
do so. Intangible assets with definitive lives will need to be amortized over their useful lives.
These statements are effective for Hometown beginning January 1, 2002.

Hometown adopted this statement effective January 1, 2002, and at such time ceased
recording goodwill amortization. During 2002, Hometown completed its goodwill impairment
testing which resuited in Hometown recording a one-time, non-cash charge of approximately
$23.7 million to write-off the carrying value of goodwill. This charge is non-operational in nature
and is reflected as a cumulative effect of an accounting change in the accompanying statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2002. See Note 5 for additional disclosure.

3. DETAILS OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

Accounts receivable, net consist of the following:

12/31/02 12/31/01

__________ {in thousands)
Due from manufacturers $1,279 $1,416
Due from finance companies 2,758 3,170
Parts and service receivables 618 481
Other 228 589
Total receivables, net $4,883 $ 5,656

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $0.2 million and $0.3 million as of December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In assessing the allowance for doubtful accounts, Hometown
considers historical losses as well as current performance with respect to past due accounts.

Inventories, net consist of the following:

12/31/02 12/31/01

____________ (in thousands) S
New Vehicles $ 29,236 $ 21,722
Used Vehicies 7,264 8,559
Parts, accessories g.nd other 2,669 1,606

Total Inventories $ 39,169 $ 31,887




Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assels

Assets Held For Sale

Included in Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets as of December 31, 2002 is land
held for sale of $300,000. This is net of an impairment charge of $150,000 that was recorded at
December 31, 2002 to write-down the asset to fair value. The impairment charge is included in
Other Expense in Hometown’s Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2002. See Note 18. The land held for sale is not being used in Hometown’s
business. Prior to December 31, 2002, Hometown decided to sell the property and has been
actively marketing the property. It is anticipated that the sale will close in the next six months for
its carrying value. At December 31, 2001, this was included in Land and Land Improvements in
Property and Equipment for $500,000. See Note 4. An impairment reserve of $50,000 was
included in Accrued Expenses at December 31, 2001.

Orher Assets
CarDay, Inc.

On October 18, 2001, CarDay, Inc. ceased operations. Hometown owns 7,380,000
shares of CarDay, Inc. As a result of CarDay, Inc. ceasing operations, Hometown now considers
the investment to be permanently and totally impaired, and it is not anticipated that any
shareholders will receive any distributions from the dissolution of CarDay, Inc.

CarDay, Inc. began operations in 1999 as an 82% owned subsidiary of Hometown.
For the year ended December 31, 1999, the assets, liabilities and results of operations of
CarDay, Inc. were included in Hometown’s financial statements. [n January 2000, CarDay,
Inc. obtained $25 million in financing from a group of venture capital providers. The result of
this financing was to reduce Hometown’s ownership from 82% to 10.7%, and to increase the
carrying value of its investment to $3,258,000. Subseguent to this dilution of ownership,
Hometown no longer reflected the assets, liabilities and results of operations of CarDay, Inc. in
its financial statements because ownership had been reduced to an amount below 20%.
Hometown recorded the increase in value of the investment, net of a deferred tax liability, as
an increase in Additional paid-in capital.

As a result of CarDay, Inc. ceasing operations, Hometown now considers the
investment 10 be permanently and totally impaired. The entire investment in CarDay, Inc. of
$3,258,000 less an associated deferred tax liability of $1,175,000 has been charged against
income in the quarter ended September 30, 2001. The charge has the effect of reducing net
income for the year by $2,083,000 and reducing Earnings per share, fully diluted, for the year
by $0.32. Excluding the charge, net loss for 2001 was $(53,000) or less than $(0.01) per share
fully diluted. The charge does not affect cash, cash flow from operations, or liguidity and
capital resources.
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Summarized financial data for CarDay, Inc. for the periods owned for which it was not
part of the Company’s consclidated financial results is as follows:

Statement of Operations Data Year Ended December 31, 2000
: (000’s)

Revenues $§ 272
Gross profit $ 225
Loss from operations $(14,910)
Net loss $(14,353)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

12/31/02 12/31/01

Accounts payable, trade $1,785 $ 2,139
Accrued compensation costs 696 655
Sales and use tax 524 619
Customer payoffs 265 368
Reserve for finance, insurance and

service contract chargebacks 293 270
Reserve for guarantees on finance contracts 78 377
Reserve for policy work expenses 172 226
Accrued interest 288 240
Other accrued expenses 971 1,266
Total $5,072 $ 6,160

Other long-term liabilities and deferred revenue

Hometown receives commissions from the sale of insurance products and extended
service contracts to customers. These revenues are recorded on a net basis. Connecticut
dealerships operate under state laws which make the dealers responsible for providing warranty
service and insurance in the event of default by the insurance carriers. Accordingly, commissions
on insurance and service contract sales are required to be recognized over the life of the related
insurance product. For these dealerships, Hometown records the revenue as a liability and
amortizes the amount over a five-year period. At December 31, 2002 Hometown had $1,331,000
of deferred revenue of which $588,000 was current and $743,000 was long-term. Included in this
amount is other deferred revenue of $94,000. At December 31, 2001 Hometown had $1,264,000
of deferred revenue of which $476,000 was current and $788,000 was long-term.

During 1999, the Company entered intc a non-compete agreement with the previous
owner of one of the Acquisitions. The payments under this agreement are due in equal
installments over 46 months. The liability for the remaining obligation under the agreement,
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included in current and long-term debt at December 31, 2002 and 2001, was $68,000 and
$173,000 respectively. The related asset is included in the other assets on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and is being amortized over 10 years, representing the life of
the non-compete agreement.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment consist of the following:

Estimated Useful 12/31/02 12/31/01

Lives in Years

Land and land improvements 151020 $4,330 $ 4,830
Buildings and leasehold improvements 7t0 31.5 9,859 7,832
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 3t07 3,091 2,303
Vehicles 305 198 111
Construction in progress - 97

Sub-total 17,478 15,673
Less — accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,596) (3,784)

Total $12,882  $11,889

Included in buildings and leasehold improvements are capital leases for two dealerships
totaling $5,180,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 which are leased from
related parties. See Notes 8, 9 and 14. Hometown begins depreciating assets once the asset is
placed in service. Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000 was $943,000, $909,000 and $891,000 respectively. Included in land and land
improvements at December 31, 2001, is land held for sale of $500,000. At December 31, 2002,
this is included in Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets. See Note 3.

s GOODWILL

As discussed in Note 2, effective January 1, 2002, Hometown adopted SFAS 142. At that
time, Hometown ceased recording goodwill amortization. SFAS 142 requires the completion of a
transitional impairment test in the year of adoption, with any impairment identified upon initial
implementation treated as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

Under SFAS 142, goodwill impairment is deemed to exist if the net book value of a
reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. According to the criteria under SFAS 142, it has
been determined that Hometown is a single reporting unit.

During 2002, Hometown completed its goodwill impairment testing which resulted in
Hometown recording a one-time, non-cash charge of approximately $23.7 million to write-off the
carrying value of goodwill. This charge is non-operational in nature and is reflected as a
cumulative effect of an accounting change in the accompanying statement of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2002. Approximately $9.6 million of this charge is tax deductible,
resulting in a deferred tax benefit of approximately $3.8 million against which a full valuation
allowance was recorded.
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In calculating the impairment charge, the fair value of the reporting unit was estimated using both
the discounted cash flow method and the guideline company method. The discounted cash fiow
method used Hometown’s estimates of future cash flows discounted to present value using an
appropriate discount rate. The guideline company method selects certain value measures of
guideline companies and calculates appropriate market multiples based on the fundamental vaiue
measures of the guideline companies and compares same to Hometown. The guideline companies
chosen were other publicly traded company’s within Hometown’s Standard Industrial
Classification (SIC) code. These methodologies differs from Hometown’s previous policy, as
permitted under SFAS 121, using undiscounted cash flows to determine if goodwill is
recoverable.

The goodwill impairment is associated with goodwill that resulted from acquisitions
since the formation of Hometown. The amount of the impairment reflects the effect of the change
in methodology in determining impairment charges as discussed above.

The effect of the charge on the restated first quarter financial statements and second
quarter financial statements is as follows:

Three Months Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended Ended
March 31,2002  June 30, 2002 June 30, 2002
(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands)

(restated) (restated)

Reported net income $ 235 $ 309 $ 544
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting
change (23,708) - (23,708)
Adjusted net income (loss) $ (23,473) $ 309 $ (23,164)
Earnings (loss) per share, Basic

Reported net income $ 0.03 $ 0.04 § 007

Cumulative effect of accounting

change (3.30) - (3.30)

Adjusted net income (loss) $ 327 $ 0.04 $ (323)
Earnings (loss) per share, Diluted _

Reported net income $§ 0.03 $ 0.04 § 0.07

Cumulative effect of accounting

change (3.30) - (3.30)

Adjusted net income (loss) $ (327 $ 0.04 $ (3.23)
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A summary of changes in Hometown’s goodwill during the year ended December 31,
2002, is as follows:

Reporting Unit Balance at Impairments Balance at
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2002
(in thousands)
Total Company $§ 23,708 $ 23,708 $ -

Goodwill amortization expense is as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
Goodwill amortization (a) $ - $ 58 § 545
Deferred finance charges amortization (b) 13 43 68
Non-compete agreement amortization (b) 40 43 42
Cumulative effect of accounting change (a) $ 23,708 $ - 5 -
Reported net (loss) $ (22,932) $(2,136) §$(3,800)

(a) Goodwill amortization reflects the effect of income tax. The majority of goodwill
amortization is non-deductible for tax purposes. Approximately $9.6 million of this
charge is tax deductible, resulting in a deferred tax benefit of approximately $3.8
million against which a full valuation allowance was recorded.

(b) Amortization of deferred finance charges and non-compete agreement costs reflect
the effect of income tax.
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The 2001 and 2000 full year results do not refiect the provisions of SFAS 142. Had
Hometown adopted SFAS 142 on January I, 1999, historical net income (loss) and basic and

diluted net income (loss) per common share would have been changed to the adjusted amounts
indicated below.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
{(in thousands)

Reported net income (loss) $(22932) $§ (2,136) $ (3,800)
Add: Goodwill amortization (a) - 585 545
Add: Cumulative effect of accounting change 23,708 - -
Adjusted net income (loss) § 776 § (1,551) $ (3,255)
Earnings (loss) per share, Basic

Reported net income (loss) $ (200 § (032) $ (0.63)

Goedwill amortization (a) - 0.08 0.09

Cumulative effect of accounting change 3.30 - -

Adjusted net income (loss) § 0.10 $ (0.24) $ (0.54)
Earnings (loss) per share, Diluted

Reported net income (loss) $ (3200 § (0.32) $ (0.63)

Goodwill amortization (a) - 0.08 0.09

Cumulative effect of accounting change 3.30 - -

Adjusted net income (loss) $ 010 $ (024) § (054

(a) Goodwill amortization reflects the effect of income tax. The majority of goodwill
amortization is non-deductible for tax purposes. Approximately $9.6 million of this
charge is tax deductible, resulting in a deferred tax benefit of approximately $3.8 million
against which a full valuation allowance was recorded.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company’s intangible assets consisted of the
following:

12/31/02 12/31/01

(in thousands)
Deferred finance charges § 267 $ 267
Accumulated amortization (78) (57
Non-compete agreement 381 381
Accumulated amortization (206) (143)
Net intangible assets (a) $ 364 $ 448

(a) These assets are included in Other Assets in the consolidated financial statements
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Aggregate Amortization Expense of Intangible Assets for the year ended 12/31/02 is $85,000.

Estimated Amortization Expense of Intangible Assets, in thousands:

For the year ended 12/31/03 $85
For the year ended 12/31/04 $85
For the year ended 12/31/05 $69
For the year ended 12/31/06 $21
For the year ended 12/31/07 $16

6. FLOOR PLAN NOTES PAYABLE AND INTEREST EXPENSE

12/31/02  12/31/01  12/31/00

(in thousands)
Floor plan notes payable $38,522  $32,463 $40,123
Floor plan interest expense $1,887 $2,548 $3,370

Since March 15, 2001, Hometown has a floor plan line of credit at each dealership with
Ford Motor Credit Corporation (“FMCC”). The FMCC floor plan agreement provides financing
for vehicle purchases and is secured by and dependent upon new and used vehicle inventory
levels. Maximum availability under the FMCC agreement is a function of new and used car sales
and is not a pre-determined amount. As of December 31, 2002 Hometown’s floor plan liability
with FMCC is $38.5 million. The FMCC agreement has no set maturity date and it is the
intention of Hometown to continue with this financing on an ongoing basis.

For the first year of the agreement, through May 2002, the FMCC floor plan loans carried
an interest rate of prime less 0.75% for new vehicles and prime less 0.50% for used vehicles.
From March 15, 2001 through December 31, 2001, interest ranged from 4.00% to 7.25% for new
vehicles and from 4.25% to 7.50% for used vehicles. From January 1, 2002 through May 31,
2002, interest was approximately 4.0% for new vehicles and 4.25% for used vehicles.

In June 2002, Hometown renewed its floor plan agreement with FMCC and is now
subject to the FMCC standard financing agreement which provides for floor plan loans for new
and used vehicles that have variable interest rates that increase or decrease based on movements
in the prime or LIBOR borrowing rates and FMCC financing volume. At December 31, 2002,
interest rates were approximately 4.25 % for new vehicles and 6.0% to 6.5% for used vehicles.

Prior to March 15, 2001, Hometown had a revolving line of credit with GE Capital
Corporation (“GECC”). The GECC agreement provided financing for Hometown’s vehicle
purchases as well as operating expenses. Interest rates on the GECC floor plan arrangements
ranged from 9.2% to 9.9% during 2001, through its close in March 2001, and 7.4% to 9.4%
during 2000. The arrangement included a swing line that handled daily loan activity. The
balance of the swing line was swept into the floor plan line once monthly. The interest rates on
the swing line ranged from 9.1% to 9.6% during 2001 and from 8.6% to 9.6% during 2000.
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Automobile manufacturers periodically provide floor plan interest assistance, or
subsidies, which reduce the dealer’s cost of financing. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements reflect interest expense gross. Floor plan interest assistance was $1.7 million, $1.6
million and $2.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
and is recorded as a reduction of cost of sales when the vehicle is sold. Of these amounts, $0.3

million, $0.2 million and $0.5 million was recorded as a reduction of inventory at December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

12/31/02 12/31/01
(in thousands)

Real estate mortgage note payable, due in monthly installments
including interest at 10.0%, maturing May 1, 2014. $8,258 $8,607
Real estate capital lease obligations, due in monthly installments
including interest at 10.0%, maturing in March 2013. See Note 9. 4,394 4,604
Capital lease obligations on rental vehicles, due in monthly
installments including interest ranging from 6.0% to 9.0%, maturing
on various dates through July, 2007. 1,153 90
Notes payable on rental vehicles, due in monthly installments
including interest of 6.5%, maturing on December 2005. 158 -
Note payable to the former owner of one of the Acquisitions, due in
monthly installments including interest at 10.0%, maturing July, 2003,
related to a non-compete agreement. 68 175
Mortgage note payable, due in monthly installments including interest
at 10.5%, maturing in July 2003, relating to assets held for sale. 58 158
Various due in monthly instaliments including interest ranging from
7.2% to 14.6%, maturing on various dates through October 2006. 134 137

14,223 13,771
Less: Current portion 1,164 886
Total Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations @) $13,059 $12,885

(a) Hometown is subject to certain financial covenants related to its real estate mortgages.

Maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations for each of the next five years and
thereafter are as follows:

Year ending Aggregate
December 31, Obligation
"""""""" (in thousands)

2003 $1,164
2004 1,077
2005 1,129
2006 1,043
2007 968
Thereafter 8,842
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8. CAPITAL LEASES

The following is an analysis of the leased property under capital leases by major classes:

Rental and loaner vehicles
Less: Accumulated Amortization

Net rental and loaner vehicles (included in Inventories)
Buildings
Less: Accumulated Amortization

Net Buildings (included in Property & Equipment)

Asset Balances at December 31,

2002 2001
(in thousands)

$ 1,361 $ 113
(208) (23)

$ 1,153 $ 90
§ 5,180 § 5180
(1,484) (1,148)

§ 3,69 $ 4,032

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital
leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31,

2002:

Year ending
December 31,

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

Less: Amount representing estimated executory costs, included in

total minimum lease payments

Net minimuim lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest

Present value of net minimum lease payments *

* Reflected in the balance sheet as current and non-current

obligations under capital leases of $535 and $5,012, respectively.
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(in thousands)

$

1,159
1,159
1,154
1,015
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

. Leases

Certain officers of Hometown lease to the dealerships the premises under various leases,
two of which are classified as capital leases. See Notes 4, 8 and 14. In connection with the
acquisition in 1999 of real estate used by Baystate Lincoln Mercury, Hometown guaranteed the
mortgage debt of Rellum Realty Company. The 1999 guaranty was given in substitution for a
February 1998 guaranty of that debt by the Muller Group, a subsidiary of Hometown. As of
December 31, 2002 the mortgage debt balance is $4.9 million and the capital lease cbligation
recorded by Hometown is $4.4 million. Hometown makes annual lease payments of $756,000 to
the landlord. The annual mortgage payments made by the landlord total approximately $774,000.
The mortgage matures March 2013.

Due from related parties are as follows:

12/31/02 12/31/01

-------------------

Note receivable from a company owned by an officer of
Hometown, non-interest bearing with payment due monthly of

$3,000. $ 85 $ 121
Other, net 37 40
Total $ 122 $ 161

19. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND PER SHARF DATA
Preferred Stock

Hometown's Certificate of Incorporation provides that its Board of Directors has the
authority, without further action by the holders of the outstanding Commeon Stock, to issue up to
two million shares of Preferred Stock from time to time in one or more classes or series, to fix the
number of shares constituting any class or series and the stated value thereof, if different from the
par value, and to fix the terms of any such series or class, including dividend rights, dividend rates,
conversion or exchange rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption (including sinking fund
provisions), the redemption price and the liquidation preference of such class or series. As of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, Hometown does not have any Preferred Stock outstanding. The
designations, rights and preferences of any Preferred Stock would be set forth in a Certificate of
Designation which would be filed with the Secretary of the State of Delaware.

Common Stock — Class A and Class B

The Class A Common Stock and the Class B Common Stock each have a par value of
$.001 per share and are identical in all respects, except voting rights and the convertibility of the
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Class B Common Stock. Subject to any special voting rights of any series of Preferred Stock that
may be issued in the future, the holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share
and the holders of Class B Common Stock are entitled to ten votes per share. Except as otherwise
required by law, both Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock vote together as one
class on all matters to be voted on by stockholders of Hometown, including the election of directors.
Class A Common Stock is not convertible. The Class B Common Stock is convertible into Class A
Common Stock on a share for share basis, at any time at the election of the holder and is
automatically converted into Class A Common Stock upon any transfer to a person who is not then
an officer or director of Hometown or of a subsidiary of Hometown. All of the outstanding shares
of Class B Common Stock, representing approximately 91% of the aggregate voting power of
Hometown, are beneficially owned by the principals of the Core Operating Companies, including a
majority of the Board of Directors of Hometown. Neither class of Common Stock has redemption,
preemptive or sinking fund rights. Holders of both classes of Common Stock are entitled to
dividends as and when declared by the Board of Directors from funds legally available therefore
and, upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Hometown, to participate ratably in all assets
remaining after payment of all liabilities. All shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding are
fully-paid and non-assessable.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, Hometown’s Board of Directors authorized a stock buy-
back program to acquire up to 350,000 shares of Hometown’s outstanding common stock. As of
December 31, 2002, no shares have been acquired.

Warrants

In connection with the “Private Equity Financing”, see Note 11, Hometown issued
warrants that entitled the holders to purchase up to 487,498 shares of Class A Common Shares at
a purchase price of $1.20 per share, exercisable over a three-year period.

In connection with the Initial Public Offering, Hometown granted to the Paulson Securities
(the “Representative”), Representative's Warrants, entitling the holders thereof to purchase up to
180,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at a purchase price of $10.80 per share over a four-year
period commencing one year from the effective date of the Offering,

Per Share Data

“Basic earnings (loss) per share” is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the
weighted average common shares outstanding. “Diluted eamings (loss) per share” is computed
by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average common shares outstanding adjusted for
the incremental dilution of potentially dilutive securities. Options and warrants to purchase
approximately 1,378,000, 1,283,000 and 482,000 shares of common stock were outstanding
during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The options and warrants were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share because either the option and warrant prices were
greater than the average market price of the common shares, or the effect would be anti-dilutive.
The Company had potentially dilutive securities related to a stock guarantee issued in connection
with an acquisition of approximately 1,900,000 common shares as of December 31, 2000 that
was not included in the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share because the effect would
have been anti-dilutive.
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The basic and diluted (loss) per share for the year ended December 31, 2002 is $(3.20), which
includes basic and diluted income per share before cumulative effect of accounting change of
$0.10 and basic and diluted (loss) per share for a cumulative effect of accounting change of
$(3.30), resulting from the goodwill impairment charge associated with the implementation of
SFAS 142. The basic and diluted (loss) per share for the year ended December 31, 2001 is
$(0.32). See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for the effect of discontinuing the
recording of goodwill amortization effective January 1, 2002 and recognition of an impairment of
the carrying value of its goodwill in 2002, in accordance with SFAS 142,

11, PRIVATE EQUITY FINANCING

On July 23, 2001, the Board of Directors voted in favor of raising up to $1.5 million in a
private equity financing through the sale of Units to accredited investors at a price of $2.00 per
Unit. Each Unit consists of two shares of Class A Common Stock of Hometown plus a warrant to
purchase one additional share at an exercise price of $1.20 per share, exercisable within a three-
year period. On July 19, 2001, agreements were signed with 10 accredited investors and a total of
974,996 Class A Common shares were issued, as follows:

Investor # of Units Purchased # of Shares Issued
Corey Shaker 35,714 71,428
Steven Shaker 35,714 71,428
Janet Shaker 35,714 71,428
Richard Shaker 35,714 71,428
Joseph Shaker 35,714 71,428
Edward Shaker 35,714 71,428
Edward D. Shaker 35,714 71,428
William C. Muller Trust 100,000 200,000
William Muller, Jr. 100,000 200,000
Paul Yamin 37.500 75,000
Total 487,498 974,996

Corey Shaker, Steven Shaker and William Muller, Jr. are officers of the Hometown.
Joseph Shaker was a Director of Hometown in July 2001 and became an officer of Hometown in
August 2002.

This was recorded as an increase in additional paid in capital in July 2001. At December
31, 2001, William Muller, Jr. owed Hometown $30,000. This is recorded in subscriptions
receivable which is a reduction to additional paid in capital at December 31, 2001. This was
subsequently paid to Hometown during the second quarter of 2002 and was recorded as a paid
subscription receivable which is an addition to paid in capital.
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12. INCOME TAXES

12/31/02 12/31/01 12/31/00

(in thousands)

Federal:
Current $ - § G7) $ (1,275)
Deferred 428 (485) (479)
State:
Current 19 20 (191)
Deferred : 24 (132) (72)
Total Income Taxes $ 471 $ (1,014) $(2,017)

Actual income tax expense differs from income tax expense computed by applying a U.S.
federal statutory corporate tax rate of 34% to income (losses) before income taxes as follows:

12/31/02 12/31/01 12/31/00
Provision at the statutory rate 340% (@;.—(—)%j (3-4:(_).%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

State income tax, net of benefit for

Federal deduction 2.3% (3.1%) (3.1 %)

Non-deductible goodwill - 4.9% 22%

Other 1.5% - 0.2%

Effective tax rate 37.8% (32.2%) (34.7 %)

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences in the recognition of
income and expenses for financial reporting purposes and for tax purposes. The tax effects of

these temporary differences representing deferred tax assets and liabilities result principally from
the following:

12/31/02 12/31/01
" (inthousands)

Deferred income texes and taxes receivable —

short-term:

Current net operating loss carryforward § 478 $ 1,276
Reserves and accruals not deductible until paid 459 117
Tax on current portion of deferred revenue 205 191
Tax prepayments and prior year overpayments 103 97
Total $1,245 $ 1,681
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12/31/02 12/31/01

(in thousands)
Deferred tax assets - long-term (8):
Tax assets related to goodwill $ 3,169
Long term net operating loss carryforward 1,323
Tax on long term portion of deferred revenue

Deferred tax on capital leases treated as
operating leases for tax purposes
Valuation allowance (b)

Total

Deferred tax liabilities — long-term:

Amortization of goodwill
Depreciation
Other

Total
Net deferred tax assets — short term $1,142 $1,584
Net deferred tax assets — long term 4,948 965
Valuation aliowance on long-term assets (c) - (4,092) {242)
Net deferred tax asset $1,998 $2,307

(a) Long-term deferred tax assets are recorded in other assets in the consolidated
balance sheets.

(b) Hometown has provided a full valuation allowance on the deferred tax asset
related to goodwill and a partial valuation allowance on its net operating losses because
the realization of these assets are not assured.

(¢} In connection with the adoption of SFAS 142, discussed in Note 5, Hometown
recorded a deferred tax benefit of approximately $3.8 million against which a full
valuation allowance was recorded.

13. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION
Hometown expenses advertising and promotion as incurred. Advertising and promotion
expenses included in Selling, General and Administrative Expenses, net of manufacturers’ rebates

and assistance, were approximately $2.9 million, $3.1 million, and $2.8 million for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Manufacturers advertising rebates and
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assistance was approximately $0.6 million, $0.4 million and $0.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Certain manufacturers will charge Hometown
for national and regional advertising. These charges are included in the cost of vehicles sold by
Hometown. The expense is recognized in cost of sales upon the sale of the vehicle. This
accounting is consistent with industry practice. '

14. OPERATING LEASES

Hometown has executed leases for the premises occupied by its dealerships. Certain of
the leases are with related parties. Hometown also has operating leases relating to its data
processing equipment. The minimum rental commitments required under these operating leases
after December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Year ending December 31, Total Obligation Related Parties Other
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" (in thousands)
2003 $ 1,884 $ 912 $ 9712
2004 : 1,862 912 950
2005 1,613 912 701
2006 1,442 912 530
2007 1,368 912 456
Thereafter 5,448 5,092 356
Total (1) $ 13,617 $ 9,652 $ 3,965

(1) Minimum rental commitments have not been reduced by minimum sub-lease rentals
of $180,000 per year, expiring June 30, 2005. The sub-tenant stopped paying this rent
June 30, 2002. See Note 15.

Total expense for operating leases and rental agreements was $1,938,000, $2,085,000 and
$2,095,000 for the years ending December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Rental expense
for the years ending December 31, 2002 and 2001, does not include sub-lease income received of
$93,000 and $120,000, respectively.

Total expense for operating leases and rental agreemenis with related parties was
$912,000, $912,000 and $912,000 for the years ending December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
respectively.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

In May 2001, Hometown’s wholly-owned subsidiary Morristown Auto Sales, Inc.
(“Morristown”) assigned to Crestmont MM, L.P. (the “Assignee”) the lease for the premises,
where it was operating its Lincoln Mercury dealership in Morristown, New Jersey. On or about
July 12, 2002, Morristown received notice from the landlord that the Assignee had not paid the
required monthly rent, maintained the premises in accordance with the lease, nor provided the
required insurance for the premises. In September 2002, Hometown received notice of a
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complaint filed by the landlord against Hometown, Morristown and certain former officers
seeking payment of rent and other obligations through June 2005. In October 2002, Morristown
filed a complaint against the Assignee to recover any potential damages from the Assignee as
provided under the lease assignment. The Assignee has made a claim against Hometown for
breach of the assignment agreement and misrepresentation of the use of the subject property. The
Assignee has also brought a claim against Morristown’s president, Hometown’s Chief Executive
Officer, for misrepresentation. Total anticipated costs for the remainder of the lease term,
through June 2005, is $540,000 for rent plus certain other costs. Hometown believes it has
meritoricus defenses to the claim and counterclaim and intends to vigorously defend this action.
Hometown does not believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material adverse
effect on Hometown’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In July 2002, Hometown received notice of a complaint filed by the Trust Company of
New Jersey (“Trust Company”) for payment under certain guaranty agreements allegedly made
by Hometown’s wholly-owned subsidiary Westwood Lincoln Mercury Sales, Inc. (“Westwood™)
in favor of Trust Company in connection with a sale of vehicles in 1998. Trust Company is
seeking approximately $390,000 plus other costs. Hometown does not believe that Westwood has
any obligations under the guaranty agreements due to certain actions taken by Trust Company in
relation to the underlying debt, the debtor and other guarantors. Hometown believes it has
meritcrious defenses and intends to vigorously defend this action. Hometown does not believe
that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material adverse effect on Hometown’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

On or about February 7, 2001, Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia, directors
and formerly executive officers of Hometown, and Janet Vergopia, the wife of Salvatore A.
Vergopia (the “Vergopias™) filed a complaint in the Superior Court of New Jersey in Bergen
County, against Hometown, its officers and directors, certain holders of its Class B common
stock, and certain other unnamed persons, alleging breach of two employment agreements,
wrongful termination of employment, breach of a stockholders’ agreement and certain other
wrongful conduct, including age discrimination and breach of fiduciary duty. The Vergopias are
seeking back pay, front pay, compensatory, consequential and punitive damages, in an
unspecified amount as well as, reinstatement, injunctive and other legal and equitable relief.
Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia have also commenced a second action for
defamation against Hometown and its Chief Executive Officer, which has been consolidated with
the action initially filed.

We have retained litigation counsel to represent us in this action. A motion has been
granted such that only a single shareholder remains as an individual shareholder defendant. Also,
Hometown has filed counterclaims to recover damages associated with the Vergopia’s breaches
of certain agreements, as well as breaches of their fiduciary duties. Discovery is proceeding in
this action.

We believe that the Vergopias commenced this action in response to our dismissal of
both Salvatore A. Vergopia and Edward A. Vergopia from their officerships and employment
positions with us. We believe we have meritorious defenses and are vigorously defending this
action. Hometown does not believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a material
adverse effect on Hometown’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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Universal Underwriters Group (“Universal”), Hometowns insurance provider, commenced a
lawsuit against The Chubb Group of Insurance Companies (“Chubb”), Hometown’s Director and
Officer Liability Insurance provider, Hometown, certain officers, directors and shareholders of
Hometown and the Vergopias seeking a declaration of its coverage obligations with respect to the
suit brought by the Vergopias discussed above. The suit has been consolidated with the suit
brought by the Vergopia’s for discovery and case management purposes. Universal originally
acknowledged its obligation to defend and indemnify Hometown against the Vergopia’s claims
and engaged separate counsel to represent Hometown and its directors. Universal is now seeking
to limit its obligations under the comprehensive insurance policy as well as require Chubb, to
share in defense and indemnity obligations. Hometown originally commenced an action seeking
affirmative declaration of its rights under its policy with Universal, but allowed this action to be
stayed pending a resolution of the action brought by Universal. Hometown has brought
counterclaims against Universal and a cross-claim for declaratory judgment against Chubb.
Hometown maintains that the insurers are obligated to defend and indemnify on all claims
brought by the Vergopias. Discovery is ongoing on this matter. Hometown believes it has
meritorious claims and is vigorously defending this action and prosecuting its counterclaims and
cross-claims. Hometown does not believe that the eventual outcome of the case will have a
material adverse effect on Hometown’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Hometown from time to time may be a defendant in lawsuits arising from normal
business activities. Management reviews pending litigation with legal counsel and believes that
the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from such actions will not have a material adverse effect on
Hometown's consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Guarantees

Hometown guarantees or partially guarantees loans advanced by financial institutions to
certain customers. It is Hometown’s policy to provide reserves for potential future default losses
based on available historical information.

One of Hometown’s dealerships, prior to fiscal 2000, had entered into various
arrangements whereby Hometown guaranteed or partially guaranteed loans advanced by financial
institutions to certain customers as follows:

) Portfolio of 13 customer’s limousine vehicle loans granted by Ford Motor Credit Co.
As of December 31, 2002, Hometown fully and partially guaranteed limousine
vehicle loans aggregating approximately $103,000.

(ii) Portfolio of 4 vehicle loans, granted by a financial institution, to various customers of
the dealership with below average credit. As of December 31, 2002, Hometown fully
guaranteed vehicle loans associated with these customers aggregating approximately
$33,000.

The guarantees in (i) and (ii) above are related to loans whereby Hometown is required to
pay the remaining loan balance upon default by the customer. As of December 31, 2002,
Hometown has reserved $70,000 against a total maximum payout of $136,000 for these loans.
The reserve amount represents loans that are currently delinquent. Hometown would expect to
realize proceeds from the sale of these vehicles upon repossession of such vehicle. The amount of
proceeds, if any, is undetermined due to not knowing the condition of the vehicles.
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The same dealership during fiscal 2000 and 2001 partiaily guaranteed 52 loans totaling
approximately $600,000 advanced by Ford Motor Credit Co. to 2 certain limousine customer. As
of December 31, 2002, Hometown has reserved $0 against a total maximum payout of $600,000
for these loans. Hometown has not reserved for these loans due to the expected fair value of the
vehicles approximating or exceeding the unamortized portion of the loan balance.

There are also 17 loans whose liens were not properly perfected totaling approximately
$126,000 as of December 31, 2002. Hometown will be required to pay the remaining loan
balance should the customer’s defauit on their payments. Hometown is working to perfect these
liens and has taken steps to prevent this from occurring in the future. Hometown has reserved
$8,000 for these loans. The reserve amount represents loans that are currently delinquent.
Hometown would expect to realize proceeds from the sale of these vehicles upon repossession of
such vehicle. The amount, if any, is undetermined due to not knowing the condition of the
vehicle.

Hometown will continue to provide a reserve for potential future default losses associated
with the guarantees based on available historical information. The reserve continues to decrease
as the loans are paid off and due to no new loan guarantees being provided by Hometown to
customers with below average credit.

In connection with the acquisition in 1999 of real estate used by Baystate Lincoln
Mercury, Hometown guaranteed the mortgage debt of Rellum Realty Company. The 1999
guaranty was given in substitution for a February 1998 guaranty of that debt by the Muller Group,
a subsidiary of Hometown. In the event of default by Rellum Realty Company, Hometown is
required to make the mortgage payments, but does not take ownership of the property. As of
December 31, 2002 the mortgage debt balance is $4.9 million. Hometown makes annual lease
payments of $756,000 to the landlord. The annual mortgage payments made by the landlord total
approximately $774,000. The mortgage matures March 2013. The lease was recorded as a capital
lease. The capital lease obligation is $4.4 million at December 31, 2002. See Notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Warranties

Hometowns new vehicle sales and certain used vehicle sales have manufacturer
warranties that specify coverage and period. In these instances, Hometown is reimbursed by the
manufacturer for the cost of parts and service on the vehicle covered by these warranties, as
specified by the manufacturer. Hometown also provides a limited warranty on used vehicies sold
at retail. The warranty period is as agreed upon by the customer and may be subject to a
minimum period as mandated by the state. The typical warranty period ranges up to three months.
Hometown also sells parts and service. Manufacturer parts are covered by limited warranties, as
specified by the manufacturer. Service also has a limited warranty; whereby the part and certain
labor costs are covered under the limited manufacturer warranty.

Hometown records a reserve referred to as “policy” for used vehicle warranties and the
labor portion of service warranties based on available historical information. At December 31,
2002 and 2001, Hometown has a reserve of $172,000 and $226,000, respectively. The reserve is
based on the last three months of used vehicle units sold and the average cost of repairs over the
last twelve months. While Hometown believes its estimated liability for product warranties is
adequate and that the judgment applied is appropriate, the estimated liability for product
warranties could differ materially from future actual warranty costs.
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Balance At Additions To
Beginning of Costs and Balance At
Reserve for Policy Work Year Expenses Deductions End of Year
Year Ended 12/31/02 $226,000 $800,000 $(854,000)  $172,000
Year Ended 12/31/01 $158,000 - §947,000 $(879,000)  $226,000
Year Ended 12/31/00 $180,000 $775,000 $(797,000)  $158,000

Other revenues generated by sales of extended service plans, finance, insurance and other
do not have any Hometown warranties attached to the sale, except for certain sales in Connecticut
dealerships discussed in “Finance, Insurance and Service Contract Income Recognition™ above.

Franchise Agreements

On March 13, 2003, Hometown was notified by Toyota Motor Sales, U.S.A., Inc. that
Hometown must correct certain operational deficiencies or make substantial progress toward
rectifying such deficiencies during the next six months. Toyota has expressed concerns that the
financial resources of the Toyota dealerships are being used to finance the cash flow deficits of
affiliated companies and that because of this the Toyota dealerships do not meet their net working
capital requirements by approximately $1.0 million. Toyota has also requested that Hometown
provide a written action plan and consolidated financial forecast. Toyota has also expressed
concerns about the impact of Ford Motor Credit’s financing terms upon the Toyota dealerships
and the existing litigation, including the Vergopia’s as discussed in Item. 3, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — Litigation and in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
Hometown is developing plans to correct the operational deficiencies that would bring Hometown
into compliance. These plans include various alternatives such as; obtaining an outside line of
credit, private equity financing, sale of real property, sale of a dealership, and advances on
warranty income from Hometown’s Extended Service Plan vendor. In addition, Hometown will
be in monthly contact with Toyota to review the efforts of Hometown to resolve the deficiencies
alleged by Toyota. The two Toyota dealerships at December 31, 2002 had combined revenues of
$100.6 million and pre-tax income before allocation of corporate costs of $2.5 million.
Hometown believes that it will be able to alleviate the concerns expressed by Toyota; however,
Toyota has reserved the right to terminate the Toyota Dealership Agreements if sufficient
progress is not made to correct the alleged deficiencies. Should Hometown be notified by Toyota
that they intend to terminate the Toyota Dealership Agreements, Hometown believes it would
have a reasonable amount of time to cure the default.

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Hometown maintains the Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. 401(k) Plan (the “Plan™) for the
benefit of eligible employees, as defined. Participants may make voluntary contributions of up to
15% of their compensation, subject to certain IRS limitation. Hometown may make annual
matching contributions to the Plan at its discretion. No contributions are to be made by
Hometown to the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.
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i7. STOCK OPTION PLAN

In February 1998, as further amended in August 2002, in order to attract and retain
persons necessary for the success of Hometown, Hometown adopted its 1998 Stock Option Plan
(the "Stock Option Plan") covering up to 830,000 shares of Class A Common Stock. Pursuant to
the Stock Option Plan, officers, directors, key employees of Hometown and consultants to
Hometown are eligible to receive incentive and/or non-incentive stock options. The Stock Option
Plan, which expires in January 2008, is administered by the Board of Directors or a committee
designated by the Board of Directors. The selection of participants, allotment of shares,
determination of price and other conditions relating to the purchase of options will be determined by
the Board of Directors, or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion. Stock options granted under
the Stock Option Plan are exercisable for a period of up to ten years from the date of grant at an
exercise price which is not less than the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of the
grant, except that the term of an incentive stock option granted under the Stock Option Plan to 2
stockholder owning more than 10% of the outstanding Common Stock may not exceed five years
and its exercise price may not be less than 110% of the fair market value of the Common Stock
on the date of the grant.’

The following tables summarize information about stock option activity and amounts:

Weighted
Number of  Weighted Average  Average Fair

Shares Price per Share Value
Balance at December 31, 1999 274200 $801
Options Granted 50,000 1.24 $ 0.65
Canceled (22,200) 7.30
Balance at December 31, 2000 302,000 $724
Options Granted 368,000 1.69 $ 033
Canceled (54,250} 4.42
Balance at December 31, 2001 615,750 $4.17
Options Granted 120,000 Sl $ 033
Canceled (25,000) 297
Balance at December 31, 2002 710,756 $3.60
Exercisable at December 31, 2000 161,333 $8.63
Exercisable at December 31, 2001 283,668 $7.18
Exercisable at December 31, 2002 414,914 $5.26
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Number of Weighted Weighted

Range of Cptions Average  Average Exercise Cptions
Exercise  Outstanding at Remaining Price Exercisable Weighted Avg.

Prices 12/31/02 Life Per Share at 12/31/02  Exercise Price
$0.42 to
$0.65 120,000 4.34 $0.51 33,334 $0.53
$0.68 to
$1.50 221,875 4.56 §1.11 100,623 $1.13
$2.25 1o
$3.00 161,875 3.18 $2.39 73,957 $2.55
$9.00 207.000 0.70 $9.00 207,000 $9.00

710,750 3.09 $3.60 414914 $526

In accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, the fair
value of option grants is estimated on the date of grant using the Biack-Scholes option-
pricing model for pro forma footnote purposes.

In 2002, the dividend yield was assumed to be 0%, the risk-free interest rate ranged from
3.4% to 4.4%, the expected option life was 5 years and the expected volatility was 75%. In 2001,
the dividend yield was assumed to be 0%, the risk-free interest rate ranged from 4.0% to 4.98%, the
expected option life was 5 years and the expected volatility was 75%. In 2000, the dividend yield
was assumed to be 0%, the risk-free interest rate was 6.00%, the expected option life was 3 years

and the expected volatility was 73.58%.

See Note 2 for impact of accounting for stock options using the fair value method of

accounting according to SFAS 123.

18. OTHER INCOME / OTHER EXPENSE

The significant components of Other Income and Other Expense are:

Other Income:

Gain on sale of Morristown franchise
Insurance claim proceeds

Other

Total Other Income

Other Expense:
Impairment of Assets
Miscellaneous

Total Other Expense

12/31/02 12/31/01 12/31/00
{(in thousands)

$ - $ 254 -

40 - -

12 . .

$ 52 $ 254 -

$ (150) $ - $ -

)] (8) (23)

$(158) $ (8 $ (23)
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As of December 31, 2002, Hometown recorded a $150,000 asset impairment charge to
write-down the asset to fair value for assets that are held for sale. See Notes 2 and 3. The
impairment charge is included in Other Expense in Hometown’s Consolidated Statements of
Orperations for the year ended December 31, 2002.

In January 2001, Hometown soid the franchise for its Morristown, NJ store back to
Lincoln Mercury for $0.7 million in cash. Hometown received the purchase price plus $40,000
for parts returned, and paid out a broker’s commission of $35,000. The transaction resulied in
Hometown recording a $254,000 gain on the sale, which is included in Other Income in
Hometown’s Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2001.

19, ACQUISITIONS

On April 1, 1999, Hometown acquired Newburgh Toyota. The purchase price was §2.9
million in cash, 100,000 shares of Hometown Class A Common Stock and the assumption of
floor plan and various other debt for the fully capitalized operation. The acquisition resulted in
goodwill of approximately $2.7 million. See Note 5.

Hometown guaranteed that stock issued in connection with this acquisition will have a
market value of at least $1,000,000 by March 31, 2001. Such amount was included in the original
purchase accounting. On June 28, 2001, an agreement was signed with the former owners settling
the guarantee whereby Hometown issued 200,000 shares of Hometown stock and paid $240,000,
paid in monthly installments through December 31, 2002 and a monthly profit sharing payment
equal to 20% of Newburgh Toyota’s monthly pre-tax income over $57,142 for the period from
April 1, 2001 to December 31, 2002. In accordance with APB No. 16, the issuance of the 200,060
shares and the cash settlement did not result in a change in purchase accounting as the original
purchase accounting contemplated the guaranteed stock price and because the settlement is
outside the allocation period. The cash settlement is being accounted for as a period expense. At
December 31, 2002 all amounts related to the guaranty have been paid.

On January 12, 2000, Hometown completed the acquisition of a Jeep franchise in
Brattleboro, Vermont for $0.6 million. As part of this acquisition, Hometown also purchased the
new vehicle inventory tetaling $0.3 million. The operations of this franchise have been included
as part of Hometowns existing Brattleborc Chrysler/Plymouth/Dodge dealership.  This
acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, resulting in
goodwill of approximately $0.8 million. See Note 5.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)
2002
1“Q. 220w 370w 420t  Total Year
(Restated)*
Net Sales $65,093 $73,002 $74348  $57,296 $ 269,739
Cost of sales 55,486 62,901 63,886 48,799 231,072
Income (loss) before taxes and
cumulative effect of accounting change 405 509 879 (546) 1,247
Income (loss) before cumulative effect
of accounting change 235 309 558 (326) 776
Cumulative effect of accounting change (23,708) - - - (23,708)
Net income (loss) $(23473) § 309 $ 558 % (326) § (22,932)
Per share information:
Earnings (loss) per share, basic
Before cumulative effect of accounting
change $ 003 § 004 $ 007 $ (0.05) $ 010
Cumulative effect of accounting change (3.30) - - - (3.30)
Eamings (loss) per share, basic $ (327) $ 0.04 $ 007 $ (0.05) $ (3.20)
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted
Before cumulative effect of accounting
change $ 003 $ 0.04 $ 0.07 $ (0.05) $ 010
Cumulative effect of accounting change (3.30) - - - (3.30)
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted $(327) § 0.04 $§ 0.07 $ (0.05) $ (3.20)
Weighted average shares, basic 7,175.1  7,175.1 7,175.1 7,175.1 7,175.1
Weighted average shares, diluted 7,175.1  7,175.1 7,175.1 7,175.1 7,175.1
*- Restated to reflect the adoption of SFAS 142.
2001
Pom. 20w, 30w, 4°Quw.  Total Year
Net Sales $60,647 $74454 §$71,517 $69,142 $ 275,760
Cost of sales 51,457 63,311 61,277 59,900 235,945
Income (loss) before taxes 464 900 (2,676) (1,838) (3,150)
Net income (loss) $ 197 $ 609  $(1,746)  $(1,196) $(2,136)
Per share information:
Earnings (loss) per share, basic $0.03 $0.10 $(0.24) $(0.17) $ (0.32)
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted $0.02 $0.10 $(0.24) $(0.17) $(0.32)
Weighted average shares, basic 6,000.1 6,000.1 7,175.1 7,175.1 6,592.4
Weighted average shares, diluted 8,032.3 6,200.1 7,175.1 7,175.1 6,592.4
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON SCHEDULE

To the Shareholders and Directors of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.

The audit referred to in our report dated March 7, 2003 relating to the consolidated
financial statements of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc., which is contained in Item 8 of this Form
10-K included the audit of the financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying index.
These financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statement schedules based upon our
audit.

In our opinion such financial statement schedules present fairly, in all material respects,

the information set forth therein.

Valhalla, New York BDO Seidman, LLP
March 7, 2003




This is a copy of the audit report om schedule previously issued by Arthur Andersen
LLP in conmection with Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.’s filing on Form 18-K for the year
ended December 31, 2001. This sudit report has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen
LL? iz commectiom with this filing om Form 10-K, as Arthur Amdersem LLP ceased
providing audit services as of August 31, 2002. The comsolidated balamce sheet as of
December 31, 2000 and the comsolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity amd
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 1999 referred to in this report have mot been
included im ¢the accompanying financial statements.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON SCHEDULE

To Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States, the consolidated financial statements of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. included in this
annual report on Form 10K and have issued our report thereon dated April 12, 2002. Cur audits
were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. This schedule is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and
Exchange Commissions rules and is not part of the basic consolidated financial statements. This
schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all material respects the
financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2000, and the related consclidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999
have been restated.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN
LLP

Stamford, Connecticut

May 23, 2002
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Account Description

Reserve for finance contract
charge-backs
Year ended December 31, 2002
Year ended December 31, 2001
Year ended December 31, 2000
Reserve for insurance contract
charge-backs
Year ended December 31, 2002
Year ended December 31, 2001
Year ended December 31, 2000
Reserve for service contract

charge-backs
Year ended December 31, 2002

Year ended December 31, 2001 -

Year ended December 31, 2000

Reserve for uncollectible long-term
finance contracts
Year ended December 31, 2002
Year ended December 31, 2001

Year ended December 31, 2000

SCHEDULE 1
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOURTS
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Additions

Balance at charged to  Deductions, Other Balance at
Beginning Costs and net of Adjustments End
of Year Expenses Write-offs (H of Year
$113,000 $367,000 $(318,000) $ - $ 162,000
$ 96,000 $277,000 $(260,000) 8 - $ 113,000
$187,000 $242,000 $(333,000) $ - $ 96,000
$ 23,000 $37,000 $(25,000) $ - $ 35,000
$ 3,000 $39,000 $(19,000) $ - $ 23,000
$ 5,000 $13,000 $(15,000) $ - $ 3,000
$134,000 $ 47,000 $ (85,000} 3 - $ 96,000
$ 43,000 $203,000 $(112,000) $ - $134,000
$ 73,000 $ 48,000 $ (78,000) $ - $ 43,000
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$443,000 $ - $(443,000) $ - $ -




Account Description

Reserve for guarantees on finance
Contracts
Year ended December 31, 2002
Year ended December 31, 2001
Year ended December 31, 2000

Reserve for policy work expenses

Year ended December 31, 2002

Year ended December 31, 2001

Year ended December 31, 2000
Allowance for doubtfiul accounts

Year ended December 31, 2002

Year ended December 31, 2001

Year ended December 31, 2000

SCHEDULE II
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS - Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Additions

Balance at  chargedto  Deductions, Other Balance at
Beginning Costs and net of Adjustments End

of Year Expenses Write-offs (1) of Year
$ 377,000  $(99,000)  $(200,000) $ - $ 78,000
$1,205,000  $312,000 $(789,000)  $(351,000) § 377,000
$ 380,000 $825,000 $ - $ - $1,205,000
$226,000 $800,000 $(854,000) $ - $172,000
$158,000 $947,000 $(879,000) $ - $226,000
$180,000 $775,000 $(797,000) $ - $158,000
$250,000 $ 76,000 $(119,000) $ - $207,000
$904,000 $109,000 $(763,000) $ - $250,000
$ 100,000 $ 804,000 $ - $ - $904,000

(1) The adjustment of $351,000 to the Reserve for guarantees on finance contracts for
the year ended December 31, 2001 represents a transfer to accounts payable for a
portion of the liability that became fixed.
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Exhibit 99.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
: AS ADCPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. (the "Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the "Report™), I, Corey E. Shaker, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

I. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

March 24, 2003 /s/ Corey E. Shaker

Corey E. Shaker
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 99.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc. (the "Company") on
Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Charles F. Schwartz, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

March 24, 2003 /s/ Charles F. Schwartz

Charles F. Schwartz
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 99.3
CERTIFICATION

I, Corey E. Shaker, certify that:

1.

2.

['have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual report.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report.

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures
as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the
"Evaluation Date"); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which
could adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether
or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

March 24, 2003 /s/ Corey E. Shaker

Corey E. Shaker
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 99.4
CERTIFICATION

I, Charles F. Schwartz, certify that:

1.

2.

March 24, 2003

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hometown Auto Retailers, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual report.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report.

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures
as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the
"Evaluation Date"); and

a. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date;

The registrant's other certitying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which
could adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and have identitied for the registrant's auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether
or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

/s/ Charles F. Schwartz

Charles F. Schwartz
Chief Financial Officer




Statement of Corporate Vision

Hometown Auto Retailers is dedicated to meeting the needs of its customers in the purchase and maintenance of
their vehicles. Our employees carry out this mission in a friendly, personal manner while enhancing the Company’s
reputation for fair dealing and professionalism.

Our vision is to become the premier auto retailer in the Northeastern United States, based on exceptional services
to customers, efficient operations, and prudent acquisitions of desirable dealerships. The quality of our operations
will propel the Hometown brand name and create extraordinary consumer confidence.

Hometown’s core competency is the management of retail auto dealerships. The senior managers of the Company
have exceptional depth of experience in the industry. We intend to combine the real-world experience with scale
economies and state-of-the-art business techniques to produce unprecedented levels of dealership performance.
That performance will provide capital to fuel Hometown’s acquisition strategy.

Our goal is to expand the Company’s geographic penetration throughout the Northeast. Management will continue
to explore and develop alternative distribution channels to take advantage of emerging technology and business
trends.

We intend to acquire both stand alone, full service dealerships and dealer franchises that will be tucked into
existing dealership operations. Target dealerships must have favorable locations, strong financial performance or
potential, and complement existing Hometown operations.

Our greatest strength lies in our people. Hometown’s 400+ employees possess hundreds of years combined
experience in auto retailing. The values that guide our employees are:

Service and teamwork “Provide value to customers”
Industry and tenacity “Whatever it takes”
Action and decisiveness “Sooner than later”

Quality and accuracy “Done right, done once”




About Hometown

Hometown Auto Retailers (www.htauto.com) sells new and used cars and light trucks,

provides maintenance and repair services, sells replacement parts and provides related
financing, insurance and service contracts through 10 franchised dealerships located in
New Jersey, New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts and Vermont. The company’s
dealerships offer 10 American and Asian automotive brands, including Chevrolet, Dodge,
Ford, Jeep, Lincoln, Mazda, Mercury, Oldsmobile, and Toyota. Hometown is also active
in two “niche” segments of the automotive market: the sale of Lincoln Town Cars and
limousines to livery car and livery fleet operators and the maintenance and repair of cars
and trucks at a Ford and Lincoln Mercury factory authorized free-standing service center.

Bay State Lincoin Mercury

571 Worcester Road

Framingham, Massachusetts 01701
(508) 872-7600

Brattieboro Chrysler Jeep Dodge
1270 Putney Road

Brattleboro, Vermont 05301

(802) 257-4631

Family Ford

1200 Wolcott Road
Waterbury, Connecticut 06705
(203) 757-1201

Mulier Chevrolet Oldsmobile
164 Route 173

Stewartsville, New Jersey 08886
(908) 454-3100

Muller Toyota

Route 31

Clinton, New Jersey 08809
(908) 638-4100

Shaker Quality Care

(maintenance and repair services only)
1189 New Haven Road

Naugatuck, Connecticut 06770

(203) 729-0707

Shaker Chrysler Jeep

1355 South Main Street
Waterbury, Connecticut 06706
(203) 757-0511

Shaker Lincoin Mercury

831 Straits Turnpike
Watertown, Connecticut 06795
(860) 945-4900

Toyota of Newburgh

2934 Route OW

New Windsor, New York 12553
(914) 561-0340

Wellesiey Mazda

965 Worcester Road

Wellesley, Massachusetts 02482
(781) 235-6000

Westwood Lincoln Mercury
55 Kinderkamack Road
Emerson, New Jersey 07630
(201) 265-7700

Corporate Headquarters

774 Straits Turnpike
Watertown, Connecticut 06795
(869) 945-6900




